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United We Stand

He Shu
Chinese ink on rice paper
69 x 91 cm

United We Stand, a Highly Commended artwork of the 2020 UOB Painting of the Year (Singapore), Established Artist Category, is
the design inspiration for this year's Annual Report. Ms He Shu's artwork reflects the strength of the human spirit in overcoming
difficulties, especially in the tumultuous year that was beset by the global COVID-19 pandemic.

Through the orchids blossoming in the harsh environment, Ms He plants in our minds the power and beauty of solidarity. The
butterflies symbolise how the smallest effort can seed the biggest impact. In the words of the artist, "Where there are winds of
change, we shall press on with great fortitude to find new waves of transformation. Adapt and learn fast in this changing world,
turn anxiety into action, turn waste into energy, turn challenges into opportunities.”

Likewise, in 2020, UOB continued to forge ahead sustainably, relying on our time-tested values, strong balance sheet, robust risk
management approach and entrepreneurial roots to guide our customers, colleagues and the community through to better times.

As the leading patron of art in Asia, UOB sees the value of art in its power to unify, to heal and to open us to possibilities. In its 39™
year in 2020, the Bank's flagship art programme, the UOB Painting of the Year competition, is currently held across four Southeast
Asian markets in which UOB has a deep presence.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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United Overseas Bank (China) Limited (UOB China) is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of United Overseas Bank Limited (UOB), a leading bank in Asia.
UOB China is headquartered in Shanghai and was incorporated in the
People's Republic of China on 18 December 2007.

From our first representative office in Beijing in 1984, we have grown our
network to 16 branches and sub-branches in major Chinese cities.

We have also been building on our strengths. In 2006, UOB was the
first bank from Southeast Asia authorised to settle capital accounts in
Shanghai. We received a retail Renminbi (RMB) licence and Shanghai Gold
Exchange (SGE) trading membership in 2008 and 2011 respectively. In 2012,
we were awarded a Qualified Domestic Institutional Investors licence,
and were one of four foreign banks to participate in bullion trading on
the SGE interbank platform. UOB China is one of the first foreign banks
to obtain a local mutual fund licence in China in 2013. The following
year, we established a sub-branch in the Shanghai Pilot Free Trade Zone
and obtained a trial market maker licence for interbank gold bilateral
transactions and a market maker licence for direct trading between RMB
and the Singapore dollar in the interbank foreign exchange market. We
also obtained the gold import and export licence in 2015.

In 2018, UOB China became one the first market makers to execute direct
trading between the RMB and the Thai Baht. The Bank also successfully
priced its three-year onshore RMB financial bond through the China
interbank market and the Bond Connect scheme (BCS), which is the first
onshore financial bond issued by a Southeast Asian bank through the BCS.
In 2019, UOB China became the first Southeast Asia-headquartered bank
to be a member of the Shanghai Futures Exchange and the first foreign
bank to be a Fixing Member for the Shanghai Silver Benchmark Price. UOB
China also became one of the first foreign bank members of the Cross-
border RMB Trade Finance Trading Platform in 2020. These achievements
have enabled us to widen our products and service offerings to our
customers operating in China.

In 2015, UOB Group increased the registered capital of UOB China by
RMB2.5 billion to RMB5.5 billion. UOB China is rated 'A+' with a stable
outlook by Fitch Ratings and 'AAA" with a stable outlook by China Cheng
Xin International.

We believe in being a responsible financial services provider and we are
committed to making a difference in the lives of our stakeholders and in
the communities in which we operate. Just as we are dedicated to helping
our customers manage their finances wisely and to grow their businesses,
UOB China is steadfast in our support of social development, particularly
in the areas of art, children and education.

For more information about UOB China,
please visit www.UOBChina.com.cn or
follow the UOB China's public account on WeChat.
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About United Overseas Bank Limited

Who We Are

United Overseas Bank Limited (UOB) is a leading bank in Asia with a
global network of more than 500 branches and offices in 19 countries and
territories in Asia Pacific, Europe and North America. In Asia, we operate
through our head office in Singapore and banking subsidiaries in China,
Indonesia, Malaysia, Thailand and Vietnam, as well as branches and offices
across the region.

In 1935, amid the economic uncertainties following the Great Depression,
UOB opened its doors to provide banking services for the merchant
community in Singapore.

Since then, UOB has grown organically and through a series of strategic
acquisitions. Today, UOB is rated among the world's top banks: 'Aal' by Moody's
Investors Service and 'AA-' by both S&P Global Ratings and Fitch Ratings.

Over more than eight decades, generations of UOB employees have
carried through the entrepreneurial spirit, the focus on long-term value
creation and an unwavering commitment to doing what is right for our
stakeholders.

At UOB, we believe in being a responsible financial services provider and
we are committed to making a difference in the communities in which we
operate. Just as we are dedicated to helping our customers manage their
finances wisely and grow their businesses, we are steadfast in our support of
social development, particularly in the areas of art, children and education.

What We Do

UOB provides a wide range of financial services globally through our three
core business segments — Group Retail, Group Wholesale Banking and
Global Markets. Our offering includes consumer banking, private banking,
commercial banking, transaction banking, investment banking and treasury
services. Through our subsidiaries, we also provide asset management,
private equity fund management and insurance services.

- A
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About United Overseas Bank Limited
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Financial Highlights

2020 2019 Increase
(Decrease)
ZERE Operating result AR+t RMB'000 %
EWVEAET Total operating income 1,433,552 1,360,564 5.4
ElER Total operating expenses 1,052,484 1,083,036 (2.8)
KERERE Impairment charges 267,602 141,314 89.4
FRTFE Profit before tax 107,214 136,729 (21.6)
Bl Balance sheet AR TF7T RMB'000 %
R Bt Total assets 80,487,543 71,856,288 12.0
T ZigHR Financial indicators % % %
FREFAR Return on equity 1.6 1.8 (0.2)
B =FEER Return on average total assets 0.1 0.2 (0.1)
ARAUNEE Expenses/income ratio 72.4 78.6 (6.2)
FHEHERALEBANLL RN Net fee and commission income/total 10.0 12.6 (2.6)
operating income
FHEEE (AR™) Loan-to-Deposit ratio (RMB) 95.0 88.1 6.9
AR Leverage ratio 7.0 7.7 (0.7)
RAREEHE Non-performing loan ratio 0.4 0.6 (0.2)
BRERBEBEX Non-performing loan coverage ratio 664.1 348.5 315.6
W R Provision-to-loan ratio 2.4 2.2 0.2
RARFE BRIEFR Capital adequacy ratio
O —BRATRER Core Tier 1 CAR 13.4 13.5 (0.1)
—REEAFTEER Tier 1CAR 13.4 13.5 0.1
BERFEREER Total CAR 16.4 16.5 (0.1)
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Chairman's Statement

2020 was a transformational year. The COVID-19 pandemic, which
escalated to a humanitarian crisis and sadly resulted in the loss of many
lives globally, also disrupted businesses and altered our ways of life. The
future never looked as uncertain.

Through this tumultuous period, we at UOB have continued in our role to
help our customers build their businesses and attain their financial goals
and lifestyle needs. We have long believed in standing right by them to
weather crises.

COVID-19 response

In response to the Chinese government's COVID-19 pandemic control
and relief policies, we deployed our strong balance sheet judiciously to
support our corporate clients, providing relief assistance to tide them
through unprecedented financial challenges. Our relationship managers
actively engaged our clients, working closely with those who faced
liquidity difficulties to ensure that their financial needs were met through
additional funding or loan tenor extensions. Such support measures were
offered until the middle of the year at which time our clients' financial
situation largely stabilised.

- A
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Chairman's Statement
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Taking care of our customers required that we take care of our people
first. As soon as China announced pandemic control measures, we enabled
work-from-home arrangements without compromising the quality of our
customer service or our robust risk management and security standards.
We implemented staggered work hours and split teams to keep our
services running while also protecting our people. After resuming full
operations, we ensured that safe management measures were enforced
including daily health monitoring and providing personal protective gear
and on-site nucleic acid testing. Through Care U, our newly-launched
employee welfare programme, we offered mental health support to our
colleagues and their family members.

We also stepped up our community efforts, including providing 100,000
surgical face masks to frontline service workers in six provinces and cities
across China and 31 HEPA filters to students in Hubei Province when
personal protective gear was in critical and short supply at the beginning
of the pandemic.

As the world continues to battle COVID-19, people needed art more than
ever to inspire resilience, solidarity and creativity and to promote mental
well-being. In this spirit, we hosted, for the second year, our UOB Art
Season which encompassed several virtual and physical programmes to
make art accessible to all.

Financial performance in 2020

In 2020, we achieved operating income of RMB1,433.6 million, up 5.4 per
cent from last year, driven by double-digit growth in net interest income.

Net interest income rose 18.9 per cent from a year ago to RMB991.6
million, attributed to improved interest margins from deposit restructure.

Total operating expenses decreased by 2.8 per cent to RMB1,052.5 million,
mainly from the decline in staff costs and business-related expenses.
Impairment charges increased to RMB267.6 million as we proactively made
provisions to ensure adequate credit coverage. We registered net profit
after tax of RMB108.7 million, a decrease of 12.6 per cent from 2019.

Loans grew by 3.0 per cent to RMB36.2 billion and deposits were RMB36.5
billion as at 31 December 2020. Our asset quality remained stable. The
non-performing loan ratio declined to 0.4 per cent from 0.6 per cent a
year ago. We monitor our portfolio vigilantly and are confident of the
resilience of our asset quality and adequacy of our provisions.

As at 31 December 2020, our Common Equity Tier 1 and Total Capital
Adequacy Ratio stood at 13.4 per cent and 16.4 per cent respectively, well
above the regulatory minimum requirements.

We were rated A+ by Fitch Ratings and AAA with a stable outlook by
China Chengxin International Credit Rating.
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Driving long-term strategic growth

Amid the unprecedented challenges of 2020, we persevered with our
customer-focused regional strategy.

Through our well-timed and paced investments, we are focusing on areas
that will continue to drive our sustainable growth in China:

1. Supporting surging economic flows and increased connectivity
between ASEAN and China;

2. Creating progressive cross-border solutions for companies tapping
China’s continued financial liberalisation; and

3. Taking a customer-centric approach to transform our business.

Supporting surging economic flows and increased connectivity
between ASEAN and China

Geopolitical tensions continue to reshape Asia. Global fault lines and
the bifurcation of the global economy worsened in 2020, reinforcing the
link between ASEAN's future and China’s increasing economic influence.
ASEAN became Chinas largest trading partner in 2020, recording a seven
per cent growth year on year.

Within ASEAN, UOB has the most extensive regional network among our
peers. Our connectivity within ASEAN and with China enables us to help
our clients seize regional opportunities. Our investments in capabilities
such as a dedicated foreign direct investment advisory team enable us to
combine deep market knowledge with access to key local connections.
Across the region, we have sharpened our Wholesale Banking strategy
and sector specialisation capabilities to focus on seven sectors that drive
intra-regional economic flows and on players we think will contribute to
responsible, sustainable growth.

For example, in 2020 we deepened our business relationship with a
world-leading construction machinery manufacturer and supported a
large leading Chinese contractor in power generation and transmission
infrastructure in its business development in China and ASEAN. We also
signed Memoranda of Understanding with a high-technology client
based in the Yangtze River Delta and one of Chinas leading gold mining
companies to offer them tailored financial services and solutions to seize
regional growth opportunities.

Another growth opportunity is the Greater Bay Area (GBA), one of the fastest
growing regions in China and one which counts ASEAN as its biggest trading
partner. Since the release of Outline of the Development Plan for the GBA,
cross-border financing and investment have increased with greater integration
of the region. Given our strong ASEAN network and deep local presence, we
are well-placed to help facilitate business flows within the GBA and with the
GBA's connections regionally. For example, in 2020 we launched our Cross-
Border Fast Payment service to commercial banking clients of UOB China and
UOB Hong Kong with a presence in the GBA to fulfil their increasing needs in
cross-border liquidity management.

- A
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Chairman's Statement
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Creating progressive cross-border solutions

With China continuing to liberalise its financial sector and its deepening
of the Belt and Road Initiative, Chinese enterprises have an increasing
demand for sound financial solutions. Drawing on the strengths of UOB's
regional network and local understanding, we create progressive solutions
to support cross-border businesses in a more efficient way.

In 2020, following the expansion of Shanghai Pilot Free Trade Zone to
include the Lin-Gang Special Area, we tapped the new policies to launch
our first multi-currency cross-border cash pool. We also became one of
the first foreign bank members of the Cross-Border RMB Trade Finance
Trading Platform and completed the first deal on the platform on launch
day. Our expanded ASEAN Currency One-stop Service has helped many
corporate clients optimise their foreign exchange efficiencies, which in
turn has enhanced their bargaining power in international business. We
also won the third prize at the Shanghai Financial Innovation Awards by
the Shanghai Municipal People's Government.

Taking a customer-centric approach to transform our business

Since establishing our presence in mainland China 37 years ago, we have
taken a customer-centric approach to building our business, offering
our customers financial services and creating opportunities for them to
connect and to grow their personal wealth and businesses. Our duty of
care to our customers has always been our priority and will continue to
play a critical role in our long-term growth.

As such, we continued to transform our business by sharpening our sector
focus and redefining the roles of our 13 branches in China to provide our
corporate clients with more targeted, in-depth insights, solutions and
services. To address our affluent and high-net-worth customers' needs for
digital services and personalised wealth management advisory, we also
continued with the strategic development of our retail business, focusing
on our key markets and deepening our digital capabilities.

We continued to forge strategic partner ecosystems to facilitate our
customer acquisition and to widen the range of services we offer to our
customers. In 2020, as part of the strategic collaboration between UOB
and Hengfeng Bank, we jointly launched the one-stop trade service to
help more Chinese companies tap cross-border opportunities and to
facilitate the increasing China-ASEAN business and trade flows.

We believe the transformation of our business will enhance the customer
experience so that we will continue to build and to maintain enduring
relationships with them.
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Growing our own timber

People are our greatest asset. We take our duty of care to them very
seriously and focus on their professional and personal fulfilment.

We believe in growing our own timber. We open up opportunities
for our people to progress on their chosen career paths and develop
talents that our business needs, through training and leadership
development initiatives. These include the Greater China Leadership
Academy, Leadership Acceleration Programme, Cross-Function Mentoring
Programme and Management Associate Programme.

We also deepen our talent pool by welcoming those with specialist skills to
help us build our business further and faster. In 2020, we officially launched
Better U, UOB's Group-wide upskilling holistic learning and development
programme to equip colleagues with the knowledge and skills in five areas
to stay relevant in the future. By the end of the year, 735 colleagues had
successfully completed the Better U foundation programme.

Emerging stronger

Early green shoots of recovery can be seen in 2021, just like the orchid
blossoming amid the difficult terrain in the cover painting, United We Stand.

In the face of uncertainty, China continues to pursue economic
development with a target growth rate of above six per cent for 2021.
To realise its goal, the country is rolling out its 14™ Five-Year Plan and
continues to build its Dual-Circulation economy. Regional connectivity
initiatives such as the Regional Comprehensive Economic Partnership, the
world's largest free trade agreement, will further boost inter-regional and
intra-regional trade and investment activities.

These trends present tremendous opportunities for UOB and our
customers.

For UOB China, we entered the crisis from a position of strength and have
proven resilient. Guided by our values of Honour, Enterprise, Unity and
Commitment, we will continue to help businesses to advance responsibly,
to steer wealth to sustainable investments and to foster social inclusion
and environmental well-being.

We remain committed to strengthening our competitive advantages and
connecting our customers to opportunities across the region. We will
continue to transform our businesses to address our customers' changing
needs. To ensure our colleagues continue to thrive in a future dominated
and determined by data and digital services, we will keep investing in their
capabilities. We believe the future of Asia and its people is bright and we
stand ready to help our customers and colleagues prosper in the better
times ahead.
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I thank everyone at UOB China for all their efforts in 2020. Your
commitment and unity in helping our customers and one another in the
most trying of times exemplify what is core to the Bank. | would also
like to thank the Board for its steadfast support and confidence in the
management team throughout this year of unprecedented challenges.
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Dr Wee, 92, was appointed as Supervisor of
United Overseas Bank (China) on 30 October
2007.

A distinguished banker with more than 60
years' experience, Dr Wee is a veteran in the
banking, insurance, real estate and hospitality
industries. He was conferred numerous awards
and accolades at the national and regional level
for his business achievements and support of
education, community welfare and the business

community.

Dr Wee is the Chairman of United Overseas Bank
(Thai) Public Company and the Chairman Emeritus
and Honorary Adviser of United Overseas Bank

and also of United Overseas Bank (Malaysia).

He is the current Chairman of United Overseas
Insurance, UOL Group, United Industrial
Corporation and Haw Par Corporation all of
which are public companies listed on the
Singapore Stock Exchange. He also serves as
Chairman of Pan Pacific Hotels Group, Marina

Centre Holdings and Wee Foundation.
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Dr Wee is an alumni and Chairman of Chung
Cheng High School. He has served on numerous
school management committees and the
Councils of the Nanyang University and National
University of Singapore (NUS). He is currently a
Pro-Chancellor of the Nanyang Technological
University (NTU). Both NUS and NTU have
conferred on him their Honorary Doctor of

Letters degree.

His other commitments include appointment as
the Honorary President of the Singapore Chinese
Chamber of Commerce & Industry, Singapore
Federation of Chinese Clan Associations and

Singapore Hokkien Huay Kuan.

Dr Wee was named Businessman of the Year
twice at the Singapore Business Awards in 2001
and 1990. He received the inaugural Credit
Suisse-Ernst & Young Lifetime Achievement
Award in 2006 and The Asian Banker Lifetime
Achievement Award in 2009. In recognition of his
business achievements in the region, Dr Wee was
conferred the Legacy Award for Singapore at the
ASEAN Business Awards 2017.

Dr Wee received the Distinguished Service Order,
Singapore's highest National Day Award for 2011
from the President of Singapore in recognition of
his outstanding contributions to the economic,
education, social and community development

fields in Singapore.
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Prof Cham, 81, was appointed as the Deputy
Supervisor of United Overseas Bank (China) with
effective from 1 January 2017. Prof Cham was a
non-executive and independent director of the
Bank from 2008 to 2016.

Prof Cham is the Chairman of NSL, Soup
Restaurant and Singapore Rail Academy. He
is a former director of MFS Technology, WBL
Corporation and UOB and its subsidiary, Far
Eastern Bank.

A prominent figure in the Singapore education
scene, Prof Cham is the former Chancellor of
Singapore University of Social Sciences and
Chairman of its Board of Trustees, and was the
founding President of Nanyang Technological
University. For his outstanding contributions to
education, he was conferred the Distinguished
Service Order, Singapore's highest National Day
Award, in 2003.

An engineer by training, Prof Cham holds a
Bachelor of Engineering (Civil, Hons) from the
University of Malaya, a Bachelor of Science
in Mathematics (Hons) from the University of
London and a Doctor of Philosophy in Fluid
Mechanics from the University of Cambridge,
UK. He is also a Fellow of the Institution of
Engineers, Singapore, Academy of Engineering,
Singapore, Royal Academy of Engineering, UK
and Institution of Mechanical Engineers, UK and
a foreign member of Royal Swedish Academy of
Engineering Sciences.
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Mr Wee, 68, was appointed as director and
Chairman of the Bank on 5 December 2007. A
non-executive and non-independent director, he
is the Chairman of the Executive Committee and
a member of the Nominating and Remuneration
Committee.

A career banker with more than 40 years'
experience in the UOB Group, Mr Wee joined
UOB in 1979 and has been a director of UOB
since 1990. He is currently the Deputy Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of UOB.

He also holds directorships in United Overseas
Insurance, United Overseas Bank (Malaysia)
(Deputy Chairman) and United Overseas Bank
(Thai) Public Company (Deputy Chairman). He
is the President Commissioner of PT Bank UOB
Indonesia. Mr Wee was also formerly a director
of Far Eastern Bank.

Active in industry and community development,
Mr Wee serves as Vice Chairman of The Association
of Banks in Singapore and is a council member
of The Institute of Banking and Finance. He is
also a member of the Board of Governors of the
Singapore-China Foundation, Indonesia-Singapore
Business Council and Honorary Council Member
of the Singapore Chinese Chamber of Commerce
and Industry. He was previously Deputy Chairman
of the Housing and Development Board, a
director of the Port of Singapore Authority, UOL
Group, Pan Pacific Hotels Group and United
International Securities, and a member of Visa AP
Senior Client Council.

A keen art enthusiast, Mr Wee is the Patron of
the Nanyang Academy of Fine Arts. He is also a
director of the Wee Foundation.

In 2013, he was awarded the Singapore Public
Service Star by the Singapore Government for his
contributions to the financial industry.

Mr Wee holds a Bachelor of Science (Business
Administration) and a Master of Arts (Applied
Economics) from American University, Washington, DC.
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Mr Foo, 58, was appointed President and Chief
Executive Officer (CEO) on 19 December 2016
and a director of the Board of UOB (China) on 18
January 2017. An executive and non-independent
director, he is a member of UOB (China)'s
Executive Committee. Mr Foo is also a member
of UOB Group Management Committee.

Mr Foo joined UOB in 2011 as the Head of the
Group's Treasury and Global Markets business for its
overseas subsidiaries and branches. He also served
as President and CEO of UOB (Thai) from 2012.

Mr Foo has more than 30 years of experience in
banking and financial markets. Prior to joining
UOB, he served for 11 years at Fortis Bank,
S.A./N.V. Singapore, where he assumed many
management roles including the CEO, Asia Pacific
Management Board member, Managing Director
of Private Banking and Head of Global Markets.

Mr Foo's previous professional experience also
includes holding various executive positions
at Bank Austria Creditanstalt, Bank of America,
and Chemical Bank between 1988 and 2000. Mr
Foo embarked on the career as management
associate with Shell Singapore in 1987.

Mr Foo is the Chairman of UOB Property
China Co.Ltd, the non-executive director of
Hengfeng Bank as well as the director of AlIF
Capital Partners Limited, the general partner
of Asia Impact Investment Fund | L.P. He is also
a Council Member of Capital Markets Policy
Council (CMPC) of CFA Institute. Previously, he
served as the Executive Committee Member
and Regional Representative of South East Asia
of ACI-The Financial Markets Association, Board
Member of CFA Singapore, Council Member of
the Association of Banks in Singapore and an
independent director of SGX listed/Temasek's
CitySpring Infrastructure Investment Trust. Mr Foo
was awarded as a 2020 Shanghai Financial Industry
Innovation Figure at the Shanghai Financiers
Awards hosted by Xinhua News Agency.

Mr Foo holds a Bachelor of Estate Management
(Hons) from the National University of Singapore
and is a Chartered Financial Analyst.
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Mrs Ip, 57, was appointed to the Board on
22 August 2011. A non-executive and non-
independent director, she is the Chairman of
the Bank's Board Risk Management Committee
and a member of the Bank's Executive, Audit,
Nominating and Remuneration, and Connected
Transactions Control Committees.

A veteran banker with more than 30 years'
experience in both consumer and corporate
banking, Mrs Ip joined UOB in 2011 and was
appointed as Chief Executive Officer of UOB
Hong Kong Branch in December 20T1. Mrs Ip was
appointed as Chief Executive Officer for UOB
Greater China with effect from 1 July 2016, and
is responsible for developing UOB's business in
Greater China.

Prior to joining UOB, Mrs Ip held several senior
management positions in product and sales
management, customer segment management
and risk management in Hong Kong, the United
States, Canada, Singapore and Mainland China.

She is also an independent non-executive
director of SmarTone Telecommunications
Holdings Limited.

In recognition of her achievements, Mrs Ip
received the Asia Retail Congress Award for
"Best International Retail Banker" in 2008 and
was named as one of the top 100 outstanding
Chinese businesswomen in the Greater China
region in 2012 by the China Outstanding Female
Entrepreneurs Association.

Mrs Ip holds a Bachelor of Arts from the
University of Hong Kong and a Master of Business
Administration from the Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology.
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Mr Liu, 62, was appointed to the Board on 20
January 2017. As an independent director, he is
the Chairman of the Audit and Nominating and
Remuneration Committees, and a member of the
Connected Transactions Control and Board Risk
Management Committees.

Mr Liu is currently the founding partner and Chief
Executive Officer of Asia Investment Capital.
He also serves as a director of Cindat Capital
Management Limited, as well as an independent
director for CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited.

Mr Liu was formerly the Chairman of Merrill
Lynch China and Country Executive of Bank of
America Merrill Lynch. He had previously worked
as head of Asia or China for Goldman Sachs,
Morgan Stanley, Smith Barney and Indosuez.

He holds a Bachelor of Arts in Economics and
International Relations from Brandeis University,
and a Master of Business Administration from
Harvard Business School.
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Prof Wu, 62, was appointed to the Board on 29
August 2018. As an independent director, he is
the Chairman of the Connected Transactions
Control Committee, and a member of the Audit,
Nominating and Remuneration and Board Risk
Management Committees.

Prof Wu is currently Executive President of
Shanghai Zhangjiang High-tech Park Development
Company Limited, Executive President of Shanghai
Yangtze River Delta Sci-tech City Development
Company Limited, and Vice Chairman of
Shanghai Huaxia Culture and Economy Promotion
Association.

Prof Wu formerly served as Chief Representative
for Europe and Africa Regions and director
of Investment and Consulting Management,
Planning and Finance for China Baosteel Group.
He took senior positions in Siemens, including
Vice President of Siemens (China) Company
Limited, Vice President of Siemens Real Estate
Investment China and President of Siemens Expo
Programme Centre (SEPC). He also held senior
positions in ALSTOM. Prof Wu assumed the
position of director of Executive Committee of
the first session of Foreign Invested Companies
(ECFIC) of China Association of Enterprises with
Foreign Investment (CAEFI).

Prof Wu is a Certified Senior Economist in China.
He holds a Master’s Degree in Economics from
German Siegen University. He was appointed as
the guest professor of Shanghai International
Studies University and as the Adjunct Researcher
of the Financial Research Center, Fudan University
in 2019. In 2020, Prof Wu was officially nominated
as the Chairman of the Council of Artificial
Intelligence Research Institute of Donghua
University.
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COVID-19 Relief
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In 2020, COVID-19 devastated lives and livelihoods. To help our customers, colleagues and the community overcome unprecedented challenges, UOB

China called on the strength of the UOB network and our like-minded partners to offer various support options to see people through to better times.
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Supporting our customers in challenging times

In line with the government's COVID-19 relief measures, we developed a
series of relief measures to cushion the business impact on our clients.

With the sudden declaration of an extended Lunar New Year holiday and
lockdowns put in place to combat the virus, our relationship managers
engaged clients during the extended holiday to ensure their banking
needs could be met. From 29 January 2020, we waived the service charge
for any transaction related to medical support and donations related to
fighting COVID-19. We opened accelerated the funding application of a
pharmaceutical distribution company to help them to purchase medical
supplies for a hospital in dire need of equipment to fight the virus.

To help businesses manage the disruption COVID-19 caused to the
operations of companies in the manufacturing and trading sectors, UOB
China offered loan extensions. The Bank also actively communicated
with clients to understand their business challenges and to assist with
additional funding as necessary.

We took a multitude of precautionary measures at all our office buildings
and branches to protect customers who visited us. We also offered
information on updated operation hours for branches, in-branch safety
measures as well as social etiquette through our country site, official
WeChat and LED displays at branches. Given the need to reduce physical
interactions, we encouraged customers to use our online and mobile
banking services.

IG5 R RBE G RKIELF (£) HZRG10ELEIE,
HIEAERITHETTKREBATEFRE (F) X LESE

Mr Ren Kaifeng, former Deputy Head of Lujiazui Administrative Bureau (left),
received 200,000 face masks and sent a thank-you letter to Mr Peter Foo, President
and Chief Executive Officer, UOB China.
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Taking care of our colleagues

To ensure the health and well-being our colleagues, we stepped up
our safety measures. These measures included daily health monitoring,
providing personal protective gear, on-site nucleic acid testing and
sharing health tips frequently. We launched a new employee assistance
programme named Care U. The programme provides emotional support
and psychological consultation to colleagues and their family members
through a 24/7 service hotline and the Care U website.

We implemented flexible work and work from home arrangements in
accordance with local policies. We also rolled out new virtual meetings
and instant messaging applications including Skype, Microsoft Teams and
Yammer. These tools enable our colleagues to connect and collaborate
virtually, securely and productively.

Stepping up to protect the vulnerable

In 2020, UOB China donated personal protective gear worth RMB650,000
to support local communities to help combat the virus.

We partnered with Youcheng China Social Entrepreneurship Foundation
and YesKids to provide 100,000 surgical face masks to doctors in hospitals,
frontline service workers, community volunteers, journalists and the
elderly in six provinces and cities across China including Hubei Province.

We also donated 31 photocatalytic high efficiency particulate air filters
to Experimental Learning Preschool under Jingzhou Primary School in
Jingzhou City, Hubei province. These air filters help trap and remove
harmful viruses in the air and protected more than 400 children and
teachers in the school.
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Providing Customers with Seamless Connectivity Across Our Network
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UOB has long believed in the fundamental strengths and prospects of ASEAN. At UOB China, we help our customers advance their businesses

responsibly by capitalising on our network connectivity across ASEAN and China. Beyond overcoming the immediate economic impact from the

COVID-19 pandemic, ASEAN and China's long-term connectivity and collaboration will continue to be driven by the diversification of global supply

chains, as well as multilateral collaborations such as the Regional Comprehensive Economic Partnership.

We help our customers to overcome the challenges of today and to emerge stronger tomorrow. With our unique combination of in-market presence,

local insights and expertise, coupled with the partner ecosystems we forge, we help businesses sharpen their capabilities and connect them to

opportunities domestically and in ASEAN's diversified markets.
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more than 30 per cent year-on-year growth in both
the number of clients and credit facilities under
our FSCM programmes
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Addressing companies' liquidity needs

In 2020, we continued to offer clients financial supply chain management
(FSCM) programmes comprising end-to-end financing solutions and cost-
efficient trade facilities that are tailored to meet their specific sectoral
needs. We do so by analysing their business models and supply chains,
followed by developing standardised processes for financing applications
and approvals, disbursement and post-loan servicing.

These FSCM programmes also enable us to provide our clients' supply
chain partners, which are mostly small- and medium-sized enterprises
(SMEs), with easier access to financing solutions that can help lower their
financing costs and improve their cash flow. In doing so, we are supporting
our clients in building and maintaining healthy supply chains with win-win
outcomes for all parties.

In 2020, we recorded more than 30 per cent year-on-year growth in both
the number of clients and credit facilities under our FSCM programmes.

Since becoming a member of the Shanghai Futures Exchange (SHFE) in
2019, we have been expanding our suite of trading products and services,
which has led to a continued growth of our commodity and bullion
business. To address changing business needs, in 2020 we launched trading
solutions to enable our clients to improve inventory turnover, to alleviate
cash flow pressure and to manage commodity risks more effectively.
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* The SHFE Warrant is a standard delivery certificate issued by delivery warehouse
certified by a futures exchange. It serves as a medium between futures and physicals to
settle futures contracts.

For example, we tapped SHFE's warehouse warrant financing to help
commodity companies overcome liquidity challenges. Due to slowing and
uncertain demand, sales and distribution amid the global pandemic, these
companies held higher inventory levels, which resulted in increased costs
and greater need for working capital. We repurchased a silver warehouse
warrant* from a mining client on SHFE's standard warehouse warrant
trading system and signed a forward contract to sell it back on a future
date. This financing approach enabled the client to improve its inventory
turnover and to save financing costs of up to 30 per cent.

We also launched a one-day delivery service for physical commodities
and completed the first transaction in September. This was SHFE's first
one-day physical commodities delivery transaction after it announced
the shortening of the gold delivery period from five days to one day after
trading. Through this transaction, we addressed our client's demand for
gold and helped to improve its capital efficiency.

Since the State Council's release of the Outline of the Development
Plan for the Greater Bay Area (GBA), cross-border investment and
financing activities have increased in the GBA. In conjunction with the
first anniversary of the plan, we launched our Cross-Border Fast Payment
service to UOB China and UOB Hong Kong's commercial banking clients
located in the GBA to meet their increasing need for cross-border
liquidity management. As part of the service, we offer preferential rates to
help our clients reduce operating costs and optimise returns so that they
can achieve efficient and effective cross-border fund management.

Connecting businesses to regional opportunities

ASEAN's connectivity with China was enhanced in 2020, becoming
China's biggest trade partner and one of the most preferred overseas
investment destinations, as COVID-19 disrupted global supply chains and
amid geopolitical tensions. The region benefitted as companies began
diversifying their supply chains into countries such as Indonesia, Malaysia,
Thailand and Vietnam — often using Singapore as a springboard, while
maintaining presence in key markets within China.

Through UOB's entrenched network presence in these markets, we
are placed strategically to support businesses as they capitalise on
opportunities along the regional trade corridors between China and
ASEAN.

To help businesses expand regionally, we combine our banking expertise
and local market understanding with on-the-ground support, assisting
them in seeking and seizing cross-border opportunities.

For example, UOB's 10 dedicated Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) Advisory
Centres in Asia have been offering businesses with local market insights,
market-entry support and holistic banking solutions. As at the end of
2020, UOB Group has supported more than 3,500 companies in their
cross-border expansion, of which 45 per cent are Chinese enterprises.
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In 2020, we deepened our business relationship with a world-leading
construction machinery manufacturer by tapping UOB's network strengths
to support its development strategy along the Belt and the Road. In
addition to customised financing solutions, we offered the company one-
stop foreign exchange (FX) service for ASEAN currencies service to help
mitigate its FX risks and to support its business needs across the region.

During the year, we also supported a large, leading Chinese contractor in
the business of power generation and transmission infrastructure. Together
with UOB Indonesia and UOB Thailand, we developed an integrated cross-
border cash and trade financing solution to meet the client's financial
needs in China and ASEAN. Our FDI Advisory team also offered market-
entry support as the client entered into new ASEAN markets.

The technology, media, and telecommunications sector is one of the key
sectors we identified as key drivers of the economic growth. In 2020, we
signed a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with a high-technology
client in Yangtze River Delta to provide integrated and multi-channel
financial solutions to support its ongoing innovations in third-party
analytics in both China and ASEAN. By doing so, we help contribute to the
development of the high-technology industry in our region.

In 2020, we also worked closely with government agencies, exchanges,
professional service providers and business partners to host more than 10
physical and virtual events for our clients. These sessions aimed to help
businesses of different scale learn more about market trends and explore
cross-border opportunities in ASEAN.

In August, we hosted a seminar jointly with the Xian Municipal Government
on ASEAN's investment and trade opportunities. We also assisted the
State Administration of Foreign Exchange Research Centre to organise a
seminar that was themed "ASEAN Currency Direct Exchange and Trade
Opportunities” in September.

In November, we showcased our comprehensive cross-border solutions
at the China International Import Expo for the third consecutive year. We
also participated in the annual China-ASEAN Expo and helped attendees
understand investment opportunities and challenges in ASEAN through
various business networking events organised by the government agencies
from ASEAN countries.
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Deepening relationships with Chinese banks in ASEAN

In 2020, we strengthened our relationship with financial institution clients
and deepened strategic collaborations with our Chinese banking partners.

As part of our extended strategic partnership with Hengfeng Bank, we
jointly launched a one-stop trade service to help more Chinese companies
tap cross-border business opportunities and to facilitate business and
trade flow between China and ASEAN. Hengfeng Bank's clients are able to
access UOB's extensive network franchise in ASEAN and tailored cross-
border trade and remittances services. Through Hengfeng Bank's client
and channel resources, we are also able to expand our base of clients with
cross-border needs.

In September 2020, we supported our parent company, UOB, in
facilitating the S$500 million three-year fixed rate notes issuance, as joint
global coordinator, joint lead manager and bookrunner, for the Singapore
branch of a leading state-owned Chinese bank. We successfully achieved
the issuer's price and size objectives, demonstrating UOB's syndication
capabilities in the Singapore dollar bond market. Our strong collaboration
on product and distribution channels across our markets also reinforces
the close relationships we hold with our key Chinese bank clients.

Serving companies' cross-border renminbi (RMB) needs

With China's continued financial liberalisation and the enhanced
connectivity between China and ASEAN, more enterprises use RMB for
cross-border settlements, trade and financing. Drawing on the strengths of
UOB's regional network, we strengthened our cross-border RMB products
and capabilities to support businesses in a more efficient way.

In May 2020, China announced the financial opening-up and innovation
policies at the Shanghai Lin-Gang Special Area, an expanded area of
Shanghai's Pilot Free Trade Zone. Our clients were keen to explore
cross-border business opportunities in this area. We promptly engaged
relevant regulatory bodies to obtain more detailed information for our
development of cash management solutions tailored to our clients' needs.

Working closely with a corporate client, in November 2020 we launched
our first multi-currency cross-border cash pool in the Lin-Gang Special
Area. With this solution, our client has access to one-stop cross-border
funding, which helps them to save operating time and labour costs.

We also rolled out more customised cross-border RMB cash sweeping
and centralised management solutions. In 2020, our China-Thailand cross-
border cash sweeping service went live successfully.

In November 2020, we became one of the first foreign bank members of
the Cross-Border RMB Trade Finance Trading Platform and completed our
first deal on this system. Through the platform, we can provide trading
and commodity clients access to safer, more efficient and transparent
cross-border RMB trading services and contribute to greater inter-regional
trade flows.
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Enabling companies to manage cross-border market risks more effectively

With increased volatility in global financial markets, we encourage
companies to take a risk-first approach in their business expansion. We
provided a suite of financial tools to help them manage cost and risk
while also growing their business.

We expanded our ASEAN Currency One-stop Service to provide direct
exchange of RMB with multiple currencies including the Singapore dollar
(SGD), Thai baht (THB), Malaysian ringgit (MYR) and Indonesian rupiah
(IDR), as well as financing and hedging solutions in ASEAN currencies.
Through the service, our clients are able to control the cost of exchange
in multiple currencies, to mitigate FX risk and to meet their onshore and
offshore transaction needs.

Since the launch of the service, we have helped many corporate clients
optimise FX efficiency and enhance their bargaining power internationally.
We also contributed to greater liquidity for ASEAN currencies in China's
foreign exchange market. As we have done so, we have also received client
and industry recognition such as the third prize at the Shanghai Financial
Innovation Awards by the Shanghai Municipal People's Government.

Building on our ASEAN Currency One-Stop Service, we launched the
Letter of Credit in MYR in conjunction with direct FX. Together with
UOB Malaysia, in 2020 we successfully supported a leading state-owned-
enterprise to complete its first direct MYR/CNY conversion and cross-
border RMB collection. Our progressive solutions provide our clients with
the convenience they need for cross-border payments, settlements and
collections.

We also signed a MOU with one of Chinas leading gold mining companies,
a milestone in the deepening of our strategic relationship with the client.
Under the MOU, we connect the client and its subsidiaries to our full
range of tailored financial services and solutions including trade financing,
cash management, gold loans, FX and commodity hedging. Working
closely with the rest of UOB Group, we also help the client to overcome
the challenges arising from global market volatility and to seek regional
growth opportunities.
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Creating Solutions Essential to Customers' Life Stages and Lifestyles
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The COVID-19 pandemic and its impact on the economy and society have led to more people reflecting on the importance of financial security. In light

of the macro challenges, coupled with our affluent customers' growing financial needs, UOB China accelerated the pace of transformation of our retail

banking business to provide more quality and distinctive wealth management services in 2020.
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UOB's redefined customer value proposition

Redefining our customer value propositions

The changing circumstances in 2020 reshaped the financial priorities,
investment approaches and lifestyles of the affluent segment. To serve
our customers better, we sharpened our wealth value proposition around
"Infinite Wealth', which includes three focus areas, namely wealth assets,
wealth resources and wealth experiences. As our customers' trusted
financial partner, we draw on our expertise to help them safeguard and
grow their core assets. Tapping UOB's strong regional franchise and
network of alliances, we also built an ecosystem that connects our
customers to services offered across our network and by our strategic
partners. To address our customers' lifestyle needs, we also launched a
series of exclusive rewards and privileges to enrich their experiences.

With our professional wealth advisory expertise, complemented by
our network connectivity and distinctive customer experience, we
are committed to building trusted and lasting relationships with our
customers.

Engaging customers through an omni-channel approach

We engage and serve customers in the manner they prefer, whether
in person at the branch or digitally through internet banking, mobile
banking or our Direct Banking app. In 2020, we transformed our wealth
management service model and enhanced our digital marketing and
service channels for a better omni-channel experience.

During the pandemic, we launched "UOB Live Stream” and a WeChat
customer engagement tool to connect with our customers virtually. This
way, we could continue to provide our customers with timely market and
investment insights, as well as to offer a multitude of privileges within the
comfort of their own homes.
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Taking a Risk-First approach to growing customers' wealth

We use a Risk-First wealth approach, which focuses on building up core
assets before making tactical investment, when guiding customers on
their investment choices.

To this end, we are committed to working with the right product partners,
domestically and overseas, to offer a comprehensive range of solutions
across product types, asset classes and geographies. This enables our
customers to diversify their portfolios, to manage better the volatility
that could arise from market fluctuations in the region and to achieve
more stable returns on their investments.

Empowering women to live life to the fullest

Launched in 2019, our Lady's Programme which is the first initiative
dedicated to serving affluent women's financial needs by a foreign bank in
China, continued to enjoy strong support.

In 2020, we strengthened and integrated our service offering into the lifestyles
of our women customers. Collaborating with partners providing luxury
lifestyle, medical and other services, we organised a series of exclusive events
and provided special privileges so that our female customers could attend to
the financial and lifestyle needs with confidence.

Supporting education planning for the next generation

In recognition of the growing emphasis our customers place on their children's
education, we continued to work with quality education service providers and
offered one-stop financing solutions to help open educational opportunities
for the next generation. In 2020, we also ran a series of educational and
development programmes, including "Junior Bankers', "Future Leaders" and the
"Elite Youths’, for children aged six to 22 years old.

To help our customers prepare for the future, we hosted a Headmasters'
Talk Series, bringing in school principals from well-known educational
institutions in Shanghai and Beijing to explain admission policies and
application procedures. In addition, we invited international education
experts to share their insights on overseas education.

BRAHEBELREEFGE, RALSGRA

Harnessing technology to enhance customer experience and to drive performance

2020 F, HEBRFSEEFSER, BT fsMbEEER
BRI BI AT R A R IRPER . REML, BNRRBEFHER
BKEIRE, —MRERAMNERSSEZE2NRS, BNRREER
FERINBRZE.

BNES AR NERRITNZERSMEE, FRMIEL R
RE, ERATEZTNHRFRETERNEZTERL, HEFR
WRTEHFORS .

EABRTHRBARN -2, BINBEE2THEEANSTRER
&, FRRARERE, e SRRER,

EREEANBFURSHOFTRFUIBK, RNEEFTFanNRE
HMREMEATREES. 2020 E1 A, RMNERTHHORGER
ST AMERE, XMAMBEERTRTRENREE. RETHE
MRETIEY, BENGER T RITRENR SH 8

2020 FF, RERTEARE TEARDVRTEAHZARDIWHER
GHEREHME L, ZRFARTEFAEE-RIABEER
SR RERT ATNNEFURS, ARHEEREGANXS
ERHNENGRAIZNT N, E£PE, RTUIHENNRGH
TTHE, DUEEE 200 FRERERNELERX—MBRRE,

In 2020, the Bank, like other companies around the world, faced
unprecedented challenges from COVID-19. Our mission, despite the
challenges, was to provide uninterrupted and secure services for our
customers while keeping customers and colleagues safe as we did so.

We harnessed the power of technology to drive our banking services and
operations and pressed on with our strategic transformation initiative,
which afforded us greater operating resilience and customer service
capabilities, particularly in the changing and uncertain environment.

As part of our strategic transformation initiative, we integrated our
processing teams across branches and streamlined operating procedures
to improve business efficiency and productivity.

We kept the security and stability of our digital infrastructure at the
highest priority given the increased demand for digital services. In
November 2020, we completed the local High Availability setup for our
core banking systems. This ensures the robustness, service continuity and
reliability of our systems and further strengthens our capabilities and
resiliency in processing transactions at scale.

In 2020, the UOB Group launched UOB Infinity for Wholesale Banking
clients. First rolled out in Singapore, the solution offers a one-stop digital
service for our clients to manage a range of domestic and cross-border
banking activities and enables faster access and simplified transaction
authorisation while also ensuring security. In China, we upgraded our
systems to ensure it is ready for the rollout of UOB Infinity in China in 2021.
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Helping Our Colleagues Making a Meaning Difference
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In 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic brought huge headwinds and challenges to companies in China and other parts of the world. Companies needed to put

in place precautionary measures to protect their employees' health welfare and well-being, including offering remote work arrangements, as well as to

accelerate their digital capabilities in the areas of training and development into the new era.

At UOB, we see it as our duty to care for the professional and personal development of our people. Core to this is offering reskilling and upskilling opportunities

to ensure our talents are future ready. We harness digital technologies to broaden access to learning resources and to maximise learning efficiency.
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A Better U participant is completing an online assessment on her mobile.
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Encouraging the professional and personal growth of our colleagues

In May 2020, UOB China launched Better U, UOB's Group-wide holistic
learning and development programme. The programme comprises a 12-
week online foundation course consisting of five core modules, including
Growth Mindset, Problem Solving, Digital Awareness, Human-Centred
Design and Data Storytelling, to equip colleagues with the required
knowledge and skills to stay relevant in the future. It is the first training
initiative that covers soft skills as well as digital and data skills accredited
by the Institute of Banking and Finance Singapore (IBF).

To ignite the learning interests of our Gen-Z colleagues and to fit learning into
their daily lives, Better U uses game-based learning. Colleagues are able to
engage in different activities on the digital learning system that offers points,
status and rewards as they improve their skills, posts short videos or share, like
and comment on other's posts. A leaderboard on the digital learning system

generates real-time points to encourage learning engagement.

m Better U &
JolEa Y | )

F I Better U F51 2
Colleagues at the Better U kick-off session

K HEX TG R R "Level | I B IRFEZ SIF 5T AL AT B IREEF HEIEH
UOB China colleagues presenting their certificates on the successful completion of
the GCLA programme
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UOB Greater China Leadership Academy Level Two Programme

At the end of 2020, 735 colleagues successfully completed the Better U
foundation programme and obtained the certificate jointly issued by UOB
and IBF.

As part of nurturing the next generation of leaders, our high performing
talents from mainland China, Hong Kong and Taipei participated in the
Greater China Leadership Academy (GCLA) programme. This year, we
offered a fresh take on the programme by introducing new learning
modules. A total of 50 colleagues participated in Level One and Level
Two courses.

The GCLA Level One programme includes a five-day learning module
themed "Agile and Aware Leadership" to help junior-level people managers
progress from an individual contributor to a competent people manager.
Participants complete various learning activities to develop self-awareness
as well as effective collaboration and problem solving skills. For the
first time, we introduced an American football game as an experiential
learning approach to motivate participants to build high performing
teams. In addition, to help participants apply the knowledge they learned,
the trainers also arranged assignments and offered feedback on personal

improvement.

The GCLA Level Two programme, themed Leading Teams for Growth,
is for middle-level people managers. It contains three modules namely
Team, Empowerment and Innovation to enable managers to improve
their skills in leading high-performing teams, to empower their teams
to make smart decisions and to sharpen their innovative and strategic
thinking. In partnership with International Business School Suzhou at Xian
Jiaotong-Liverpool University, the programme includes immersive learning
experiences such as developing real business pitches. The participants
learned business challenges from two international companies, developed
solutions and pitched their proposals to the CEOs of the companies as
part of generating business opportunities for UOB.
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We also continued with the Leadership Acceleration Programme, UOB's
Group-wide programme to identify future leaders from within. A total of
23 high-performing candidates with leadership potential across different
functions joined a Virtual Development Day. They participated in different
activities including leadership assessments, role-plays and business
simulations, which assisted them in gaining a holistic view of their
personal strengths and competencies.

In 2020, UOB China launched the Cross-Function Mentoring Programme.
The first nine-month programme started in October 2020. It aims to
draw on the expertise of subject-matter experts to help colleagues
deepen capabilities by acquiring cross-functional knowledge and skills,
and strengthening cross-functional collaboration. The inaugural batch
comprised 20 employees and 17 mentors from across the Bank.

UOB China has always placed great importance to grooming young
talents. In 2020, 14 early-career talents across markets in Greater China
graduated from the Management Associate (MA) Programme and settled
in various business units to continue with their career development.
We also welcomed 14 new young partners joining the MA Programme.
Different from MAs in previous years, the new MAs were recruited to
meet UOB China Wholesale Banking's need for a pool of talents. The
programme will match the MAs with business departments based upon
each other's choice once the MA completes the programme. This means
that every MA will be exposed to more business departments through
rotation and develop in-depth understanding of the Bank's Wholesale
Banking business. This will help them determine their career path and
contribute to the business development of the department they select.

Caring for our colleagues

To help colleagues maintain their work-life harmony and personal
wellness, UOB China Staff Club collaborated with KEEP, an online fitness
app, to provide colleagues VIP access to online gym classes in 2020. We
also offered exclusive staff deals and privileges covering medical care
and insurance plans, as well as home furnishing and car discounts to all
colleagues.

FEEZAR. LIERHFTE, "RROR, BEFEH

Opening Minds and Hearts to Build an Inclusive Society through Art, Children and Education
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Enriching lives and strengthening societal bonds in our communities are fundamental to our business philosophy.

At UOB, our corporate social responsibility (CSR) efforts from across the Group come together under the UOB Heartbeat CSR
programme. The programme aims to create sustainable good for a more caring and inclusive society through corporate philanthropy,
stakeholder partnerships and employee participation. Guided by our values of Honour, Enterprise, Unity and Commitment, we draw

together our colleagues, customers and ecosystem partners to make a positive difference to our communities.

We focus on three areas which we believe are essential for the quality and progress of society: art, children and education.
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Scan this code to access our WeChat programme

Making art accessible to all during trying times

As the world continues to battle COVID-19, we need art more than ever to
connect and to open hearts and minds to inspire resilience and creativity
as well as promote mental well-being. This year, UOB China hosted UOB
Art Season for the second year encompassing several art programmes
virtually and physically to make art accessible to all.

UOB Art Explorer

UOB China introduced the UOB Art Explorer, an online visual arts
programme to help the public learn and explore art through a
comprehensive series of art tutorials (Art At Home), art therapy sessions
(Art As Therapy), and virtual exhibitions (Art Virtually).

In 2020, we launched our first online art exhibition, Art Virtually, enabling
viewers to appreciate winning artworks from UOB Painting of the Year and UOB
Art in Ink winning artists across the region on our virtual UOB Art Gallery.

To provide greater access to our art programmes, digital contents from
the UOB Art Explorer are made available on UOB and Art WeChat Mini

Programme.

< r
UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020 37 ____‘.._’\



EEERE
2020 in Review

ABMARSEZRED . 2ZEMELE, RNEBIENAENE
RERTZEFIERERR/NEF LEBCHER, SR M
ALEERSE, ANBEFEEREZERER, KREIMRRED
MNE, AURKNBAABRE—F2EE, BEZBH, BRINSHEFZ
BEEmammzt X2 R4 LR 1200 KL EE,

FutureLab #{#i&

R RERTZARFMNETELEY, BROESE_FEIER
SRR Futurelab ZR5RITEIFARAEHES (BHER) .
BESELREN, RN ZEASRUIHEBERNIXERNEENE

RERTE.,

WRER, ERTHEANSIHRZIATE, ARTUER"KRER
FEZARR TERRARRAETRT; BINBEEFIAK. &
BR. yNEBRAANMANETLALFRERXNIE, BNEEEXR
ERTERLBERBRIRIARARESENABMENT 6 HZART
&85, LR NRRE AT NERZARCIERN KBGO R
hE.

o

WRIFER AKX ERT "B ZARREIZ T 1Ein
A visitor appreciating the exhibited artworks at the UOB Art Space
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Students at Yongbang preschool in Yunnan Province diving into art making
with their new sketch books

UOB China partnered with Huang Yi Cong Foundation to encourage
the public to participate and submit their artwork entries on the mini-
programme after watching the Art At Home series. The Foundation also
donated one sketch book for every engagement of WeChat Fans. To date, a
total of 1,200 sketch books were donated to children living in remote areas.

2020 FutureLab

This year, we continue to be the Lead Partner at the Art and Design
Education: Futurelab, for the second consecutive year. FuturelLab is
Chinas first and only international art and design exposition targeted at
students pursuing art as a career.

We hosted the UOB Art Space and curated a series of art activities,
including UOB Art Explorer, forums, dialogues, art workshops and
exhibitions. We also collaborated with UOB POY (Singapore) artists, Ms
Hu Jingxuan and Ms Yoko Choi, to organise six workshops on art making
and art as therapy.

BFZARFK AT L EL A G5 FHEHTHIRZAREIE

Ms Hu Jingxuan guided students in cloisonné making at one of the art workshops.

Lead Partner

“HEIXBEH AR T30 R BN

Extending our reach through partnerships at the launch ceremony
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Beneficiaries of our joint programme with Yicai Foundation learnt to paint their world
through Art at Home tutorials

'Forging a Sustainable Future for Art Education' initiative

To make art accessible for all, we collaborated with six community
partners to launch the 'Forging a Sustainable Future for Art Education’
initiative. They include FutureLab, Lujiazui Financial City Development
Foundation, Nomena Art, Shanghai Helin Art Promotion Institution,
Shanghai United Foundation and Yicai Foundation. Different art
programmes were developed for a common goal — to promote art
education and to inspire the next generation of artists, especially among
children from disadvantaged backgrounds. UOB China will progressively
launch art programmes for children living in rural villages (Art for Rural
Children) and urban workers (Art for Urban Workers).

We collaborated with Shanghai Helin Art Promotion Institution, a
Shanghai-based non-profit public art institution, to promote art and
improve the quality of art education in remote areas in Yunnan as well as
Yicai Foundation, to provide online art tutorials for two schools in Yunan.
To raise appreciation for art, we also partnered Lujiazui Financial City
Development Foundation, to provide a series of art activities to office

workers, children and the public in Lujiazui area.

Developing young minds

Read for Good

In 2020, UOB China collaborated with Hug Chinese Philanthropy and

Amity Foundation to launch the Read for Good programme to promote

literacy development among early readers in rural villages.

A
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Keeping the Good Going through Tencent Gongyi on WeChat
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The programme aimed to provide books for close to 1,600 disadvantaged
children across five schools in the Yunnan Province. To ensure these books
are relevant during this pandemic, we also worked closely with charity
partners to select genres on hygiene, health and positive mindsets. Hug
Chinese Philanthropy would also train 108 teachers in schools over 12
months to coach and assist children in reading.

Preschools of the Future

Through a partnership with Shanghai Huji Foundation, a non-profit
organisation founded by entrepreneurs in Shanghai, we supported the
'Preschools of the Future' programme in improving quality of preschool
education in rural China.

This initiative included supporting a kindergarten in Pu'er, in Ximeng
County, Yunnan Province, through the funding of education for 30
children, and through systematic management and professional guidance
for teachers and local village committees.

Uniting our hearts through our fundraising and volunteering efforts

In support of the 2020 UOB Heartbeat COVID-19 Relief Fund, we helped
vulnerable and affected communities by raising a total of RMB160,000.

This year marks our ninth year participating in the UOB Heartbeat Run/
Walk, our annual flagship regional volunteering and fundraising event. Even
though we were unable to meet physically for this event, our colleagues
and families walked or ran distances for charity, on an own-time, own-
target basis before logging their achievements on their preferred smart
device. For every kilometre clocked, UOB Group will donate S$1 to the
UOB Heartbeat COVID-19 Relief Fund. As a Group, UOB accumulated
more than 200,000 km across 18 markets.

We launched a similar fundraiser in China through Tencent Gongyi, a
crowdfunding site for charitable giving on our WeChat mini programme,
in support of our Read for Good programme. Our colleagues, WeChat
fans, partners and the public were invited to clock steps through their
WeChat sports accounts. We matched donations for every step clocked
and achieved more than 250,000,000 steps from 6,655 participants.
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Our volunteer engaging with a beneficiary from Huayang Special Children Care
Centre in Shenzhen
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Ms Cynthia Xin, Head of Corporate Banking, UOB China and Mr Albert Yuan, Head
of Transaction Banking, UOB China hosted the live stream charity sale event.

Besides sports, online bazaar and staff donations, we also hosted our
first live streaming charity sale for all colleagues in China. All items were
donated by our clients, and senior management.

Our colleagues also donated close to 300 books donated for early
readers.

Besides monetary contribution, our colleagues unite as one to give
their time, skills and service to help build strong, inclusive and caring
communities.

Before the pandemic hit, our Commercial Banking colleagues continued
their Lunar New Year community outreach with a festive celebration
for children from Huayang Special Children Care Centre in Shenzhen.
Colleagues in Shanghai also facilitated an interactive and educational
financial literacy session with children from Ju Yuan kindergarten in
Pudong District.

BT A28 IR E BT X 1 3 4L % T BRI AR

Our volunteers taught children the value of money through an interactive game.
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Promoting financial literacy and enhancing consumer protection and fair dealing

With our customers' interests at the heart of what we do, we seek to
create solutions that help them manage their daily and future needs,
however simple or complex. One of the ways we do this is being
committed to fair dealing and raising awareness of financial knowledge.

In 2020, we conducted consumer protection promotions online during
COVID-19 pandemic. We developed comic strips, short videos, interactive
games and other engaging online content to provide and engage
consumers with information to make informed choices about their
financial activities through the Bank's official website, WeChat accounts,
digital bank and branches. A total of 140 activities were carried out with
834 colleagues and close to 111,000 consumers participated.

In line with World Consumer Rights Day, the Bank launched an interactive
digital game on WeChat, where consumers attempt questions relating
to consumer rights. With its creative and interactive design, the
game attracted more than 2,500 participants, and helped deepen an
understanding on financial security and risk awareness on consumers'
independent rights.
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The interface of the online interactive game to create awareness on consumer rights
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In 2020, the Bank received 68 customer complaints, including 65 retail
banking and three wholesale banking complaints across Shanghai, Beijing,
Shenyang and Guangzhou. Our commitment to service excellence extends
to our customer resolution process and how we manage our customers'
complaints. At UOB China, we treat our customers fairly and provide them
with an independent and objective resolution process to help resolve all
complaints effectively and swiftly. 100 per cent of customer complaints
were addressed according to the established process and within timeline.

In providing responsive complaint handling driven by values of trust,
transparency, respect and confidence, we received two awards at the
Financial Dispute Resolution Golden Star Awards organised by Financial
Ombudsman Service Shanghai.

We continue to remain committed to maintaining the highest standards
on fair dealing and do what is right and fair for our customers.
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Awards and Accolades
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UOB China was honoured Foreign Bank of the Year for Cross-border Financial
Services and Ms Adaline Zheng, Head of Wholesale Banking, UOB China (second
from the left) received the award presented by Yicai Media Group.
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2019 China Financial Value Ranking - Yicai Media Group
 Foreign Bank of the Year for Cross-border Financial Services

The Triple A Awards 2020 - Treasury, Trade Supply Chain and Risk
Management - The Asset
« Best Banks in China - Best Service Provider in Liquidity
Management
 Best Liquidity and Investments Solutions
» Best Payments and Collections Solutions

The Asian Banker China Awards 2020 - The Asian Banker
e Banker's Choice Awards — Best Financial Supply Chain
Management in China

Adam Smith Awards Asia 2020 - Treasury Today
 Best Liquidity Management Solution - Highly Recommended

2019 Shanghai Financial Innovation Awards - Shanghai Municipal
People's Government
 Third prize - ASEAN Currency One-stop Service

2020 SHFE standard warehouse warrant trading system - Shanghai
Futures Exchange
» Best trading member

2020 Shanghai Futures Exchange
* Best progress award

2020 Structured Retail Products (SRP) China Awards - SRP, a part of
Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

» Best international House (Onshore)

» Best Distributor, Non-Domestic Bank

e Best Performance, Non-Domestic Bank

2020 Pioneer Financial Institution Awards - International Financial News
« Pioneer Retail Bank
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UOB China won seven awards in Treasury, Trade Supply Chain and Risk Management
at the Triple A Awards 2020. Mr Albert Yuan, Head of Transaction Banking attended
the award ceremony to receive the awards.
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Mr Winston Lim, Head of Personal Financial Services, UOB China (right) received the
Outstanding Award for Customer Service of Global Asset Allocation at Global Asset
Allocation Awards 2020.
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Ms Amy Hong, Head of Human Resources, UOB Greater China receiving Top 100
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China Best Employers and Best Employers for Female Employees at 2020 China Best
Employer Awards
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Mr Paul Zhou, Head of Sales and Distribution, Personal Financial Services, UOB
China (second from the right) received the Pioneer Retail Bank Award presented by
International Financial News.
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Ms Sabrina Fu, Head of Strategic Communications and Brand, UOB China (sixth from
left) receiving Excellence Award in Innovation at the ceremony of Excellence Awards
for Corporate Social Responsibility

Global Asset Allocation Awards 2020 - China Decision Makers
Consultancy (CDMC) Group and CDMC Institute
» Outstanding Award for Customer Service of Global Asset
Allocation

Advanced Unit Award Recognition for the Shanghai Municipal
Clearing System - People's Bank of China Shanghai

2020 China Best Employer Awards -Zhaopin.com
» Top 100 China Best Employers
» Best Employers for Female Employees

Excellence China Awards 2020 - 51job.com

e 100 Employer Excellence of China
e Excellence in Digital HR Management Practices

Work Different Awards 2020 - Liepin.com
» Extraordinary Transformation Employer Award (Eastern China)

2020 Excellence Awards for Corporate Social Responsibility -
Shanghai Daily
» Excellence Award in Innovation
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UOB China is committed to upholding good corporate governance and is
guided by the following in this regard:

a) the People's Republic of China (PRC) Company Law;

b) the PRC Commercial Bank Law;

c) the PRC Regulations on Administration of Foreign-Funded Banks and
the Rules for Implementing the PRC Regulations on Administration of
Foreign-Funded Banks; and

d) other relevant regulatory requirements.

The Board of Directors (Board), Board Committees, the Supervisors and
Senior Management perform their respective duties according to the laws
and regulations of the country and the provisions in the Bank's Articles of
Association.

Board of Directors

The current Board comprises five members, two of whom are independent
directors. The size and composition of the Board comply with regulatory
requirements and the provisions in the Bank's Articles of Association.
Details of the Board members are shown in the table below:
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Name Gender Age Position Current Term of Office

B—R % 68 BEK/ FRTERIES 2090FE9FVVHE20R2E9HF6H
Wee Ee Cheong Male Chairman/Non-executive and non-independent  From 17 September 2019 to 16 September 2022

director

aRiSd 3 58
Peter Foo Moo Tan  Male
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Executive and non-independent director (President From 28 October 2019 to 27 October 2022

2019410 B 28 HE 202410827 H

and Chief Executive Officer)

M #7155 B z 57 FHRITEMRIES
Christine Ip Female
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Liu Erh Fei Male Independent director
REH 5 62 Th EE

Wu Yu Hua Male Independent director

EFcHEERGENT:

o AHRITIEMAMKEE TR, HARTEBARAER, HARTHNEES
THIMEERE RS L IstR

s HERTHNE, HERAEXEYWRSE, TXEINLERRE
TSN, BIREANKE. HERAERER, HEBEAN
HiE. HERREERMNEERR LR,

s BERZHLEBRITHOIVEEMERIMURIERTELAALNYS
REFR;

A 46 kT (hE) BRAE 2020 FERES

Non-executive and non-independent director

200047 B 2R AE 203478 NH
From 12 July 2020 to 11 July 2023

20194E 11 B 16 HE 2022 €1 B 15 H
From 16 November 2019 to 15 November 2022

208FE8H29HFE2021E£6 H5H
From 29 August 2018 to 5 June 2021

The main responsibilities of the Board are to:

« provide strategic directions, approve strategic business initiatives, and
approve business plans, annual budget and key performance indicators;

e To determine the environmental, social and governance (ESG) factors
that are material to the Bank, consider sustainability issues, including
material ESG factors, in formulating its strategies, and oversee the
management and monitoring of the material ESG factors;

e review and monitor the business and financial performance of the
Bank, and approve true and fair financial statements;
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e determine an appropriate capital/debt structure;

» set dividend policy and declare dividends;

e perform succession planning for the Board and Senior Management;

e putin place an effective management team;

e oversee the establishment of comprehensive risk management
policies, processes and infrastructure to manage various types of risk
(including outsourcing risk);

e determine the risk tolerance, risk appetite and risk profile of the Bank
and approve credit discretionary limits;

e review and monitor the risk management, internal audit and
compliance functions and ensure that these functions are adequately
resourced;

e evaluate the performance of the President and Chief Executive Officer
(CEO) and Senior Management;

e ensure that Management establishes appropriate procedures and
processes to avoid situations that may give rise to improper personal
gains or conflicts of interests;

e review and approve the Bank's system of controls relating to
connected transactions;

e set corporate culture, values and ethical standards;

e review the Bank's information disclosure policy and be responsible for
the authenticity, accuracy and integrity of the information disclosed;

e review and approve the composition and terms of reference of the
Board and Board committees;

e endorse directors' fees for recommendation to the shareholder;

e report to the shareholder; and

« exercise such other power as authorised by the shareholder and
perform such other functions as required by the laws, regulations and
the Bank's Articles of Association.

The Board meets at least four times a year. Additional Board meetings
would be convened whenever necessary.

In 2020, the Board held four meetings. The quorum for each meeting was met.

The Bank's Articles of Association also provide for the Board to make
decisions by way of circular resolutions.

The Board passed three resolutions by way of circulation in 2020.

The procedures for convening Board meetings, the quorum required
for constituting the meetings, the proceedings at the meetings, and the
procedures for voting and passing of resolutions were in compliance with
the requirements of applicable PRC laws and regulations and the Bank's
Articles of Association. The minutes of all Board meetings and circular
resolutions are properly maintained by the Company Secretary.
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Board Committees

The Board has delegated specific functions to five Board Committees,
namely, Executive Committee (EXCO), Connected Transactions Control
Committee (CTCC), Audit Committee (AC), Nominating and Remuneration
Committee (NRC) and Board Risk Management Committee (BRMC).

(1) Executive Committee
a. The EXCO members are Mr Wee Ee Cheong (Chairman), Mr Peter Foo
Moo Tan and Mrs Christine Ip.

b. The EXCO oversees the following matters:

e the Bank's business operations, including formulating internal
policies and business strategies, monitoring the execution of
business plans and approving relevant credit limits; and

e human resource matters, except for those pertaining to the
President and CEO and Deputy President.

c. The EXCO held one meeting in 2020.

(2) Connected Transactions Control Committee
a. The CTCC members are Mr Wu Yu Hua (Chairman), Mrs Christine Ip
and Mr Liu Erh Fei.

b. The CTCC's main responsibilities are to:
» establish the framework for managing connected transactions;
» oversee the management of connected transactions and associated risks;
» review non-material connected transactions; and
» review and submit material connected transactions to the Board
for approval.

c. The CTCC held one meeting in 2020.

d. The CTCC passed one resolution by way of circulation in 2020.
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(3) Audit Committee
The AC members are Mr Liu Erh Fei (Chairman), Mrs Christine Ip and
Mr Wu Yu Hua.

a.

The AC's main responsibilities are to review/oversee all matters

relating to:

financial statements, and internal and external audit plans and
reports;

the adequacy of internal accounting controls and material internal
controls;

the scope and results of internal and external audits;

the quality of, and any significant change in, accounting policies or
practices;

the adequacy of internal audit resources;

significant findings from internal and external auditors;

the establishment of a comprehensive governance framework,
including policy and process for managing fraud risk and
whistleblowing arrangement;

the approval of external auditor's fees; and

the nomination of the external auditor and the head of the internal
audit function.

c. The AC held four meetings in 2020.

(4) Nominating and Remuneration Committee
The NRC members are Mr Liu Erh Fei (Chairman), Mr Wee Ee Cheong,
Mr Wu Yu Hua and Mrs Christine Ip.

a.

The NRC's main responsibilities are to:

recommend nominees for appointment to the Board and Board
Committees;

recommend a framework for the remuneration of directors and
key senior executives (including the President and CEO and Deputy
President) for the Board's approval; and

establish a mechanism for the formal assessment of the
effectiveness of the Board as a whole, the contribution of the
various Board Committees and individual directors.

The NRC held one meeting in 2020.

The NRC passed one resolution by way of circulation in 2020.
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(5) Board Risk Management Committee
a. The BRMC members are Mrs Christine Ip (Chairman), Mr Wu Yu Hua
and Mr Liu Erh Fei.

b. The BRMC's main responsibilities are to:

» review and recommend risk management strategies, policies and
risk tolerance of the Bank for the Board's approval;

» oversee the establishment and operation of a robust and
independent risk management system that is consistent with the
strategies and policies approved by the Board;

» review and assess the adequacy and effectiveness of the Bank's risk
management framework and practice for identifying, measuring,
monitoring and controlling various types of risks;

» review regular management reports on risk exposures, risk portfolio
composition and the management and monitoring of such
exposures and portfolio composition; and

» report to the Board regularly and highlight any adverse risk event
or trend for the Board's attention.

c. The BRMC held four meetings in 2020.
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Supervisors

The Bank has two Supervisors who were nominated by the shareholder
and appointed in accordance with regulatory requirements and the Bank's
Articles of Association. They are Dr Wee Cho Yaw (Supervisor) and Prof
Cham Tao Soon (Deputy Supervisor).

The main responsibilities of the Supervisors include:

« inspecting the accounts and financial statements of the Bank;

e supervising the Board and Senior Management to ensure that the Bank
is run in a prudent manner and that the Board and Senior Management
take corrective actions where necessary;

o safeguarding the lawful rights and interests of the Bank, the
shareholder and other stakeholders, particularly the depositors; and

e exercising such other power and authority pursuant to the laws,
regulations and the Bank's Articles of Association, and as may be
authorised by the shareholder.

In 2020, the Supervisors duly discharged their responsibility of supervising
the Board and Senior Management strictly, in accordance with relevant
requirements, including the provisions under the PRC Company Law and
in the Bank's Articles of Association. In discharging their responsibility, the
Supervisors received and reviewed regular reports on the Bank's operations
and risk management, and conducted supervision of the operations and
financial position, and protection of consumer rights of the Bank and the
performance of the Directors and Senior Management. The Supervisors
also met with Directors and Senior Management, and attended Board
meetings.
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Name of Independent (k) (R)
Director No. of Board Meetings

Held Attended
X=7% 4 4
Liu Erh Fei
REL 4 4
Wu Yu Hua
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No. of Board Meetings

Performance of Independent Directors

There were two independent directors on the Board in 2020, namely Mr
Liu Erh Fei and Mr Wu Yu Hua. Mr Liu Erh Fei is the Chairman of the NRC
and AC, as well as a member of the CTCC and BRMC. Mr Wu Yu Hua is the
Chairman of the CTCC, as well as a member of the NRC, AC and BRMC.

For the year under review, both independent directors discharged their
duties diligently and responsibly. They contributed to the decision-making
and oversight by the Board and Board Committees and safeguarded the
rights and overall interests of the Bank and the shareholder.

(1) Attendance of Independent Directors' at Board Meetings in 2020

TR #iF
(k) Remarks

Absent with Apologies

(2) Dissent of Independent Directors

In 2020, Management did not give cause for the independent directors to
record their dissent on any matter.

Supervisors' and Directors' Access to Information

The Supervisors and Directors have unfettered access to information
and Management, and are provided with timely and comprehensive
financial, risk management and operational reports to facilitate informed
discussions during meetings. They also have access to the Company
Secretary whose responsibilities include advising the Supervisors
and Directors on regulatory changes and best practices in corporate
governance. The Supervisors and Directors may seek independent
professional advice in the course of discharging their duties at the Bank's
expense.
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Name Position

TR TKFEENGTE

FOO Moo Tan President and Chief

Peter Executive Officer
(CEO)

HERIE EIERRIS

YANG Rui Qi Alternate Country CEO

Mark FRENIRERIEE
Head, Global Markets

x|y HERKEEHE

LIU Ke Chief Risk Officer

Jenny

PR RERPFUHEE

LO Siu-Hong Head, Channels and

Rodney Digitalisation

e HERAE

TAN Kong Weng
Steven

KEF
ZHU Xuan

Brian

B
ZHENG Jun
Adaline

5
XIN Tao
Cynthia

BE
HUANG Ying
Christina

RE
YUAN Quan
Albert

Chief Information
Officer

HEMEE
Chief Financial Officer

MARRITEIBEE
Head, Wholesales
Banking

AW ERTEHEE
Head, Corporate
Banking

B ERTTED
EBXEE

Head, Commercial
Banking - Non-South
China

THBRITUESHEE
Head, Transaction
Banking

gl

Gender

Male

==
73

Male

Female

Male

Male

Male

S

Female

%

Female

xz

Female

Male

HaE
)

Year of
Birth

1962

1973

1970

1967

1976

1980

1980

1981

1972

1976

Senior Management Structure
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Assignment Highest Academic Degree
Commencement
2016F12F  FIMEEIAFHEL~EEFLREFN
Dec 2016 Bachelor of Science, Estate Management, Honours
National University of Singapore
FIF ST
Chartered Financial Analyst
202010 B RAMTRBRAKXZRN et
Oct 2020 Master of Applied Finance
2016 £10 H The University of Melbourne, Australia
Oct 2016
2016 1 7 FmEEFEIRF TREEML
Jan 2016 Master of Business Administration
Nanyang Technological University, Singapore
204 F6H FERtEREI K ZE
Jun 2014 HENS. EERAEE ; MAZIEN
EREEIRRE
Project Leadership, Management and Communications
Contracting for Project Managers
The George Washington University, USA
016F 678 FMHEEIAZTHERSELRERN
Jun 2016 Bachelor of Business Administration, Honours
National University of Singapore
018F7H EBXELUHEL
Jul 2018 Master of Professional Accounting
Fudan University
2018 2 B EERBRFEFRESMFEL
Feb 2018 Bachelor of International Finance
Shanghai Jiao Tong University
2020 1R KEETXAKFEFFL
Jan 2020 Master of Science in Economics
University of Nottingham, UK
2018F 4R HEMNRXFFZRERZT. SRSBITENL
Apr 2018 Master of Science in International
Economics Banking and Finance
Cardiff University, UK
2018 £ 5 B BASHRFEFFML
May 2018 Master of Economics

Rikkyo University, Japan

LEPSZL s
FRR
Relevant
Years of

Experience

33

25

27

26
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Name Position

BB BEMVRTHEE

ZHANG Xiao Head, Multinational

Andy Corporate
FELEDTTK

General Manager of
Shanghai Branch

WEEE MAEBRESBEE
LIM Pei Hong Head, Personal
Winston Financial Services
s AV RITERBEE
TEH Wee Jin Head, Corporate Credit
7iln BUYRITERSEE
YEOH Kian Soon Head, Commercial
Benedict Credit

padiE ANEFEBEE
HONG Xiao Yan Head, Human

Amy Resources

BIKIN, REPEITHREE
ZHANG Sa Head, Internal Audit
Sarah

T FEEMBHEE
WANG Yuan Head, Legal and

Eliza Secretariat

RE KK EREEE

XIONG Da Yong Head, Compliance

e REGEW S AR
FU Yue Head, Strategic

Sabrina Communications and
Brand

FREX EEAFTTK

LIM Lian Kian General Manager of
Beijing Branch

BXE SRR RS

SHING Tin Yau  General Manager of

Gordon Shenzhen Branch
FAER L RITH
BXIE

Head, Commercial
Banking - South China

S

"*/:____'_54

il

Gender

5
Male

E2
2

Male

==
73

Male

[=2]
73

Male

%

Female

xz

Female
S
Female

Male

Fermale

Male

>
Male

KERIT (PE) HRAT 2020 FEHRE

HE EH B=%h HRER
FH R FIR
Year of Assignment Highest Academic Degree Relevant
Birth  Commencement Years of
Experience
1971 204 F9 R EEMEXRS - XEFRIRFAZIHEED L 27
Sep 2014 Master of Business Administration
Shanghai University of Finance and Economics and Webster
2018 4F 12 B University
Dec 2018
1975 2015410 B I EFE T KFRITF L REFN 19
Oct 2015 Bachelor of Accountancy, Honours
Nanyang Technological University, Singapore
1958 2008 £ 9 A FREZAFEFHFL 39
Sep 2008 Bachelor of Commerce
University of Otago, New Zealand
1970 204F7R  ZEFWEEEAFEFFE LT 25
Jul 2014 Bachelor of Science
Carnegie Mellon University, USA
1977 2007 F EBEBRETIHEEML 23
Dec 2007 Master of Business Administration
Fudan University
1972 2016 F£1H EEAAMIKFHAFETHEERM L 27
Jan 2016 Master of Corporate Finance and Accounting
State University of New York at Buffalo, USA
1974 200712 B EEXFIHEEML 24
Dec 2007 Master of Business Administration
Fudan University
1970 2017 £ 8 B SEERFEEFEL 17
Aug 2017 Doctor of Finance
Fudan University
1977 20N 5 A HEMNZRFEFRTHEESML 20
May 2011 Master of Science in International Marketing Management
University of Leeds, UK
1973 20847 A ZEBENNEDMAFIERE S 24
Jul 2018 Bachelor of Science
University of South Alabama, USA
1970 209F8H ABEIXFHEFREEEFML 26
Aug 2019 Master of Science in China Business Studies
Hong Kong Polytechnic University
2019 4£3 B
Mar 2019

e

Name

SEES
FAN Nan Hong
Frank

B IR BT
CHEN Yi-Hsi
Lisa

EE
GOU Wei
Helen

4
HU Wei
Tony

A
ZHOU Xiao Zhou
Alan

i
YE Yan
Beicy

ZER
CHUA Hock Yew
Alexander

CAl Wei Ling
Cissy

—5
SHAO Yi Ning

P
SOOQO June Hsing
June

i
XIE Ying
Grace

PREES
CHEN Xiao Ling

L]
DU Yan
Cherry

%

Position

N K
General Manager of
Guangzhou Branch

FMATTH
General Manager of
Suzhou Branch

B TITK
General Manager of
Shenyang Branch

MEBDFT1TIC
General Manager of
Chengdu Branch

REDTHK
General Manager of
Tianjin Branch

M5 77
General Manager of
Hangzhou Branch

BERDTTK
General Manager of
Chonggqing Branch

ENafK
General Manager of
Xiamen Branch

BRHD TR
General Manager of
Kunming Branch

RIS T
General Manager of
Zhongshan Branch

EEERABR X
(ER'S

Branch Manager of
Shanghai Pilot Free

Trade Zone Sub-Branch

ERHBFRLCEITITK
Branch Manager of
Xujiahui Sub-Branch

iy Re X LR
Branch Manager of
Jing'An Sub-Branch

il

Male

xz

Female

xz

Female

3
Male

Male

xz

Female

3
Male

xz

Female

-3

Female

z

Female

xz

Female

x

Female

x

Female

HaE
i

Gender Year of

Birth

1976

1963

1977

1978

1982

1971

1972

1981

1983

1975

1983

1984

1975

==l
et i

Assignment

Commencement

208F 48
Apr 2018

2020 £ 5 B
May 2020

2020 £ 8 A
Aug 2020

2018 12 B
Dec 2018

20204 B
Apr 2020

2018 £ 12 B
Dec 2018

2018 F 1 H
Jan 2018

2020 £ 7 B
Jul 2020

2020 FF 6 B
Jun 2020

209 FE 8 B
Aug 2019

2020 4£ 8 B

Aug 2020

208FE 6 B

Jun 2018

2016 4E 5 A
May 2016

Highest Academic Degree

BBREXZETIFEEML
Master of Business Administration
Hong Kong Baptist University

EEBEFRHEFAZFEARROIRIFEEN L
Master of Business Administration
South Illinois University, Carbondale, USA

UTKREZFEFLREFFL
Bachelor of Economics and Laws
Liaoning University

FEECRERASEEZR TREEMLT
Master of Business Administration
Conservatoire National des Arts et Métiers, France

REMFEERFSITERMY T
Bachelor of Accounting and Finance
University of Hertfordshire, UK

BRRIBARFETIRF L
Bachelor of Electrical Engineer
Harbin Engineering University

MERERE KSR FEELHRESM
Bachelor of Commerce, Honours
University of Toronto, Canada

KEF=ZAEXREFTSSHMERFHSML
Master of Business Finance and International Business
University of Central Lancashire, UK

ZRMAERFTHEEL
Bachelor of Marketing
Yunnan University of Finance and Economics

ESRVAS N YN -
Master of Business Administration
National Taiwan University

EBTBRFENREBESFMET
Master of Applied Linguistics
Shanghai Jiao Tong University

EEETRETENNZESEARSE L
Bachelor of Engineering (Science and Technology)
The University of Shanghai for Science and Technology

EEFINBER Y Re R TR EEmL
Master of Business Administration
United Business Institutes, Belgium

P2 5]
FR
Relevant
Years of

Experience

24

34

20

26

23

14

20
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Remuneration
FriiMBR 5 EE

RERTT $I%Mﬁ%%ﬁﬁmh1Eﬁﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁ%*$ﬁ
BRITEBSEFRIB LTS REMEH S RTHRAL,
MERBZE ?ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁ%m?ﬁkioﬂﬁ,ﬁﬁm
ﬁ%%ﬂ7$ BEFHMEAESRTHLES. KPFHNEURNKEEE
BRNES., ZFNBRERTATLAHERRT

RIEATHMBEROMAE, ATNFMKTEIEEEA, RATRE
MBI RN ARG EZERBES., GUEZNBRRENER
TARFTHZBIRRTINAN TR EERKPRASMZE RN
AR, b, RITMEAMAMNE BRI R TAFHMKT S HAT
BB S R LM SEUKTARIRT

AEFUEHFHOEERREMURBRHEKRE, ZXHFARTUEE
WAEFHM S5 ATHEURE SRR RO REES, REFER
ﬁﬁﬁ%gaﬂéxxﬁﬁﬁ«ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁ%“*hﬁ» ¥iN
THEREBARNERMNEEEEY MKV LMNATHEHRITE
%M%ﬁﬁﬂiﬁoﬁ%$ TRFNFH®EEER, TESHEE
Ai TH AR IELL I 50%, HtEREEAZ MR KES
BRNO KA AR T T BN 98 LB 4 40%, ZBEE R T
Eu@%ihm BEXES (MER) MARETERE.

AT EiF R EHFMARTAEPHRRER, KERTHIEEHK
NTRZEERFHZERS (UWTHRZRR) , RERSHNRE
AN, HYPZRSTFHRITEEEE, REHN, ZRASHAB

WK,
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Remuneration Policy and Management

The remuneration policy of UOB China aims to provide competitive
remuneration package and ensure the bank is able to appropriately
attract, retain and motivate high quality talents who not only fit the
Bank's culture and share the same values but also meet the competencies
the positions require. Meanwhile, the remuneration policy outlines how
our remuneration entitlement links to the Bank's performance, long-term
benefits and risk management. This remuneration policy applies to all of
the full-time employees with the Bank.

According to the Bank's remuneration policy, the employee's salary is
mainly linked to the individual performance, the Group's and function's
performance. The performance target setting clearly shows the
requirements and expectations of the Bank for risk management and long-
term and short-term performance of the function and the individual.
In addition, the compensation review of the employees who are taking
compliance and risk management's roles is independent with the
performance of the business lines they supervise.

The Bank's variable pay includes performance bonus and restricted
shares, which links the staff variable pay to the Bank's performance and
current and future risks. In line with the Supervisory Guidelines on Sound
Compensation in Commercial Banks issued by China Banking and Insurance
Regulatory Commission, senior management and employees whose roles
have material impacts on the Bank's risk exposure would have a portion of
their variable pay deferred. Under the Bank's latest deferral framework, the
50 per cent deferral rate will be applied to the variable pay for key senior
managements whereas for other senior managements and employees
whose roles have material impacts on the Bank's risk exposure, the 40 per
cent deferral rate will be applied to the variable pay. This deferral will be
in the form of deferred shares or deferred cash (where applicable).

To maintain sound corporate governance practices and an effective
remuneration management, UOB China has established a Nominating and
Remuneration Committee (NRC), which consists of four Board Directors.
The chairman of NRC is an independent director. During the reporting
period, the committee held one meeting in total.

EF. DEUSHEEAGHMN
200 FAFTRARBRFMERTHAXMNNESRLZITAARD
693000 7T, [MEXMHBHEREIHART 400,000 7T,

HE200FE1R2A3H, ATHSEZESLEEARERNNEEEER

FmMEMNENRT, TZOZOE?ic THEXAFNHFEMSHAART
%%wﬂm,E¢IE%MM@ﬁAE$BBMME,TX%MM
4 AR 40,500,498 T,

RITERLEESFM . BEFHMEHEBMERLIEE

Compensation for Board Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management

In 2020, the Bank paid a total of RMB693,000 directors' fees to the
members of NRC, and paid a total of RMB400,000 supervisors' fees to the
supervisors.

As of 31 December 2020, there are total 35 senior executives and
material risk takers whose roles have material impacts on the Bank's risk
exposure. The total compensation for these executives and material risk
takers in 2020 was RMB93,751,552, including RMB53,251,054 fixed pay and
RMB40,500,498 variable pay.

The Bank currently has no explicit and/or implicit adjustments to the
deferred pay and/or remained pay.

>
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Internal Control and Internal Audit

PIER Il

RERTPEKREFENBREATNEEZRITE S RERTER
MEAEKE, BLEY. TEBNRTIVE KRN B G ERMN
HE, FHERBAREREMEMT SR,

BOESFRRIEHBTIWEAXABZRAZNIE, FHETN
fEEMATIRE . REBRASTMERTERRSTABEITRE,
AN, ZERLYERZRFLHEN, EETHERTABERGR,

BOATHABEFERNHEELERNREFNAETAFRRT &K
FREEN. FEMMAERM, SFERRTIEENEIRA, KN
FIEEN . REREETER. TEEEXREREVE. BL
BETN SAUENS, ZAEE RS ZE S E AR AR
TREHENRMATRESERIL.

-~
A 58 X (E) HRAT 2020 FERES

Internal Control

UOB China has a well-established internal control system that adheres
strictly to local regulators' requirements and the Group's policies and
guidelines. This provides a robust framework and systems that enable
the Bank to set strategic and practical objectives to support its business
development.

The Board assesses the Bank's internal control framework and systems
through the review of risk management reports and analysis, operational
and budget reports, internal audit reports tabled at regular meetings,
discussions at various internal committees and from the exchange of
insights with industry peers.

The integrity and effectiveness of the Bank's internal control system
is a result of the continuous improvement on the internal control
environment, including, but not limited to, strengthening risk
identification/assessment, monitoring processes and risk mitigation
techniques; and constantly reviewing communication/feedback as well
as evaluation/correction mechanisms. The internal control framework
and systems are able to provide a reasonable level of assurance on the
implementation of legal statutes and regulations.

PIBE

BATRL TR BRI EET— AR, ERERE, W
METBEEQEZTS TRNFETZRASMARERTRAFITBR
16 ETBER, AMREITESEERTITRKEFERRITEILRIE,

WA T ER T A BL R AR IR ENAABEITRSNE
IBERS, MOEFSTMEERRTLEEMNEERS, BAER
HRTEEENTABRFMALEENSEEMERE, NAH
IEMRIER R G R, ARNTTER, THERITABUSEN. 55
MERARFNZTOUNER N, BNRERTNEEE, B 58
EREMAENN, NIEBBRTIAALZEMEERfR, AR
ARSI, 2020 FRABHITAFLEFAELSHRALR, mEHE
2. BRUFRESRUTNERMNUR, MRSV EMIFHFEHITEE
Bt xS AR EAIER, FREFARTHEEMLSRE
T ERHEELEL,

NEBEITERPERTREEEEEZRSMHH (KT 2R
MR ERITHEEER) , NRERABEITHHSEERN CEL
51551) BTIRR, 8FE, REBHEITBEKERESE R
EFERIT AR, FRESEFITNROEFTRE. K
BEIMMITHER. EERXIMEEASHERITIANILE
REUEFITEE, FITNRBEEZ ST IR SLRIEE
BANRGEERGEMBMNNYBEFNREREZAERE. ZH
S FLdHITZRRHMERIT.

HEEITARELEITZASMENRBF I UARET, B
RREEH. KERTFETKREFRTE. sREERLH
HERCHNBERFARTIHITHRE, (BEXEEE. TKFER
WTE. BHERSNESS (NER ) LRELEITER, HXNE
REITRIRIERE, Mo, REPEITIBRFREEEEE X R
it SMBEIT R EEVMARE S O EEHEEET T RRNE
SITMAKIEER, SEXERT IR HEFERHEITER
SMEERI LRREEER,

Internal Audit

Internal Audit is an independent function that reports functionally to the
Audit Committee (AC) and Group Audit, while administratively reports to
the President and Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of UOB China.

The primary role of Internal Audit is to assist the Board and management
to discharge their legal and executive obligations by providing
independent, objective assurance and value-added services to improve
the Bank's operations. It helps the Bank to accomplish its objectives by
having a systematic and disciplined approach to provide an independent
assessment of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Bank's internal
financial controls, operational and compliance controls, and to improve
the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance processes.
During 2020, as led by Group Audit, Internal Audit continuously leveraged
more technology tools, e.g. Data Analytics, Automation, for improved
effectiveness and efficiency in audit execution, proactively collaborated
with business and support functions for deepened understanding of
business products and processes, so as to better assist in the Bank's
transformation and business process enhancement.

Internal Audit performs its function according to the /nternal Audit
Guidelines for Financial Institutions as governed by the China Banking
and Insurance Regulatory Commission and Standards for the Professional
Practice of Internal Auditing set by the Institute of Internal Auditors.
Internal Audit adopts a risk-based prioritisation approach to develop
its strategic audit plan to determine audit frequency. This approach
also adopts a comprehensive assessment of inherent risks, controls,
management concerns and regulatory hotspots. The audit scope covers
all businesses, operations as well as the infrastructure and applications
of systems across UOB Chinas headquarters and branches. The strategic
audit plan is annually reviewed and approved by the AC prior to its
implementation.

Internal Audit conducts audits in accordance with the internal audit plan
approved by the AC, and carries out investigations or reviews that may
be ad hoc requested by the regulator, the CEO, senior management or
the AC. All internal audit reports are provided to relevant management,
the CEO, the AC and the Board (where required) with significant issues
highlighted. Internal Audit is responsible for closely monitoring and
assessing the follow-up actions taken by the management on the issues
raised by Internal Audit, external audit and regulators, with reporting to
the AC and the regulator on quarterly basis.

>
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Managing risk is an integral part of our business strategy. Our risk management
approach focuses on ensuring continued financial soundness and safeguarding
the interests of our stakeholders, while remaining nimble to seize value-
creating business opportunities in a fast changing environment. We are
committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance, sound risk
management principles and business practices to achieve sustainable long-
term growth. We continuously strive towards best risk management practices
to support our strategic objectives.

2020 HIGHLIGHTS

In 2020 we continued our efforts to foster a robust risk culture within
UOB. We incorporated conduct risk management into our risk culture
framework and stepped up risk culture communication efforts bank-wide,
with an emphasis on the Tone from the Top and Tone from Above. To
gauge the results of the various risk culture initiatives, we implemented a
risk culture dashboard to provide regular updates to the Board and senior
management, and kicked off a self-assessment exercise for business and
support units.

Intensify our Inter-Bank Offered Rate (IBOR) transition efforts with
taskforces overseeing various aspects of the transition and business units
leading end-to-end coordination. We continued to actively monitor our
exposure, reached out to affected clients, reviewed existing contracts,
incorporated fallback language and fair dealing notices into new contracts,
enhanced our systems and processes and assessed implications to
accounting, valuation, tax and risk management. We are keeping up with
the latest developments to ensure a fair transition for both customers and
the bank.

MAINTAINING A SOUND RISK CULTURE

A strong risk culture is vital to the long-term sustainability of the Bank's
business franchise. Specifically, risk culture refers to the norms, attitudes
and behaviours related to risk awareness, risk-taking and risk management,
and controls that shape decisions on risks. At UOB, our risk culture is
based on our values. A strong risk culture ensures that our decisions and
actions are considered and focused on our stakeholders, and that we are
not side-tracked by perceived short-term gains.

UOB's Risk Culture Statement

Managing risk is integral to how UOB creates long-term value for our
customers and stakeholders. Our risk culture is built on four principles:
enforcing robust risk governance; balancing growth with stability; ensuring
accountability for all our risk-based decisions and actions; and encouraging
awareness, engagement and consistent behaviour in every employee. Each of
these principles is based on UOB's distinctive set of values that guides every
action we take. In entrenching our risk culture further across our franchise, we
uphold our commitment to financial safety and soundness; fair outcomes and
appropriate support for our customers; sustainable and prudent approach to
business and performance based on integrity, ethics and discipline.

RIERITEE, ERBNE

Safeguarding our reputation in creating long-term value for our stakeholders

PR #41R SMRLTRE
Our Risk Culture Financial safety
Impact and soundness

A

NEERINEY
Fair outcomes for all ZE NI

stakeholders and
appropriate support

- Comprehensive risk
management framework, collaboration
policies and processes

- Well-defined risk appetite

- Pre-emptive supervision

- Independent control

functions

A

frEN s

Our Values ‘ Honourable

HABIRE BRI S ARATNBREE X, MIRHFLEH RN
REERI, FEDHTNE R BT AN W 55 A= 5B E 5 5
BN, FESSULERARMNENNE, SRAEREASESR
EESRHAZASHAENTEERNEERE., HNFETHBEEK. 77
%, TRMRRAMMNEERER, BHIIMAG, T8, KEEME
BERTEBNERNE, XERMNESEPBEITRTUHERE
=, FARENEBXTUEKBNE.

JRURE ST AL T
Our Risk Culture
Principles BEMRKIEE, TR BN,
FBRRIZH R TR Sk it
GOVERNANCE BALANCE
Enforce robust Balance growth with
governance of risk stability in taking risk
- EEREEERER. CAFHRBSME
BURFRTE - EHERENRE I
- BRA NIRRT [ eiia
RS ER  RRAB BN ’
Our Risk Culture - Jhay Y MR ER A
Components

- Open communication and

continual improvements

AT AR
BEAR

Sustainable and prudent
approach to business

ZEPRIFRERIRE L

Maintaining a sound risk culture across our franchise

FATRIERSR S T,
BEREHFERAHE

ACCOUNTABILITY
Ensure accountability
for risk

- IRIB= B, 1R B R - ERRE
Ry T LikwRE - ASEBEMRE

- DR Ui 5 T 4 A 3 BN BB - IR AR R M ANTREALS
H - BEERHTHE

- EHENEREE - Rl

CATE

- Tone from above
- Leadership oversight and

- Clear ownership and
escalation through the Three

- Regular risk reviews and Lines Model responsibility
- Balanced risk-reward - Clear articulation of
remuneration principles and desired
- Established consequences outcomes

- Frequent and regular sharing
- Ongoing training

- Individual’s accountability

TH—8, RTRIMFEHNMER

Demonstrating our unique set of values through consistent behaviour

Fils

United

Our risk management strategy is targeted at embedding our risk culture so
as to facilitate ongoing effective risk discovery and to set aside adequate
capital efficiently to cater for the risks arising from our business activities and
external factors, and to use capital efficiently to address these risks. Risks are
managed within levels established by the senior management committees
and approved by the Board and its committees. We have put in place a set
of frameworks, policies, methodologies, tools and processes that will help us
to identify, to measure, to monitor and to manage material risks faced by the
Bank. These enables us to focus our efforts on the fundamentals of banking
and to create long-term value for all our stakeholders.

i
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RISK GOVERNANCE

Our risk frameworks, policies and appetite provide the overarching
principles and guidance for the Bank's risk management activities. They
guide our key decisions for capital management, strategic planning
and budgeting, and performance management to ensure that the risk
dimension is appropriately and sufficiently considered. Risk reports are
regularly submitted to management and the Board to keep them apprised
of the Bank's risk profile.

UOB China has adopted the Basel Framework and observes capital
management measures on commercial banks by China Banking and
Insurance Regulatory Commission (CBIRC). We continue to adopt a
prudent and proactive approach in navigating the evolving regulatory
landscape, with emphasis on sound risk management principles in
delivering sustainable returns.

We have adopted Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP)
to assess on an ongoing basis the amount of capital necessary to support
our activities. We review the ICAAP periodically to ensure that the Bank
remains well-capitalised after considering all material risks. Stress testing
is conducted to determine capital adequacy under stressed conditions.

UOB China’s responsibility for risk management starts at the top with our

Board overseeing a governance structure that is designed to ensure that

the Bank's business activities are:

» conducted in a safe and sound manner and in line with the highest
standards of professionalism;

» consistent with the Bank's overall business strategy and risk appetite;
and

» subjected to adequate risk management and internal controls.

In this regard, the Board is assisted by the Executive Committee (EXCO)
and Board Risk Management Committee (BRMC) in the oversight of risks.
The Board also reviews the overall risk appetite and level of risk capital to
maintain for the Bank.

The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) has established senior management
committees to assist in making business decisions with due consideration
to risks and returns. The main senior management committees involved
in this are the Management Committee (MC), Asset and Liability
Committee (ALCO), In-Country Credit Committee (ICCC), Operational Risk
Management Committee (ORMC), Consumer Rights Protection Committee
(CRPC) and the Risk and Capital Committee (RCC). These committees also
assist the Board committees in specific risk areas.

Senior management and the senior management committees are
authorised to delegate risk appetite limits by business lines and/or broad
product lines.

ligt=gs i)

Risk Governance Structure
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Risk management is the responsibility of every employee within the Bank.
We strive to instill awareness in our employees of the risks created by
our actions and be accountable for the consequences of those actions.
We have an established framework to ensure appropriate oversight,
accountability and management of all risk types encountered in the
course of our business. Our organisational control structure provides the
Three Lines model as follows:

First line — The Risk Owner: The business and business support functions
have primary responsibility for implementing and executing effective
controls for the management of risks arising from their business activities.
This includes establishing adequate managerial and supervisory controls
to ensure compliance with approved risk policies, appetite, limits and
controls and to highlight control breakdowns, inadequacy of processes
and unexpected risk events.

i
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Second line — Risk Oversight: The risk and control oversight functions
(Risk Management and Compliance Function), and the Chief Risk Officer
(CRO) provide the Second line, support the Bank's strategy of balancing
growth with stability by establishing risk policies, frameworks, risk
appetite and limits within which the business functions must operate.
They are also responsible for the independent review and monitoring of
the Bank's risk profile and highlight any significant vulnerabilities and risk
issues to the respective management committees.

The independence of risk and control oversight functions from business
functions ensures the necessary checks and balances.

Third line — Independent Audit: The Bank's internal auditors conduct
risk-based audits covering all aspects of the First and Second lines to
provide independent assurance to the CEO, Audit Committee (AC) and
the Board, on the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and
control structure, policies, frameworks, systems and processes.

RISK APPETITE

UOB China has established a risk appetite framework to define the
amount of risk we are able and willing to take in pursuit of our business
objectives. It ensures that the Bank's risk profile remains within well-
defined and tolerable boundaries. The framework was formulated based
on the following key criteria:

« alignment to the Bank's key business strategy;

» relevance to respective stakeholders, with appropriate levels of
granularity;

« practical, consistent and easy-to-understand metrics for communication
and implementation; and

« analytically-substantiated and measurable metrics.

The risk appetite defines suitable thresholds and limits across key areas
of credit risk, country risk, market risk, liquidity risk, operational risk,
technology risk and reputational risk. Our risk-taking approach is focused
on businesses which we understand and whose risk we are well-equipped
to manage. This approach helps us to minimise earnings volatility and
concentration risk, and ensures that our high credit ratings, strong capital
and stable funding base remain intact. This way, we will remain a steadfast
partner of our customers through changing economic conditions and
cycles.

UOB China's risk appetite framework and risk appetite are reviewed and
approved annually by the Board. Management monitors and reports the
risk profiles and compliance with the risk appetite to the Board and BRMC
on a regular basis.

EXRE

RERTHENLV SR, FH, BRESMZEREMFERN@IE  UOB Chinds business strategies, products, customer profiles and operating
SRAESENE, IR EREANKEZATREEIETEMNA  environment expose us to a number of financial and non-financial risks.
BLERSY . EAREETRE BN BARITHITE L AIFAH RIRRIE
BEREFEEXERE, TRINZET JREZMRITHIEEARTLILANE  risk management. It enables us to make proper assessment and to mitigate
these risks proactively across the Bank. The table below lists the key risks

AR, BEEANEHRGBARESERSRE:

ERRBE

FEHRENAE
Credit Risk

L7
Market Risk

s K
Liquidity Risk

BRIERE
Operational
Risk

MATERIAL RISKS

which could impact the achievement of the Bank's strategic objectives.

Identifying and monitoring key risks are integral to the Bank's approach to

Details of these key risks can be found in the following pages.

EX

ERRERATERARZ SN FLEBITRIN SN
BN S BMRENRE,

The risk of loss arising from any failure by a borrower or
counterparty to meet its financial obligations when such
obligations are due.

AR IEERTHAXASNTHNEZS (FlmFlR, ;T
R, BRENE, HRNMENEREEZNETML) SRITER
MEH NG, BEBRTKARAFIRNE, X2HTH
RIMFRA T SBHB AR RIS R

The risk of loss from movements in the market rates or prices
(such as changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates,
equity prices, commodity prices and credit spreads) of the
underlying asset. It includes interest rate risk in the banking
book which is the potential loss of capital or reduction in
earnings due to changes in interest rates environment.

ARG RIERT LIRS R ER SR EUGERR
RET RS DN H = BRI S ZAHINEE

The risk that arises from the Bank's inability to meet its
obligations or fund increases in assets as they fall due.

RENEZIEHATER G EANABEF. ALFER
ARG, WRIMNBEIIERIRKAINEE, RIERRH
ERTEERE., RERE., ZEXRE. BESINE.
FERR. SMEXRESESMNENE, EREREEERA
B AL 55 B

The risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal
processes, people and systems or from external events.
Potential loss may be in the form of financial loss or other
damage, for example, loss of reputation and public confidence
that will impact the Bank's creditability and/or ability to
transact, to maintain liquidity and/or to obtain new business.
This includes banking operations risk, fraud risk, legal risk,
outsourcing risk, regulatory compliance risk, reputational risk
and technology risk but excludes strategic and business risks.

MBS E

AOHETERNEEERER. B, KEER MR
TR ER,

Through the Bank's credit risk management framework, policies,
probability of default/loss given default/exposure at default/
portfolio models and limits.

ROHET THNEEERER, B, REMERIMR
PRI TREEER., SIET A NHERAREEER, R
70 P 71 2R B B 3 B SR D MBS BR B T SR AT K P AR K

REE,

Through the Bank's market risk management framework,
policies, Value-at-Risk models and limits. Interest risk in the
banking book is managed through the Bank's balance sheet risk
management framework and interest rate risk in the banking
book management policies and limits.

ATHIET B ARAKRERERSTHNRER, 88%
TRUBL SR 0 ARG PR,

Through the Bank's balance sheet risk management framework,
liquidity risk management policies, ratios and limits.

AOHETRIENGEEER, BK, BEIR#TRE
R &R, SHENEIRGMESBHITME. XBREXR
iR, BRIERKREHRE. EENEERMERDIN.

Through the respective risk management frameworks, policies,
and operational risk management programmes including
Key Risk and Control Self-Assessments, Key Operational Risk
Indicators, Incident Reporting, Management Risk Awareness and
Scenario Analysis.
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Business Risk

TR KBS
Model Risk

g, 5k
SAIE XS
Environmental,
Social and
Governance
Risk
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HAEENEE, ZheEsEEFTERGEEEARTIAA
B) R R R B EIRTT AR H B RIREN,

The risk of improper employee behaviour or action that
results in unfair stakeholder outcomes, negative impact on
market integrity and other issues that damage the reputation
of the Group.

SRS AP 15 T AT B9 ARBR R SR, IREBHAT A LTk,
SFHABURZ WA TN E, ARG EEENA S
RIS TR Y A 20
WEREEIERT U FSSHOTL, flmlse, TR
PN DS AP el Ntz S -1

Strategic risk refers to the current or prospective negative
impact on earnings, capital or reputation arising from adverse
strategic decisions, improper implementation of decisions or a
lack of responsiveness to industry, economic or technological
changes.

Business risk refers to the adverse impact on earnings or
capital arising from changes in business parameters such as
volumes, margins and costs.

B RS HE T IX T R A P52 A9 KBS -

« ERATEERITETHNEOEE, FARRTHIRH
RA (IENRE)

« TRAEFHIBIATT RRBRK A TRE MR

(R EEER)

This is the risk arising from:

 the use of inappropriate model which cannot accurately
evaluate market prices, or which is not a mainstream model
in the market (such as pricing models); or

 inaccurately estimating the probability or magnitude of
future losses (such as risk measurement models) and the use
of those estimates.

TE. M RAENRZIEHEERARINNE, 4258
1 (ESG) [EIRRSIEAYRR S IEM S MEE, ESG MR
THNFEFANERSEESIE, BTHURRTRITAES

HEETAH,

The risk of credit loss or non-financial risks, such as
reputational damage, arising from environmental, social and
governance (ESG) issues. While a key component of ESG risk
arises indirectly from the financial services we provide to our
customers, it can also result directly from our own operations.

A 60 xumsT (hE) HRAE 2020 FERE

R EE

BEMARENKEEE, ABIIEEE, 2R RTLE.
AMANETT TAFU, HFHE, AFRSTRERTEAESR.
BURTEF S MITEHTEE,

Through a multi-faceted approach leveraging on the frameworks,
policies and procedures in operational risk management, internal
fraud management, whistle-blowing, employee discipline,
individual accountability, code of conduct, remuneration, Fair
Dealing, and anti-money laundering.

RFEBENOREERATRBENRER, FhaeRER

BZR2NREE,

Through overall risk governance framework and oversight by
senior management committees.

Bt & TEARGAY FHEEEAERERETEE,

Managed under the respective material risk types for which
there is a quantitative model.

ATHETHEREERER, BRMES (BEMREREA
BUR) #TEMESG M HER,

The different aspects of ESG risk are managed through the
relevant frameworks, policies and guidelines in place, including
our Responsible Financing Policy.
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CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from any failure by a borrower or
counterparty to meet its financial obligations when they are due. It is the
single largest risk that we face in our core business as a commercial bank,
arising primarily from loans and other lending-related commitments to
retail, corporate and institutional borrowers. Treasury and capital market
operations and investments also expose the Bank to counterparty and
issuer credit risks.

We adopt a holistic approach towards assessing credit risk and ensures
that managing credit risk is part of an integrated approach to enterprise
risk management. Integral to the management of credit risk is a framework
that clearly defines policies and processes relating to the identification,
measurement and management of credit risk. We continually monitor
the operating environment to identify emerging risks and to formulate
appropriate mitigating actions.

Credit Risk Governance and Organisation

The RCC and ICCC support the CEO and board level committees in
managing the Bank's overall credit risk exposures and serves as executive
forum for discussions on all credit-related matters. Particularly, ICCC
holds the responsibility of approving credit facilities and exposures to
borrowers and/or counterparties of the Bank within the Risk Appetite
Limit set by the Board and the discretionary limits delegated by the EXCO.
RCC discusses and approves credit risk management policies, reviews and
assesses the Bank's credit portfolios and credit risk profiles.

The Credit Risk Management Division under Risk Management Function
develops bank-wide credit policies and guidelines and facilitates business
development within a framework that results in prudent, consistent
and efficient credit risk management. It is responsible for the reporting,
analysis and management of credit risk to relevant management
committees. The comprehensive credit risk reports cover business
segments at the overall portfolio level by various dimensions including
industry, product and country.

Credit Risk Policies and Processes

We have established credit policies and processes to manage credit risk in
the following key areas:
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Credit Approval Process

Credit origination and approval functions are segregated to maintain
the independence and integrity of the credit approval process. Credit
approval authority is delegated to officers based on their experience,
seniority and track record. All credit approval officers are guided by credit
policies and credit acceptance guidelines which are reviewed periodically
to ensure their continued relevance to the Bank's business strategy and
the business environment.

Internal Rating System

The Bank employs internal rating models to support the assessment of
credit risk and the assignment of exposures to rating grades or pools.
Internal ratings are used pervasively by the Bank in the areas of credit
approval, credit review and monitoring, credit stress-testing, limits setting,
pricing and collections. The models are independently validated before
they are implemented to ensure they are fit for purpose. The robustness
of these rating models is monitored on an ongoing basis, and all models
are subject to annual reviews conducted by model owners to ascertain
that the chosen risk factors and assumptions continue to remain relevant
for the respective portfolios.

Counterparty Credit Risk

Unlike normal lending risk where the notional amount at risk can be
determined with a high degree of certainty during the contractual period,
counterparty credit risk exposure fluctuates with market variables.
Counterparty credit risk is measured as the sum of current mark-to-market
value and an appropriate add-on factor for potential future exposure (PFE).
The PFE factor is an estimate of the maximum credit exposure over the
remaining life of the foreign exchange (FX) / derivative transaction and is
used for limit-setting and internal risk management.

Exposures arising from FX, derivatives and securities financing transactions
are typically mitigated through agreements such as the International
Swaps and Derivatives Association (ISDA) Master Agreements, and the
National Association of Financial Market Institutional Investors (NAFMII)
Agreement. Such agreements help to minimise credit exposure by allowing
us to offset what we owe to counterparty against what is due from that
counterparty in the event of a default. We have also established policies
and processes to manage wrong-way risk, i.e. where the counterparty
credit exposure is positively correlated with its default risk.

In addition, derivative transactions are cleared through Central
Counterparties, where possible, to reduce counterparty credit exposure
further through multilateral netting and the daily margining process.
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Credit Concentration Risk

Credit concentration risk may arise from a single large exposure or from
multiple exposures that are closely correlated. We manage such risks by
setting exposure limits on borrowers, obligor groups, portfolios, industries
and countries, generally expressed as a percentage of the Bank's eligible
capital base. We manage our credit risk exposures through a robust credit
underwriting, structuring and monitoring process. While we proactively
minimise undue concentration of exposure in our portfolio, our credit
portfolio remains concentrated in China.

Credit Stress Test

Credit stress-testing is a core component of our credit portfolio
management process. It involves identifying possible events or future
changes in economic conditions that may have unfavorable effects on
the Bank's credit exposures, and assessing the Bank's ability to manage
its financial resources through adverse circumstances. Likewise, business
credit stress test or sensitivity analysis are also conducted to assess
designated loan portfolio's quality and capital impact under the stress
scenario and test parameters prescribed by the Regulator.

Credit Risk Mitigation

Our potential credit losses are mitigated through a variety of instruments
such as collateral, derivatives, guarantees and netting arrangements. The
Bank would generally not grant credit facilities solely on the basis of the
collateral provided. All requests for credit facilities are assessed based on
the credit standing, source of repayment and debt servicing ability of the
borrower.

The Bank takes collateral whenever possible to mitigate the credit risk
assumed. The value of the collateral is monitored periodically and the
frequency of valuation depends on the type, liquidity and volatility of
the collateral value. The collaterals are mostly in the form of properties.
Cash, marketable securities, equipment, inventories and receivables may
also be accepted. We have policies and processes to monitor collateral
concentration. Appropriate haircuts that reflect the underlying nature of
the collaterals, quality, volatility and liquidity would be applied to the
market value of collaterals as appropriate.

When extending credit facilities to small- and medium-sized enterprises
(SMEs), we often take personal guarantees to secure the moral
commitment from the principal shareholders and directors. Corporate
guarantees are often obtained when the borrower's creditworthiness is
not sufficient to justify an extension of credit.

>
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Credit Monitoring and Remedial Management

We regularly monitor credit exposures, portfolio performance and
emerging risks that may impact our credit risk profile. The Board and senior
management are updated on credit trends through internal risk reports.
An early alert process has also been put in place whereby vulnerable
accounts are escalated by the business units to senior management for
discussion on account strategy and remedial actions.

Delinquency Monitoring

We closely monitor the delinquency of borrowing accounts, a key
indicator of credit quality. An account is considered delinquent when
payment has not received by the payment due date. All delinquent
accounts, including revolving credit facilities with limit excesses, are
closely monitored and managed through a disciplined process by officers
from business units and risk management function. Where appropriate,
such accounts are also subject to more frequent credit reviews.

Classification, Provisioning and Write-Off

We classify our credit portfolios according to the borrower's ability to
repay the credit facilities from their normal source of income. There is an
independent credit review process to ensure the appropriateness of loan
grading and classification.

All borrowing accounts are categorised into 'Pass, 'Special Mention' or
'Non-performing’. 'Non-performing' or impaired accounts are further sub-
divided into 'Substandard’, 'Doubtful’ or 'Loss' in accordance with the
guidelines of CBIRC. Any account which is delinquent (or in excess of
the approval limit for a revolving credit facility) for more than 90 days
will automatically be categorised automatically as 'Non-performing.
In addition, any account that exhibits weaknesses which are likely to
adversely affect repayment on existing terms may be categorised as 'Non-
performing'. The accounting definition of impaired and the regulatory
definition of default are generally aligned.

Upgrading and de-classification of a 'Non-performing' account to 'Pass' or
'Special Mention' status must be supported by a credit assessment of the
repayment capability, cash flows and financial position of the borrower.
We must also be satisfied that once the account is de-classified, the
account is unlikely to be classified again in the near future.

A credit facility is restructured when a bank grants concessions (usually
non-commercial) to a borrower because of a deterioration in the financial
position of the borrower or the inability of the borrower to meet the
original repayment schedule.

A restructured account is categorised as 'Non-performing' and placed on
the appropriate classified grade based on our assessment of the financial
condition of the borrower and the ability of the borrower to repay under
the restructured terms.
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Loan loss provision is made in line with CBIRC guidelines after careful
consideration of the future recovery value including liquidation of
collateral of the non-performing account. A non-performing account is
written off when the prospect of a recovery is considered poor or when
all feasible avenues of recovery have been exhausted.

Special Asset Management

Special Asset Management are in place with independent units that
respectively manage the restructuring, workout and recovery of Bank's
corporate and retail mortgage non-performing portfolios. The primary
objectives are to nurse non-performing accounts back to financial health
whenever possible for transfer back to business unit for management; and
to maximise recovery of such accounts that the Bank intends to exit.

ART (BFET) =Y
Outstanding (RMB'm) (%)
36,535 99.0%

215 0.6%

38 0.1%

93 0.3%

- 0.0%

36,882 100%

(For "Loans by Industry Distribution and by Geographical Region!, please refer to relevant note of the audited financial report.)

2020 K, RREKATTART 1325, SRR ATLEHI % 036%,
BEBEE D 6641%, WHIBEEN 24%, HBIBTF 1200% K 15%
HNRMEEER,

As at 31 December 2020, total non-performing loans amounted to RMBI31.1
million, representing 0.36 per cent of the Bank's total loans portfolio.
Non-performing loan coverage ratio was 664.1 per cent and provision-to-
loan ratio was 2.4 per cent, above the regulatory minimum requirement of
120.0 per cent and 1.5 per cent respectively.
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MARKET RISK

Market risk refers to the risk of loss to the Bank from movements in the
market rates or prices (such as changes in interest rates, FX rates, equity
prices, commodity prices and credit spreads) of the underlying asset.

Market risk is governed by the ALCO, which meets monthly to review and
provide directions on market risk matters. The Market Risk Management
and Product Control (MRPC) and Balance Sheet Risk Management (BSRM)
Divisions support the BRMC, RCC and ALCO with independent assessment
of the market risk profile of the Bank.

The Bank's market risk framework comprises market risk policies, practices,
and the control structure with appropriate delegation of authority and
market risk limits. We employ valuation methodologies that are in line
with sound market practices and validate valuation and risk models
independently. In addition, the Product/Service Programme process
ensures that different risks, including market risk issues, are identified and
adequately addressed prior to launch.

One of the Bank's main objectives in undertaking trading activities is to
provide customer-centric products and services to support our customers'
business and hedging needs. We continually review and enhance our
management of derivatives risks to ensure that the complexities of the
business are appropriately controlled.

Our overall market risk appetite is balanced with targeted revenue at the
Bank and business unit levels and takes into account the capital position
of the Bank. This ensures that the Bank remains well-capitalised, even
under stress conditions. The risk appetite is translated into risk limits that
are delegated to business units. These risk limits have proportional returns
that are commensurate with the risks taken.

Market risk appetite is provided for all trading exposure within the Bank
and the Bank's non-trading FX exposures. The Bank is mainly exposed to
market risk in its trading portfolios that arises from changes in interest
rates, FX rates and commodity prices from the Bank's client-driven market
making and product structuring activities as well as trading activities.

The Bank currently adopts the Standardised Approach for the calculation
of regulatory market risk capital.

The Internal Models Approach is used to measure and to control trading
market risks. The Bank estimates a daily Expected Shortfall (ES) within a
97.5 per cent confidence interval over a one-day holding period, using the
historical simulation method, as a control for market risk. This method
assumes observed historical market movements can be used to imply possible
future changes in market rates. ES is the average of the worst losses in the
distribution, assuming that the losses exceed the specified percentile.

To complement the ES measure, we perform stress and scenario tests to
identify the Bank's vulnerability to event risk. These tests serve to provide

early warnings of plausible extreme losses.

The Bank's daily ES on 31 December 2020 was RMB17.78 million.
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Trading Backtesting Chart
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For back testing purpose, the Bank uses daily VaR within a 99 per cent
confidence interval over a one-day holding period. VaR uses the same
loss distribution as ES. The backtesting process analyses whether
the exceptions are due to model deficiencies or market volatility. All
backtesting exceptions are tabled to ALCO with recommended actions
and resolutions.
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INTEREST RATE RISK IN THE BANKING BOOK

Interest rate risk in the banking book (IRRBB) is defined as the risk of
potential loss of capital or reduction in earnings due to changes in the
interest rates environment.

In the course of our core banking activities, the bank strives to meet
customers' demands and preferences for products with various interest
rate structures and maturities. Mismatches in repricing and other
characteristics of assets and liabilities give rise to sensitivity to interest
rate movements. As interest rates and yield curves change over time, these
mismatches may result in a change in the bank's economic net worth and/
or a decline in earnings. Our primary objective of managing IRRBB is to
protect and to enhance capital or economic net worth through adequate,
stable and reliable growth in net interest earnings under a broad range of
possible economic conditions.

The ALCO maintains oversight of the effectiveness of the interest rate risk
management structure including approval of policies, controls and limits.
The BSRM Division supports the ALCO in monitoring the interest rate risk
profile of the banking book. Behavioural models used are independently
validated and governed by approved policy. Management and mitigation
of IRRBB through hedging instruments and activities are governed by
the Bank's IRRBB policies which are subject to regular review. Monitoring
of positions against mandates, limits and triggers approved by relevant
committees and delegated to relevant business units provide alerts for
timely discussions to control potential risks.

The Bank's banking book interest rate risk exposure is quantified on a
monthly basis using dynamic simulation techniques. The Bank employs
a holistic approach towards balance sheet risk management, using an in-
house enterprise risk management system to integrate liquidity risk and
IRRBB into a single platform for the Bank's reporting in a timely manner.

Interest rate risk varies with different repricing periods, currencies and
embedded options and interest rate basis. Embedded options may be in the
form of loan prepayment and time deposit early withdrawal. In Economic
Value of Equity (EVE) sensitivity simulations, we compute the present
value for repricing cash flows, with the focus on changes in EVE under
different interest rate scenarios. This economic perspective measures
interest rate risks across the full maturity profile of the balance sheet,
including off-balance sheet items. We estimate the potential effects
of interest rate changes on Net Interest Income (NII) by simulating the
possible future course of interest rates and expected changes in business
activities over time. Mismatches in the longer tenor will experience
greater change in EVE than similar positions in the shorter tenor while
mismatches in the shorter tenor will have a greater impact on NiII. Interest
rate scenarios used in simulations include the six standard scenarios
prescribed by Basel including positive and negative tilt scenarios.

We also perform stress tests regularly to determine the adequacy of
capital in meeting the impact of extreme interest rate movements on the
balance sheet. Such tests are also performed to provide early warnings
of potential extreme losses, facilitating the proactive management of
interest rate risks in an environment of rapid financial market changes.

The risks arising from the trading book, such as interest rates, FX rates
and equity prices are managed and controlled under the market risk
framework.
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LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the risk that arises from our inability to meet its obligations
or fund increases in assets as they fall due. We maintain sufficient liquidity
to fund our day-to-day operations, to meet deposit withdrawals and loan
disbursements, to participate in new investments and to repay borrowings.
Hence, liquidity is managed in a manner that addresses known as well as
unanticipated cash funding needs.

Liquidity risk is managed in accordance with a framework of policies,
controls and limits approved by the ALCO. These policies, controls and
limits enable us to monitor and to manage liquidity risk to ensure that
sufficient sources of funds are available over a range of market conditions.
This is done by:

» minimising excessive funding concentrations by diversifying the sources
and terms of funding, and
e maintaining a portfolio of high quality and marketable debt securities.

We take a conservative stance in the Bank's liquidity management by
continuing to gather core deposits, ensuring that liquidity limits are
strictly adhered to and that there are adequate liquid assets to meet
potential cash shortfall.

The distribution of deposits is actively managed to ensure a balance
between cost-effectiveness, continued accessibility to funds and
diversification of funding sources. Important factors in ensuring liquidity
are competitive pricing, proactive management of the Bank's core deposits
and the maintenance of customer confidence.

Our liquidity risk is aligned with the regulatory liquidity risk management
framework and is measured and managed on a projected cash flow basis.
The bank is monitored under business-as-usual and stress scenarios. Cash
flow mismatch limits are established to limit the bank's liquidity exposure.
We also employ liquidity early warning indicators and trigger points
to signal possible contingency situations. Our Liquidity Ratio (LR), High
Quality Liquid Asset Adequacy Ratio (HQLAAR) and Liquidity Matching
Ratio (LMR) are above the regulatory requirements.

We have contingency funding plans in place to identify potential liquidity
crises using a series of warning indicators. Crisis management processes
and various strategies including funding and communication plans have
been developed to minimise the impact of any liquidity crunch.
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OPERATIONAL RISK

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed
internal processes, people and systems, or from external events.
Operational risk includes banking operations risk, technology risk,
regulatory compliance risk, legal risk, reputational risk, outsourcing risk
and fraud risk but excludes strategic and business risk.

Our primary objective is to foster a sound reputation and operating
environment. Operational risk is managed through a framework of policies
and procedures to help business and support units properly identify,
assess, monitor, mitigate and report their risks. The ORMC meets monthly
to provide oversight of operational risk matters in the bank.

The Operational Risk Governance structure adopts the three Lines model.
The Operational Risk Management Division, as part of the Second line,
provides overarching governance of operational risk through relevant
frameworks, policies, programmes and systems. It also monitors key risk
self-assessment results, outsourcing matters, key operational risk indicator
breaches, self-identified operational risks and incidents, and reports these
to the relevant senior management committees and the Board.

Two key components of the operational risk management framework
are risk identification and control self-assessments. These are achieved
through the Bank-wide implementation of a set of operational risk
programmes. Several risk mitigation policies and programmes are in place
to maintain a sound operating environment.

Our business continuity and crisis management programmes ensure
prompt recovery of critical business and support units should there be
unforeseen events. An annual attestation is provided to the Board on the
state of business continuity readiness of the Bank.

Our insurance programme covers crime and civil liability, cyber liability,
property damage, terrorism, public liability, as well as directors' and
officers' liability. The programme reduces operational losses through
adequate insurance coverage.

We adopt the Basic Indicator Approach for the calculation of Operational
Risk Capital.

The subject-specific key risks that we focus on include but are not limited
to:
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Technology Risk

Technology risk is defined as any potential adverse outcome, damage,
loss, violation, failure or disruption arising from the use of or reliance
on information and communication technologies. The governance
of technology risk rests with the ORMC, who facilitates a holistic
oversight of operational risk matters across the Bank. Our technology
risk management framework ensures that technology and cyber risks are
managed in a systematic and consistent manner. The scope of technology
risk management covers many aspects, including technology asset
management, technology resiliency and the service continuity aspects
of business continuity management, cybersecurity management and
information security management.

Our Technology Risk Management Division, as part of the Second Line,
has governance and oversight of technology risk management across the
Bank. The team works closely with business and support units, including
the technology and information security teams, to oversee, to review
and to strengthen their current practices in technology risk management.
We adopt a risk-based approach in assessing and managing technology
and cyber risks. Our Board, senior management and ORMC are briefed
regularly on technology risk appetite and technology risk matters.

Regulatory Compliance Risk

Regulatory compliance risk refers to the risk of non-compliance with
laws, regulations, rules, standards and the UOB Codes of Conduct. We
identify, monitor and manage this risk through the Regulatory Compliance
Risk Governance framework supported with policies, procedures and
guidelines. The framework also manages the risk of regulatory breaches
relating to sanctions, anti-money laundering and countering the financing
of terrorism.

Legal Risk

Legal risk arises from unenforceable, unfavourable, defective or
unintended contracts, lawsuits or claims, developments in laws and
regulations, or non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
Business and support units work with both internal and external legal
counsel to ensure that legal risks are managed.

Reputational Risk

Reputational risk is the risk of adverse impact on earnings, liquidity or
capital arising from negative stakeholder perception or opinion of the
Bank's business practices, activities and financial condition. We recognise
the impact of reputational risk and manage the risk through the Bank's
Reputational Risk Management Policy.
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Outsourcing Risk

Outsourcing risk is the risk of adverse financial, operational, and
reputational, legal and compliance impact arising from the failure of a
service provider to provide the outsourced service or to comply with legal
and regulatory requirements, or a service provider's breaches of security.
We manage this risk through the Bank's Outsourcing Risk Management
Framework, policies, procedures and guidelines, supported by the
outsourcing module in the Governance, Risk and Compliance system.

Fraud Risk

Fraud is defined as an act, with an element to deceive or to conceal facts;
and is not restricted to the gain of monetary or material benefits.

We manage fraud risks actively. The corporate governance oversight of
fraud risk is provided by the AC at the Board level and primarily by the
ORMC at the Management level, supported by Anti-Fraud Working Groups
set up in headquarters and branches. Our Integrated Fraud Management
(IFM) Division, as the Second Line, drives strategy and governance and
oversees the framework and policy of fraud risk management across the
country, which covers Anti-Fraud tasks in accordance with our regulatory
requirements as well.

All employees are required to comply with the UOB China Code of
Conduct, which has anti-bribery and anti-corruption provisions. The UOB
Chinas fraud hotline managed by IFM provides a safe channel to report
suspected fraud. IFM conducts independent fraud investigations. The
division also works closely with business and support units to strengthen
its practices across the five pillars of prevention, detection, response,
remediation and reporting.
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ENVIRONMENTAL SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE RISK

ESG risk is the risk of credit loss or non-financial risks arising from ESG
issues. While a key component of ESG risk arises indirectly from the
financial services we provide to our customers, it can also result directly
from our own operations. ESG governance and control process are put in
place to identify and review ESG factors material to the Bank, and ensures
that sustainability factors are considered in aspects of our operations
(including day-to-day decision-making processes). The specific risk
associated with each factor is monitored and managed in accordance with
the respective policy or guidelines.

Specific to our wholesale financing activities, the Bank ensure that ESG
considerations are integrated into the credit evaluation and approval
processes. To this end, we have made our Responsible Financing Policy
(approved by the RCC) a part of the Bank's Corporate Credit Policy.

Under our Responsible Financing Policy, account officers are required
to conduct due diligence on all new and existing borrowers during
the client onboarding process and annual credit review. Borrowers in
the ESG-sensitive industries per Responsible Financing Guidelines are
subject to enhanced due diligence with sector-specific guidelines. All
borrowers are classified based on the level of ESG risk in their business
and are monitored on an ongoing basis for any adverse ESG-related news.
Those with any known material ESG-related incidents would trigger an
immediate review to address the ESG risks appropriately.

STRATEGIC AND BUSINESS RISK

Strategic risk refers to the current or prospective negative impact on
earnings, capital or reputation arising from adverse strategic decisions,
improper implementation of decisions or a lack of responsiveness to
industry, economic or technological changes. It is the risk of not achieving
the Bank's strategic goals.

Business risk refers to the adverse impact on earnings or capital arising
from changes in business parameters such as volumes, margins and costs.
The sources of business risk include uncompetitive products or pricing,
internal inefficiencies, and changes in general business conditions such as
market contraction or changes in customers' expectations and demand. It
is the risk of not achieving the Bank's short-term business objectives.

The Board of Directors and senior management committees are
responsible for managing risks associated with the Bank's business. The
Executive Committee assist the Board in relation to the management of
strategic and business risks. The CEO, supported by senior management
committees oversee the day-to-day management of the Bank and make
business decisions within the Bank's risk appetite. The Bank's strategy
is then translated into annual financial targets, taking into account the
macroeconomic environment, and cascaded to specific business for
development and implementation.

>
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(1) Shareholder Status Update

Name of Shareholder: United Overseas Bank Limited

Percentage of shares held: 100 per cent.

(2) During the reporting period, there were no split
or merger activities or other major corporate
developments during the reporting period.

(3) None of the Bank's directors, supervisors or top
management was penalised by the regulatory
authorities during the reporting period.

(4) Highlights during the reporting period:

 InJanuary 2020, Beijing Branch was converted to a sky branch.

* In November 2020, Beijing Lufthansa Center Sub-branch was closed.

e In December 2020, Mr Mark Yang has appointed as the Alternate
Country Chief Executive Officer of UOB China upon the approval of
China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission (CBIRC) Shanghai
Bureau.

e In December 2020, Mr Peter Foo has appointed as the non-executive
director of Heng Feng Bank upon the approval of CBIRC.

BT

EETERAX RN
nes, 1285

HB 4R : 200120

Hi% : (86) (21) 6061 8888

£ 2 : (86) (21) 6886 0908
SWIFT: UOVBCNSH

3 : www.uobchina.com.cn

LT
EIBTHIR R X RIR B
62, 128 2102 =

fF 4 : 200120

EB3E : (86) (21) 6061 8288
52 - (86) (21) 6886 113

R YIT

(ki)
LT RX R 1468 5
H oA JE PO1-02 2 201-203 2
HR 48 : 200040

BL1E : (86) (21) 6080 9366

£+ (86) (21) 6289 1001

BFICEIT

(LEi#&)

EETHICKIFE 1S
BLT BN A EE—E30 R
01-03 B8 T

B} 45 : 200030

E23F : (86) (21) 60915788

£ 21 (86) (21) 6323 3015

LR RKX ST
(3Tl 5%)

BRI X R

ne, 128 2

RERITRENE 602 =

B4R : 200120

B1E : (86) (21) 6061 8176

£ 5 1 (86) (21) 6886 0906

Head Office

No 116, 128 Yincheng Road,
Pudong New Area,

Shanghai 200120

Tel: (86) (21) 6061 8888

Fax: (86) (21) 6886 0908

SWIFT: UOVBCNSH

Website: www.uobchina.com.cn

Shanghai Branch

Room 102,

No 116, 128 Yincheng Road,
Pudong New Area,
Shanghai 200120

Tel: (86) (21) 6061 8288

Fax: (86) (21) 6886 1113

Jing'An Sub-branch
(Shanghai)

Room 1P01-02, 201-203,
United Plaza,

1468 Nanjing Road West,
Jing'An District,
Shanghai 200040

Tel: (86) (21) 6080 9366
Fax: (86) (21) 6289 1001

Xujiahui Sub-branch (Shanghai)
Unit 01-03, 30 Floor,

Grand Gateway Tower 1,
1Honggiao Road,

Xuhui District,

Shanghai 200030

Tel: (86) (21) 6091 5788

Fax: (86) (21) 6323 3015

Shanghai Pilot Free Trade Zone
Sub-branch

(Wholesale Banking Only)
Room 602, 6 Floor,

No 116, 128 Yincheng Road,
Shanghai Pilot Free Trade Zone,
Shanghai 200120

Tel: (86) (21) 6061 8176

Fax: (86) (21) 6886 0906
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Branch Network

Beijing Branch

Unit 01-03, 05-09 25 Floor,
Tower C Office Park,

No. 5 Jing Hua South Street,
Chaoyang District,

Beijing 100020

Tel: (86) (10) 5879 2626

Fax: (86) (10) 8590 6725

Chengdu Branch

Unit 8, 9,10, 21 Floor,

Office Tower 1, Chengdu IFS,
No 1Section 3 Hongxing Road,
Jinjiang District,

Chengdu 610021

Tel: (86) (28) 6879 2888

Fax: (86) (28) 8653 1878

Kunming Branch
(Wholesale Banking Only)
Unit 2105 and 2106, 21 Floor,
East Tower, MASTER,

No 1 Chongren Street,
Wuhua District,

Kunming 650000

Tel: (86) (871) 6555 0777

Fax: (86) (871) 6361 6191

Guangzhou Branch
(Wholesale Banking Only)
Suite 3801, Taikoo Hui Tower 1
385 Tianhe Road,

Tianhe District,

Guangzhou 510620

Tel: (86) (20) 28813688

Fax: (86) (20) 8755 8830

Shenyang Branch

Unit 06/07, 21 Floor,
Fortune Plaza Tower A,
No 61, Beizhan Road,
Shenhe District,
Shenyang 110013

Tel: (86) (24) 3121 2168
Fax: (86) (24) 3116 2078
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Branch Network
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Shenzhen Branch
(Wholesale Banking Only)
Unit 6001-03, Tower A,
KingKey 100,

No 5016 Shennan Road East,
Luohu District,

Shenzhen 518001

Tel: (86) (755) 2294 5688

Fax: (86) (755) 8246 3326

Xiamen Branch
1-2 Floor,

United Overseas Bank Building,

No 19 North Hubin Road,
Xiamen 361012

Tel: (86) (592) 508 1601
Fax: (86) (592) 508 1605

Tianjin Branch

Unit 2-1-2207, 2208 and 2209,
RongHui Plaza,

Changjiang Road,

Nankai District,

Tianjin 300100

Tel: (86) (22) 8701 7070

Fax: (86) (22) 873 80500

Hangzhou Branch

Room 201 and 203,

Skyline Plaza,

No 181 Tian Mu Shan Road,
Xihu District,

Hangzhou 310013

Tel: (86) (571) 2809 0666
Fax: (86) (571) 8190 9619
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Chongging Branch

Unit A, 31 Floor

HNA-POLY International Centre,
No 235 Min Sheng Road,
Yuzhong District,

Chongging 400010

Tel: (86) (23) 6037 2888

Fax: (86) (23) 6037 2788

Suzhou Branch
(Wholesale Banking Only)
Unit 1801, Tower 1,
Jinghope Square,

No 88 Huachi Street,
Suzhou Industrial Park,
Suzhou 215000

Tel: (86) (512) 6298 5200
Fax: (86) (512) 8686 2006

Zhongshan Branch

(Wholesale Banking Only)
Unit 1,2 and 12, 37 Floor,

Zhisan International Financial Centre,
No 16 Zhongshan San Road,
Zhongshan 528400

Tel: (86) (760) 8770 7666

Fax: (86) (760) 8989 2900

KIERTT (PE ) BRAE
2020412 A31H
United Overseas Bank (China) Limited
31 December 2020
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Ernst & Young Hua Ming (2021) Shen Zi No 60658622 _BO1
United Overseas Bank (China) Limited

To the Board of Directors of United Overseas Bank (China) Limited:
(1) Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of United
Overseas Bank (China) Limited (hereinafter referred to as "the Bank"),
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2020, the income
statement, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash

flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in
all material respects, United Overseas Bank (China) Limited's financial
position as at 31 December 2020 and United Overseas Bank (China)
Limited's financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in

accordance with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises (‘ASBEs").

(1) Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with China Standards on Auditing
("CSAs"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of United Overseas Bank
(China) Limited in accordance with China Code of Ethics for Certified
Public Accountants (the "Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our opinion.

(111) Responsibilities of the management and those charged
with governance for the financial statements

The management of United Overseas Bank (China) Limited is responsible
for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with ASBEs, and for designing, implementing and maintaining
such internal control as the management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the management is responsible for
assessing United Overseas Bank (China) Limited's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting, unless the management
either intends to liquidate United Overseas Bank (China) Limited or to

cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing United

Overseas Bank (China) Limited's financial reporting process.

(IV) Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with CSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are generally considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with CSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

(1) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

override of internal control.

i
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ArEfiffiR
Balance Sheet

2020 £ 12 B 31 H 31 December 2020
(BRHFALEIAS, SMALIIIARTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

(2)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit

the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to

in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence WsE+
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future Notes 7 31-12-2020 31-12-2019
the effectiveness of internal control. events or conditions may cause United Overseas Bank (China) Limited &P ASSETS:
. . W& R IF M REF TR Cash and deposit with the Central Bank 1 4,693,593,314 6,477,543,250
fo cease to continue as a going concern. =2 Precious metals 1,564,487,585 1,162,708,344
(3) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the FrE W ER TR Due from banks and other financial institutions 2 3,680,713,165 1,852,438,902
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made  (5) Evaluate the overall presentation including the disclosures, structure RS Placements with banks and other financial institutions 3 6,667,892,648 7,499,846,222
by the management. and content of the financial statements, and whether the financial e Financial assets held-for-trading 4 1,525,241,844 1,425,658,377
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a PTE SRR Derivative financial assets 5 11,567,136,341 4,133,777,889
(4) Conclude on the appropriateness of the management's use of the manner that achieves fair presentation. INEERRA Reverse repurchase financial assets 6 2,273,636,714 3,253,748,361
) . . . . KILEFR R Loans and advances to customers 7 36,186,036,127 35,144,414,612
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence - ) )
HMFEIUEE Other debt instrument at fair value through other 8 11,029,276,744 10,145,887,936
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events ~ We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among comprehensive income
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on United Overseas other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant B E® = Fixed assets 9 29,929,546 32,665,882
Bank (China) Limited's ability to continue as a going concern. If  audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that = Right-of-use assets 10 122,074,703 72,213,755
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to  we identify during our audit. TR Intangible assets " 81,570,414 102,639,668
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in BEFEBA™ Deferred tax assets 12 202,938,571 114,246,411
Hihw >~ Other assets 13 863,014,874 438,498,808
KBt TOTAL ASSETS 80,487,542,590 71,856,288,417
fifE: LIABILITIES:
[& b X H fth & B A9 T R I Due to banks and other financial institutions 14 1,624,596,625 492,069,878
Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP, Shanghai Branch Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Zhou, Mingjun WARS Placements from banks and other financial institutions 15 16,592,129.932 13,458,952.435
MR TR Financial liabilities held-for-trading 16 3,644,232,118 3,183,176,624
Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Yu, Liangyu PR AR Derivative financial liabilities 5 11,611,363,625 4,137,215,590
S B4R R K Repurchase agreements 17 466,069,704 720,292,241
Shanghai China 26 March 2021 g Customer deposits 18 36,463,148,695 39,506,088,328
R fTER T 37 B Payroll payables 19 104,044,398 121,660,708
N AT Tax payables 20 136,876,941 62,852,082
NAHES Debt securities issued 21 2,037,710,703 2,745,552,507
it fR Provisions 22 50,061,234 37,150,266
SRR Lease liabilities 23 118,432,977 70,937,706
Hithfafk Other liabilities 24 583,203,499 335,476,250
nRETT TOTAL LIABILITIES 73,431,870,451 64,871,424,615
A& EQUITY:
Sl g N Paid-up capital 25 5,500,000,000 5,500,000,000
AABTR Capital reserve 26 17,337,049 14,562,830
Hihr AR Other comprehensive income 27 2,191,618 42,888,850
BHENR Surplus reserves 28 138,385,488 127,512,353
— X A% General reserves 29 849,267,920 816,675,492
KO BECFE Retained earnings 30 548,490,064 483,224,277
FrEEPEALT TOTAL EQUITY 7,055,672,139 6,984,863,802
MEERBEERE AT TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 80,487,542,590 71,856,288,417

[ BRI 55 HR AR M A AR S5 R TR AVARRAR D

The accompanying notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.

AU SREBANTALESR:

The financial statements have been signed by:

TRRERHTE. EF 0% 4

BEMEE: 5‘$$FL
CFO: Brian Zhu Xuay \""
, W
UNITEDQOXERSEA

S

President and CEO, Director: Peter Foo Moo Tan

s
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Income Statement

2020 £E & For the year ended 31 December 2020
(BR45HIERASN, MBI ARTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

MHE£
Notes 7 2020 2019
—. Bl 1. OPERATING INCOME
IS ON Interest income 31 2,155,342,775 2,372,005,854
FI X H Interest expense 31 (1,163,722,814) (1,537,936,819)
FIISRE N Net interest income 31 991,619,961 834,069,035
FEHERESBAN Fee and commission income 32 193,384,515 239,478,508
FEHEHBEREEIH Fee and commission expense 32 (50,505,904) (67,569,057)
FEERAESEBAN Net fee and commission income 32 142,878,611 171,909,451
BARW Investment income 33 180,581,914 50,986,287
ANRNMETENEIRES Gain/(loss) from changes in fair value 34 (7,351,276) 168,226,620
LR Foreign exchange gain/(loss) 35 122,388,518 133,411,374
HAthik 35 Other income 36 3,434,635 1,961,460
ELBANET TOTAL OPERATING INCOME 1,433,552,363 1,360,564,227
= Bl 2. OPERATING EXPENSES
Me R Tax and surcharges (14,702,798) (14,074,366)
V&R ERH General and administrative expenses 37 (1,037,781,074) (1,068,961,788)
EHRER K Credit impairment losses 38 (267,602,034) (141,313,827)
EVvXEEIT TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES (1,320,085,906) (1,224,349,981)
=. ZAFiE 3. OPERATING PROFIT 113,466,457 136,214,246
B =RZIN PN Add: Non-operating income 141,766 1,108,361
W B Less: Non-operating expenses (6,394,042) (593,915)
M. FBETFE RS 4. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 107,214,181 136,728,692
B iR &R Less: Income tax expense 39 1,517,169 (12,364,745)
. &FE 5. NET PROFIT 108,731,350 124,363,947
5. HitteE WS S 6. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, NET OF TAX
HHEPIE R A ARMEZSE)  Fair value changes of other debt instrument at fair value 27 (40,777,351) 22,550,516
through other comprehensive income
HAEMIRAEAREREE  Credit impairment losses of other debt investments 27 80,119 56,615
+. FEWEE 7. TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 68,034,118 146,971,078

T B I 55 $R AR B E A AN S5 IR AR A9 A AR AR >

The accompanying notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.
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FiREENZENR
Statement of Changes in Equity

2020 #E & For the year ended 31 December 2020
(BRHFALEIAS, SMALIIIARTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

KA A RENR HMbGREE BRAR —RNEAE  RORFE ait
Paid-up Capital Other Surplus General Retained Total
capital reserve comprehensive reserves reserves earnings
income
REFHEE Opening balance 5,500,000,000 14,562,830 42,888,850 127,512,353 816,675,492 483,224,277  6,984,863,802
REERT LT Movements during the year - 2,774,219 (40,697,232) 10,873,135 32,592,428 65,265,787 70,808,337
(—) ZElERE (i) Total comprehensive income - - (40,697,232) - - 108,731,350 68,034,118
(Z) FrBEEBRAT (i) Injection of funds by and
B EAR distribution of funds to the
investor - 2,774,219 - - - - 2,774,219
1 B AT AFRF B EHL 1. Share-based payment
HHEE - 2,774,219 - - - - 2,774,219
(=) FEHE (iii) Profit appropriation - - - 10,873,135 32,592,428 (43,465,563) -
1LIRBRABRAR 1. Appropriation to surplus reserves - - - 10,873,135 - (10,873,135) -
2RI — RN 2. Appropriation to general
reserves - - - - 32,592,428 (32,592,428) -
KREFERFH Closing balance 5,500,000,000 17,337,049 2,191,618 138,385,488 849,267,920 548,490,064 7,055,672,139
2019 £E & For the year ended 31 December 2019
(BRHALERASN, SMBELIIHARTIT)
(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)
ENE7 N RANR HhGEWs BHEAR —RAKAEE  RORFUE &it
Paid-up Capital Other Surplus General Retained Total
capital reserve comprehensive reserves reserves earnings
income
REFEYEE Opening balance 5,500,000,000 11,191,697 20,281,719 115,075958 826,398,940 361,573,277 6,834,521,591
REBBTHET Movements during the year - 3371133 22,607,131 12,436,395 (9723,448) 121,651,000 150,342,211
(—) ZEzE Az (i) Total comprehensive income - - 22,607,131 - - 124,363,947 146,971,078
(Z) FrBEEBRAT (i) Injection of funds by and
B EAR distribution of funds to the
investor - 3,371,133 - - - - 3,371,133
1. B AT AT E A 1. Share-based payment
HHSH - 3371133 - - - - 3371133
(=) FENE (iii) Profit appropriation - - - 12,436,395 (9,723,448) (2,712,947) -
1LIRBRB AR 1. Appropriation to surplus reserves - - - 12,436,395 - (12,436,395) -
2 IRER—RR NS AR 2. Appropriation to general
reserves - - - - (9723,448) 9,723,448 -
KREFERFH Closing balance 5,500,000,000 14,562,830 42,888,850 127,512,353 816,675,492 483,224,277  6,984,863,802
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The accompanying notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020



WERER
Statement of Cash Flows

2020 £E & For the year ended 31 December 2020
(BR45HIERASN, MBI ARTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

ME£ T+
Notes 7 2020 2019 Notes 7 2020 2019
—. BEFRHTENMERE 1. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Z. BREHFENRERE 2. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
T P R BT RV R D Net decrease in due from the Central Bank 725,142,086 K ERE KR NS Cash received from maturity of investments 20,970,000,000 18,390,000,000
TERE A ER T4 R D B Net decrease in due from banks and other financial institutions 40,114,677 244,712,024 BEHR AR EKE NS Cash received from investment income 310,357,786 374,785,155
RS R Net decrease in placements with banks and other financial 552,912,895 6,251,367,730 QB EER = MEAMKEIE=E  Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets and other long term 734,193 26,005
institutions HIL$ assets
R R FE L R Hfh£FH47F  Netincrease in customer deposits and due to banks and other - 2,158,568,038 BEFDAEFNNMT Sub-total of cash inflows from investing activities 21,281,091,979 18,764,811,160
TR 4 1 N ER financial institutions
BRAMXMNHIS Cash paid for investment 21,902,000,000 21,670,000,000
AR SIS IEINE Net increase in placements from banks and other financial 3,408,030,734 - x5 P
institutions
MEEER=MEMKIR =R Cash paid for purchase of fixed assets and other long term 15,664,635 34,553,117
W FI B . FLHRMEMI4E  Cash received from interest, service fee and commission 2,193,047,747 2,463,442,433 HIE assets
. . REEHI RN Sub-total of cash outflows from investing activities 21,917,664,635 21,704,553,117
HRGENTIFBENESREAE~%H Net decrease in financial assets at fair value through profit or 55,250,967 516,201,154
&R loss BRBENTENNERESET Net cash flows from investing activities (636,572,656) (2,939,741,957)
KR Eth SR EFNERNNE Cash received from other operating activities 204,972,026 371,490,999 = EREHELENME TS 3. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
ZEENRERNNT Sub-total of cash inflows from operating activities 7,179,471,132 12,005,782,378 KTt REINRE Cash received from debt securities issuance 489,914,000 2,854,361,510
TEH D SRR AT ER T 4% 1 N AT Net increase in due from the Central Bank R 157,790,958 ERFENRERNNT Sub-total of cash inflows from financing activities 489,914,000 2,854,361,510
EIRES L ANIS Cash repayments for debts 1,220,000,000 2,830,000,000
g fEsRfE W & Hb & riAH7%  Net decrease in customer deposits and due to banks and 1,861,816,239 -
R R other financial institutions HERF . FLESEMFIEXMH  Cash payments for distribution of dividends or profit and 97,300,000 49,300,000
e interest expenses
WAREER DR Net decrease in placements from banks and other financial - 2,374,844,510
institutions HAHMEEREHEXNINS Cash paid to other financing activities 81,911,894 38,737,081
R FRFN TR OE I INER Net increase in loans and advances to customers 1,313,655,484 2,363,699,186
ERFHDUE RN Sub-total of cash outflows from financing activities 1,399,211,894 2,918,037,081
TARMNFE. FEHERMBELHIME  Payments made for interest, service fee and commission 1,181,054,816 1,425,366,437 EREH NSRS Net cash flows from financing activities (909,297,894) (63.675,571)
ERERIEARIIAMMAE  Cash paid to and on behalf of employees 694,113,692 699,749,712 W, CEEHHAERAEEMME 4 EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND 62,428,079 62,653,795
Al CASH EQUIVALENTS
RAFHEIH Z Cash paid for all types of taxes 181,006,885 231,748,862
R, UERREENWE (BD) / 5. NET (DECREASE) /INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH 40 (387,950,299) 415,270,402
FTRHHMELEEFDEXNINS Cash paid for other operating activities 852,331,844 1,396,548,578 1T g ! EQUIVALENTS
ZEZHWE T LT Sub-total of cash outflows from operating activities 6,083,978,960 8,649,748,243 m: EMRAERALENYHRIM  Add: Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 10,968,087,272 10,552,816,870
N, ERMERNEENMRE 6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR 41 10,580,136,973 10,968,087,272
BRERNTEMNINE RE SRR Net cash flows from operating activities 40 1,095,492,172 3,356,034,135 ”

TSI S5 AR AR BE AR Y 55 IR R A LB AR AR 43

The accompanying notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.
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The accompanying notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.
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4 5+ R B E
Notes to Financial Statements

2020 £E & For the year ended 31 December 2020
(BR45HIERASN, MBI ARTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)
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1. Corporate Information

United Overseas Bank (China) Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as The Bank
or UOB China) is a wholly foreign-owned bank established in Shanghai,
People's Republic of China (PRC), by United Overseas Bank (UOB).

In accordance with the Regulation of the PRC on the Administration
of Foreign-funded Banks (the Regulation), and the Detailed Rules on
the Implementation of Regulation of the PRC on the Administration of
Foreign-funded Banks (the Implementation), China Banking and Insurance
Regulatory Committee (CBIRC) granted approval to UOB on 5 April
2007 to set up a wholly-owned subsidiary bank, UOB China, in Shanghai
by converting its Shanghai Branch, Beijing Branch, Shenzhen Branch,
Guangzhou Branch, Xiamen Branch, Chengdu Branch, Shenyang Branch
and Jing'An Sub-branch (collectively known as the Former PRC Branches).

The Bank obtained the licence for conducting financial transaction from
the CBIRC (Institution Code: BO308H231000001), and obtained its business
licence (Uniform Social Credit Code: 913100006694147236) from Shanghai
Administration for Industry and Commerce. The registered address is
Floor 3, Room 501 of Floor 5 (Actual Floor 4), Floor 13 (Actual Floor 12),
Floor 15 (Actual Floor 13), Floor 16 (Actual Floor 14), Floor 17 (Actual Floor
15), Floor 18 (Actual Floor 16), Floor 19 (Actual Floor 17) and Floor 20 (Actual
Floor 18), No 116, 128 Yincheng Road, Shanghai Pilot Free Trade Zone. The
registered capital of the Bank is RMB5.5 billion.

The Bank obtained its business licence issued with an unlimited operating
period. The main businesses of the Bank are Renminbi and foreign
currency businesses as approved by relevant regulatory authorities. The
date of business conversion from former PRC branches to UOB China was
on 2 January 2008.

As of 31 December 2020, besides the Head Office incorporated in
Shanghai, the Bank has set up 13 branches and 3 sub-branches respectively
in Shanghai, Beijing, Shenzhen, Guangzhou, Xiamen, Chengdu, Shenyang,
Tianjin, Hangzhou, Chongging, Suzhou, Kunming and Zhongshan.
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2. Preparation basis of the financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises-Basic Standard and the
specific standards, the implementation guidance, interpretations and
other relevant provisions issued and revised subsequently by the Ministry
of Finance of PRC (MOF) (collectively referred to as "Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises”).

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The Bank's financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis
under the historical cost as the basis of measurement, except for some
financial instruments. If the assets are impaired, corresponding provisions
should be recognised in accordance with relevant standards.

3. Compliance with the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared in accordance
with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, and present fairly

and fully, the financial position of the Bank as of 31 December 2020 and
the financial performance and the cash flows for the year then ended.

4. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(1) Accounting period

The accounting year of the Bank is from 1 January to 31 December of
each calendar year.

(2) Functional currency
The Bank's functional currency is Renminbi (RMB). These financial

statements are presented in RMB and all amounts are stated in RMB,
unless otherwise stated.

—_
)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits; cash equivalents
are short-term, highly liquid investments which are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash, and which are subject to insignificant risk
of changes in value.

Cash equivalents comprise non-statutory deposits due from Central
Bank, amounts due from banks and other financial institutions, reverse
repurchase agreements maturing within three months, and short-
term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, which have an original maturity date within three
months.

- A
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Notes to Financial Statements

2020 £E & For the year ended 31 December 2020
(BR45HIERASN, MBI ARTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

4. 5 RIE (4) Foreign currency transactions 6. EETIZ (6) Construction in progress

RN FRENINTR S, BT ETITE ATCKARLT S,

SINTRBDEVIRHIAN, XAXHEEBNBIC RN M
TEICKANTEH, TH~NHEKD, W TIIHETHRE
RARFNFEFRANPILRTE, At ~ENEEMETHIE
TEEZPIT NG HRE, WHERATEITHIERTHRE,
MEXAXZHREBNMCRFE, FHEHLCKEANTEH,
UraMETEMNSITIEETHME, XBARNMERER IR
BICRTE, Bt~ ERNETREFTTHHEIE M RITA S
R Hb R AU

ARBESTHEEREALT, NEAERSNEMAEFD. MitHk
EMFTETELTER, LERNHTHE,
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Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the reporting
currency accordingly.

Foreign currency transactions are translated using the exchange rates
ruling at the transaction date. Subsequent to initial recognition,
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the applicable exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet
date. Exchange differences arising from the settlement of monetary
items or from translation of monetary items at balance sheet date
are recognised in the profit or loss. Non-monetary items measured at
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed
and adjusted if appropriate, at each end of the year.

ERIENAZRIGEIEHSE, SRERMERLENETL
RIBRXHMEHEMBXERE,

ERIRERIMETEARSHEANEER>. TEASIH
< EIR =,

- TR HE

ERAFRE SHAXMBFHRBTERALLT, ARAK
RS TSI R AT T I, BRI,

The cost of construction in progress is determined according to
the actual expenditure for the construction, including all necessary
expenditure and other related expenses incurred during the
construction period.

The costs are transferred to fixed assets, intangible assets or other
long term assets when the asset is ready for its intended use.

(7) Intangible assets

The intangible assets can be recognised only when the economic

5. EEEE rates ruling at the dates of the initial transactions; Non-monetary TR RFIRBEEARA T HTREFANENHRREEAED, benefits related to intangible assets are likely to flow into the Bank,
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using TEMIEARATHREFTARARNEAFRAETAAEN and the cost of intangible assets can be measured reliably. While the
BEARFXESEBEXANELFNRABITRAARAT, BHMA the exchange rates when the fair value is determined, the exchange TR =, intangible assets obtained in a business combination under common
R EMITEN A FUNHIA. SEERTHEXNELEXYE, & difference thus resulted is recognised in the profit or loss or other control should be measured at fair value if the cost of intangible assets
AN GR, TABERSHAE, FEERIANEERED D comprehensive income of the current period. RRBNERE = AR, EERFERA 2E10E, can be measured reliably.
WENE; SN, ERXEMTALIREG,
(5) Fixed assets FREWERNLEART, EHERASHTAXRBHELEE., K The useful life of intangible assets is determined according to the
EERFRBAAKTHRITE, WEBRER~HNHASTHENEX The fixed asse NIEVDTFEFEELRT, WEASGTERNEREATNFERE economic useful lives; those intangible assets with unforeseeable
NEh, HEFE, FECEATRITMETERRSIALAENTT ts can be recognised only when the economic benefits related to fixed wERMEAEHITER, DENH#HTIEE, economic lives can be classified as intangible assets with infinite useful
BEEABRFIZMAFNEMIE., BEEA~NITEXHEREY assets are likely to flow into the Bank, and the cost of fixed assets can lives.
FiHR, SXEERFNEAES . TUDEREXRRERIHERDT: be measured reliably. Subsequent expenditure can be recognised as 8. KEAFMER
the cost of fixed assets when the recognition criteria set above is met, The Bank's intangible assets comprise computer software with 2-10
and the replaced carrying amount shall be derecognised. Otherwise, KHASMH ARXRAE L LMD years' useful lives.
such expenditure is to be charged to the profit or loss in the period
when it is incurred. KESEHEAREARSNIN S ZE R EE RN ERESEHIR, For the intangible assets with finite useful lives, amortisation is
FIEHRE. charged to profit or loss on a straight line basis. The useful life and
Fixed assets are initially measured at cost. The cost of a purchased amortisation method for intangible assets with finite useful lives are
fixed asset comprises the purchase price, relevant taxes and any MBKAMBENZRATE FEENEEITHHEZHM, Bk reviewed at each end of the year, with proper adjustments made by
directly attributable expenditure for bringing the asset to working SHAI B SN ESIRE NS EiHE . the Bank when necessary.
condition for its intended use. Depreciation is charged to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis. And the respective estimated useful lives, (8) Long-term deferred expenses
estimated residual values and annual depreciation rates of fixed assets
are set by the Bank considering the nature and usage of fixed assets. Long-term deferred expenses are amortised by the straight line
method.
£ A% WA RER FMER Long-term deferred expenses are amortised on a straight-line basis
Estimated useful lives Estimated residual value Annual depreciation rate over the shorter of lease period and useful life.
ERREESRY Properties and buildings 50 £ - 2%
BHENIEE Motor vehicles 5% = 20% The carrying amount that has not been amortised is charged to profit
DAEE Office equipment 54F _ 20% or loss if the expenditure does not bring benefits to subsequent
HRIEE Computers 3 B 3% accounting periods.

>
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Notes to Financial Statements

2020 £E & For the year ended 31 December 2020
(BR45HIERASN, MBI ARTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)
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(9) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset
of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another
entity.

Recognition and derecognition of financial instrument

A financial asset or a financial liability is recognised when the Bank
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial
instrument.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part
of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.,
removed from the Bank's balance sheet) when:

(i) The rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have
expired; or

(ii) The Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
financial asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a "pass-through" arrangement; and either (a) has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the financial asset, or (b)
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the financial
asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged, cancelled, or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition
of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in
profit or loss.

A regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised, as applicable, using trade date accounting. A regular
way purchase or sale of financial assets represents a purchase or sale
of a financial asset under a contract whose terms require delivery of
the asset within the time frame established generally by regulation or
convention in the marketplace concerned. The trade date is the date
that the Bank committed to purchase or sell a financial asset.
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Classification and measurement of financial assets

Financial assets of the Bank are initially classified into three categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, financial assets
at amortised cost, and financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income based on the Bank's business model for managing
the financial assets and their contractual cash flow characteristics. The Bank
reclassified the relating financial assests if and only if the Bank changes the
business model for managing the financial assets.

Underlying fee of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
directly recognised in profit or loss, while those of other classifications
are attributed to the acquisition of financial assets.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets are based on their
classification:

Debt instrument investment at amortised cost

Financial assets are classified into financial assets at amortised cost
when both of the following conditions are satisfied: The business model
is to collect contractual cash flows; the cash flows on specific date
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding according to the agreement of the financial assets. Their
interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate method.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition, modification or impairment
are recognised in profit or loss.

Debt instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets are classified into Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income when both of the following conditions
are satisfied: The business model is to collect both the contractual
cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of assets; the cash
flows on specific date are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding according to the agreement of the
financial assets. Their interest income is recognised using the effective
interest rate method. A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair
value is recognised as other comprehensive income, except for interest
income, credit impairment losses and foreign exchange gains or losses,
which are recognised in profit or loss. The gain or loss recognised in
other comprehensive income will be reversed and recognised in profit
or loss when the financial assets are derecognised.
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Other than the financial assets at amortised cost and the financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income mentioned above,
financial assets are classified into financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. Such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value and the gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value will be
recognised in profit or loss.

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, or other financial liabilities. Underlying
fee of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are directly
recognised in profit or loss, while those of other financial liabilities are
attributed to the acquisition of financial liabilities.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities is based on their
classification:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial
liabilities held for trading (including derivatives that are liabilities) and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities held for trading (including derivative instruments
attributable to financial liabilities) are subsequently measured at fair
value. All changes in fair value of such financial liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss except for the derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge. Financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss are subsequently measured at fair value
and gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss, except for the gains
or losses arising from the Bank's own credit risk which are presented in
other comprehensive income. If gains or losses arising from the Bank's
own credit risk which are presented in other comprehensive income will
lead to or expand accounting mismatch in profit or loss, the Bank will
include all the changes in fair value (including the amount affected by
changes in the Bank's own credit risk) of such financial liabilities in profit
or loss.

Other financial liabilities

Such financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method.
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Impairment of financial instruments

The Bank recognises a loss for impairment of financial assets at
amortised cost, debt instrument measured at fair through other
comprehensive income, loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts based on their expected credit loss.

For receivable and contract assets without significant financing
components, the Bank uses the simplified approach to calculate the
credit impairment loss, based on lifetime expected credit loss.

Other than the financial assets, loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts using simplified approach, the Bank evaluates
whether the credit risk has significantly increases since the initial
recognition at each financial reporting date. When credit risk hasn't
increased significantly since the initial recognition, the financial
instruments are included in Stage I. the Bank calculate impairment
allowance at an amount equivalent to the ECL of the financial
instruments for the next 12 months, recognise the interest income by
using the carrying amount and effective interest rate. When credit risk
has increased significantly since the initial recognition, but have no
objective evidence of impairment, the financial instruments are included
in Stage I, the Bank calculate the impairment allowance at an amount
equivalent to the ECL over the lifetime of the financial instruments,
and recognise the interest income by using carrying amount and
effective interest rate. If the financial assets have objective evidence of
impairment, the financial instruments are included in Stage Ill, the Bank
calculates the impairment allowance at an amount equivalent to the
ECL over the lifetime of the financial instruments, and recognises the
interest income by using amortised cost and effective interest rate.

At each balance sheet date, the Bank assesses whether the credit risk
on the relevant financial instruments has increased significantly since
initial recognition. The Bank compares the risk of a default occurring
of a single financial instrument or a group of financial instruments
with similar credit risk characteristics as at the balance sheet date with
the risk of a default as at the date of initial recognition, to determine
changes in the risk of a default occurring of the financial instrument in
the expected lifetime. If the credit risk of financial instruments is low
at the balance sheet date, the Bank assumes that the credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition.

The disclosure related to the criterion for whether the credit risk has increased
significantly, the definition of the impaired financial assets and the hypothesis
of the measurement of expected credit loss refers to Note 111.

When there are one or more events that have adverse effects on the expected
future cash flows of a financial asset, the financial asset is credit-impaired.

When the Bank no longer reasonably expects to collect part or all of the
contractual cash flows, the Bank writes down the carrying amount of the
financial assets.
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Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
presented in the balance sheet when and only when the Bank currently
has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

Financial guarantee contract

Financial guarantee contracts are those contracts that require issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contracts are measured, on initial recognition,
at fair value. After initial recognition, financial guarantee contracts
are subsequently measured at the higher of, (i) the expected credit
impairment loss determined on financial reporting date and (ii) the
amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative
amount of income recognised in accordance with the revenue principle.

Derivative financial instruments

The Bank uses derivative financial instruments. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently measured at
fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive
and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any profit or loss arising from changes in fair value of derivatives are
taken directly in profit or loss, except for those related to the hedge
accounting.

Transfer of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when the Bank has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the financial asset to the
transferee. A financial asset is not derecognised when the Bank retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of the financial asset.

When the Bank has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the financial asset, it either (i) derecognises the financial
asset and recognises the assets and liabilities created in the transfer when
it has not retained control of the asset; or (i) continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Bank's continuing involvement, in
which case, the Bank also recognises an associated liability.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred financial asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the financial asset and the guarantee amount. The
guarantee amount is the maximum amount of consideration that the
Bank could be required to repay.
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(10) Repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions

Securities and bills sold subject to repurchase agreements ('Repos")
continue to be recognised, and are recorded as financial investments.
The corresponding obligation is included in "Repurchase agreements".
Securities and bills purchased under agreements to re-sell ("Reverse
repos’) are not recognised. The receivables are recorded as "Reverse
repurchase financial assets’, as appropriate.

The difference between purchase and sale price is recognised as
interest expense or interest income in the profit or loss over the life
of the agreements using the effective interest method.

(11) Precious metals

Precious metals comprise gold and silver. Precious metals acquired by
the Bank for trading purposes are initially measured at fair value and
subsequent changes in fair value are recorded in the profit or loss.

(12) Impairment of assets

The Bank assesses impairment of assets as follows, except for financial
assets and deferred tax assets:

The Bank assesses whether there is an indication that an asset is
impaired at each financial reporting date. If any such indication exists,
the Bank makes an estimate of the asset's recoverable amount and
carries out impairment test. For those assets with infinite useful
lives, regardless of whether the impairment indications exist, the
impairment test is made at least annually. For intangible assets that
have not yet reached their intended use status are also conducted
annual impairment test.

An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs
to sell and the present value of estimated future discounted cash
flows, which is determined on an individual basis.

If the recoverable amount of the asset is less than its carrying value,
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss and the
carrying value of the asset reduced by the amount of the loss.

Once an impairment loss is recognised, it shall not be reversed in the
subsequent period.

>
UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020 103 ___:‘k\

-



4 5+ R B E
Notes to Financial Statements

2020 £E & For the year ended 31 December 2020
(BR45HIERASN, MBI ARTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

13. Fuit fafi

BRTYERA—ZHTEUEF AN EKENHFRFGZ
5h, HEFBEETEXNXSENTFEUTHRME, KASEER
AT R

() EBXFEARREXEHINXSE;
(i)  ZXSHETRUESBEFMNEREARE
(i) BXFHETEBITEHITE,

Tt 6132 BR B AT AR R UL X 55 P 8 3 Y AR AR T B 740 8R
e, FEEXERSNEEMERANE . THE ML TR (E
NESEE. 8ME~RIRREXN T AGRNKENMERITERZ.
FHYIERER\ZEENMETERR G REGITHRN, ZRY
Bl R MG EIZKEMEHTIRE,

IR 3T BRI R 77 i%

FRUIGNFIFI R H

RATFARFHFEBN T FELE”, HHEIRREERH
IR ATTERUAANETEAERHNITARMEE
HHERASMURREATTENSRARSENHERASX
H,

KERMEE, RIETESHASNERAROERMANRES
M BWRARF S XU RITAB ST RN TTE, KX,
EIERERAT LR ARAETI FELAE N EITRKRA LR
B, Nz A~ NS 0 HRYSpIKEMEMERANFTX,
EHERBRHERN, AASEZEERASLEHAGHERR
FHEM LATARKRASRE, ERFETHRERRE, £2
B XMAHWEE. BT RFEMNRAMBAINEILSE. XH%HEA
BaMETNE, ERERRNRNTINERE,

X THMASBEENEREFRARBRENSHAT, KATBEVRH
E, BRZERASHORRRANEERRABRNALGAERTE
WEEFBBA., 2ERABAXERFE, RIESBASREN
EXEFERARENSRASETT FEHANMEITRRIASTE
TIAZERA T~ ERBEAFEK,

A 104 kg (hE) HRAE 2020 FERE

(13) Provisions

An obligation related to a contingency is recognised as provision
when all of the following conditions are satisfied (except for
contingent liability recognised in a business combination not under
common control):

(i) the obligation is a present obligation of the Bank;

(i) it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation; and

(iii) the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably.

The provision is initially measured at the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the related present obligation. Factors pertaining to a
contingency such as the risks, uncertainties and time value of money are
taken into account as a whole in reaching the best estimate. The Bank
reviews the carrying amount of a provision at the balance sheet date.
The carrying amount of a provision will be adjusted when there is clear
evidence that the amount does not reflect the current best estimate.

(14) Recognition of income and expense

Interest income and expense

"Interest income" and "interest expense” item in the income statement
of the Bank are the interest income and expense calculated by using
the effective interest method on financial assets at amortised cost,
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income and
financial liabilities at amortised cost.

The effective interest method is used in the calculation of the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and in the
allocation and recognition of the interest income or interest expense
in profit or loss over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows through the
expected life of a financial asset or financial liability to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset or the amortised cost of a
financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the
Bank estimates the expected cash flows by considering all contractual
terms of the financial instrument but does not consider expected
credit losses. The calculation includes all amounts paid or received
by the Bank that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

For those purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, the
Bank calculates the interest income by applying the credit-adjusted
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset
from initial recognition. The credit-adjusted effective interest rate is
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash flows through the
expected life of the financial asset to the amortised cost of a financial
asset that is a purchased or originated credit-impaired financial asset.
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For those financial assets that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired financial assets but subsequently have become credit-
impaired financial assets, the Bank calculates the interest income
by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset in subsequent reporting periods.

Fee and commission income

The Bank earns fee and commission income from a diverse range
of services it provides to its customers. For those services that
are provided over a period of time, fee and commission income
is accrued in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
service agreement. For other services, fee and commission income is
recognised when the transactions are completed.

(15) Leases

Identification of leases

At inception of a contract, the Bank assesses whether the contract is,
or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of one or more identified assets
for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether
a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time, the Bank assesses whether, throughout
the period of use, the customer has both of the right to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified
asset and the right to direct the use of the identified asset.

Identification of separate lease components

For a contract that contains multiple separate lease components,
the Bank separates the components of the contract and accounts for
each separate lease component. The right to use an identified asset is
a separate lease component if both:

(1) the lessee can benefit from use of the underlying asset either on
its own or together with other resources that are readily available
to the lessee; and

(2) the underlying asset is neither highly dependent on, nor highly
interrelated with, the other underlying assets in the contract.

Separating lease components and non-lease components

The Bank does not separate lease vehicles as a lessee and instead
accounts for each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component, except that the Bank
accounts for the lease components and non-lease components
separately in addition to the underlying assets above.
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Assessment of the lease term

The lease term is the non-cancellable period of a lease for which
the Bank has the right to use an underlying asset. If the Bank has an
option to extend the lease, that is, the Bank has the right to extend
the lease, and is reasonably certain to exercise that option, the lease
term also includes periods covered by an option to extend the lease.
If the Bank has an option to terminate the lease, that is, the Bank
has the right to terminate the lease, but is reasonably certain not
to exercise that option, the lease term includes periods covered by
an option to terminate the lease. The Bank reassesses whether it is
reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, purchase option,
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Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Bank measures the lease
liabilities at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
that date, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
In calculating the present value of the lease payments, the Bank uses
the lessee's incremental borrowing rate. The Bank calculates the interest
expenses of the lease liabilities in each period during the lease term
using the constant periodic rate of interest, and recognises such interest
expenses in profit or loss, except those in the costs of the related
asset as required. Variable lease payments that are not included in the
measurement of the lease liabilities are recognised in profit or loss as

AN FHEAFRBEA or not to exercise a termination option, upon the occurrence of RS SEE LR ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ\mﬂ RARRBAERA R R 2, incurred, except those in the costs of the related asset as required.
either a significant event or a significant change in the circumstances TGSRIE TN, ﬁfﬂiﬁ’f%ﬁﬁi%itﬁ%ﬂ HYPHIE L RS RTINS Y
6 Ya REETAE, AIRBEHENHEEARGOVNEERTITE

ARSERRAF KN ETRZEREERERY . EAIR,

HERREHFEA, $ATHHTTE A AR 7 A9 A
WAAEARES, 8% () HEARNVRITESS; ()
ERRHF BB R A XA EENE @,ﬁfﬁ RNy, 10
BREZZMAEMMEXRESH ) RAARENMBERRA
(4) FBAAFDEBRBER>. ERARASFEHHBR
BHEARSREZEAZFRATRSITRRENRAE, KAF
BEEXAERFENEARNASIHERE, €BREHERR
HREANBSHEERESRENN, ARATEAERASHNRERS
wRITRITIE, TEEEBERTHERNEBRESHETATM
AR, AASEHEERSHEERSFRERETRENENY
BRITRITIH,

AATRBENEHHEAFTNMEETTERET AR, 7148
NIBEFE AR ENKEMER, WERNE~KENES BR
2%, BHEHFRNEE—FSARNYN, AAIBRESTITAY
e b

A 106 k@ (hE) HRLAE 2020 FRHEE

that is within the control of the Bank and affects whether the Bank is
reasonably certain to exercise an option not previously included in its
determination of the lease term.

As lessee
Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets of the Bank mainly include buildings and
vehicles.

At the commencement date of the lease, the Bank recognises a right-
of-use asset. The cost of the right-of-use asset comprises: (i) the
amount of the initial measurement of the lease liabilities; (i) any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date of the lease
less any lease incentives received; (iii) any initial direct cost incurred;
and (iv) an estimate of costs incurred by the lessee in dismantling
and removing the underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is
located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease. The right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis subsequently by the Bank. If the
Bank is reasonably certain that the ownership of the underlying asset
will be transferred to the Bank at the end of the lease term, the Bank
depreciates the asset from the commencement date to the end of
the useful life of the asset. Otherwise, the bank depreciates the assets
from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful
life of the asset or the end of the lease term.

The Bank remeasures the lease liabilities at the present value of the
changed lease payments and adjusts the carrying amount of the right-
of-use assets accordingly, when the carrying amount of the right-
of-use asset is reduced to zero, and there is a further reduction in
the measurement of the lease liabilities, the Bank recognises the
remaining amount of the remeasurement in profit or loss.
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After the commencement date of the lease, if there is a change on
actual fixed payment, expected payable of guaranteed residual value,
the index or rate used to calculate the lease payment, purchase
option, the assessment of option to extend the lease, option to
terminate the lease or actual option exercise situation, the bank
will recalculate the lease liabilities at the present value of the lease
payments based changes occurred.

Lease modiifications

Lease modification is a change in the scope of a lease, or the
consideration for a lease, that was not part of the original terms and
conditions of the lease, for example, adding or terminating the right
to use one or more underlying assets, or extending or shortening the
contractual lease term.

The Bank accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if both:

(1) the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the
right to use one or more underlying assets; and

(2) the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone price
to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease,
at the effective date of the lease modification the Bank remeasures
the lease liabilities by discounting the revised lease payments using
a revised discount rate. The revised discount rate is determined as
the lessee's incremental borrowing rate at the effective date of the
modification.

For the above lease modification, the Bank makes a corresponding
adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
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Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Bank considers a lease that, at the commencement date of the
lease, has a lease term of 12 months or less, and does not contains any
purchase option as a short-term lease; and a lease for which the value of
the individual underlying asset is not more than USD5,000 when it is new
as a lease of low-value assets. If the Bank subleases an asset, or expects
to sublease an asset, the head lease does not qualify as a lease of a low-
value asset. The Bank does not recognise the right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for buildings and vehicles short-term leases and low-value assets.
The Bank recognises lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets in the costs of the related asset or profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

(16) Government subsidies

Government subsidies will be recognised if the Bank can receive
government subsidies and meet the conditions attached to government
subsidies. If government subsidies are monetary assets, they shall
be measured in the light of the amount received or receivable. If a
government subsidy is a non-monetary asset, it shall be measured at its
fair value; and if its fair value cannot be obtained in a reliable way, it shall
be measured at a nominal amount. Government subsidies associated with
income which are used as compensation for future costs, expenses or
losses are recognized as deferred expenditures and shall be recorded in
future profits and losses to reverse the related costs where the relevant
costs, expenses or losses are recognized. Government subsidies associated
with income which are used to compensate the related costs, expenses
or losses incurred by the Bank are directly included in current profit and
loss or used to reverse the related costs. Government subsidies associated
with assets shall set off the book value of related assets or be recognized
as deferred expenditures. Government subsidies related to assets are
recognized as deferred expenditures to be distributed over the useful lives
of the relevant assets and shall be recorded in the profit or loss by stages
in a reasonable and systematic manner. Government subsidies measured in
nominal amounts, shall be directly recognized in current profits and losses.
Where relevant assets are sold, transferred, scraped or damaged before
the end of their lives, balance of the unallocated deferred expenditures
shall be recognized in current profit and loss on asset disposal.

(17) Share-based payment

The Bank's share-based compensation programme is measured as an
equity-settled share-based payment.

The equity-settled share-based payment is measured by reference to the
fair value of the equity instruments granted. Where the equity instruments
granted vest immediately, the Bank recognises the expense in full at the
fair value on grant date with a corresponding increase in capital reserve.
Where the equity instruments granted vest upon the fulfilment of service
period or performance conditions, the Bank makes a best estimate at the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest, at each financial
reporting date of the vesting period, and recognise the expense pertaining
to the current period at the fair value on grant date with a corresponding
increase in capital reserve. The fair values of the equity instruments are
estimated using the Trinomial valuation methodology.
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No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except
for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional upon a market
or non-vesting condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether or not the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity—settled award are modified, as a minimum,
an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been modified. An
additional expense is recognised for any modification which increases the
total fair value of the share—based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity—settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested
on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for the
award is recognised immediately. This includes any award where non—vesting
conditions within the control of the employees are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new compensation are
treated as if they were a modification of the original award.

(18) Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration or compensation given by
the Bank in exchange for service rendered by employees or for the termination
of employment, including short-term employee benefits, post-employment
benefits, termination benefits and other long-term benefits.

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries and bonuses, social security contributions and other short-term
employee benefits are accrued in the period in which services have been
rendered by the employees of the Bank.

Post-employment benefits (defined contribution plan)

Employees of the Bank participate in the retirement insurance plan, and
unemployment insurance plan administered by the local government, and
the contribution is recognised to profit or loss of that period.

Employees of the Bank can participate in the annuity plan established
by the Bank on a voluntary basis. The Bank contributes to the annuity at
a certain percentage of employees' salary, and recognises the cost in the
profit or loss accordingly.
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Income tax includes current tax and deferred tax. Current income tax and
movements in deferred tax balances are recognised in profit or loss except
that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case the tax
is recognised directly in equity.

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities in accordance with relevant tax regulations.

Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the balance
sheet date.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each
financial reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
income tax assets are reassessed at each financial reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when fulfilling of

the following conditions:

(i) A legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities.

(i) The deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are related
to the income tax levied on the same taxpayer by the same tax
administrative department or are related to different taxpayers
but, within each future period of reversal of important deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities, the taxpayers involved
intend to settle current tax assets and current tax liabilities or
acquire assets and liquidate liabilities at the same time.
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At each financial reporting date, the Bank measures its derivatives, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, other debt instrument at fair
value through other comprehensive income and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss. Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the assumption that the orderly transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Bank. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumption that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming
that market participants act in their economic best interest.

The Bank uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure the
fair value. Use of observable inputs is maximized and unobservable inputs
will only be used when observable inputs are not available or obtaining
observable inputs becomes unpractical.

For assets and liabilities measured and disclosed at fair value, the fair
value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of
the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to
the entire measurement: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that are accessible at the
measurement date; Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

For assets and liabilities held at the end of the balance sheet date that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis, the Bank continues to make
assessment as to whether there is transfer between different levels of the
fair value hierarchy.

(21) Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly
or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence
over the other party. Parties are also considered to be related if they are
subject to common control or common significant influence.

The state-owned enterprises without other relationships do not constitute
related parties.
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(22) Entrusted business

Where the Bank acts in an entrusted business such as nominee,
custodian or agent, assets arising thereon together with related
undertakings to return such assets to customers are excluded from the
financial statements.

(23) Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Bank. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required or
the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

The Bank will not recognise contingent liabilities, but disclosed in the
notes to financial statements. In case the condition changes, which led
to the outflow of economic resources is probable, provisions will be
made.

(24) Significant accounting judgment and estimates

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the management
has used its judgments and made estimates and assumptions of the
effects of uncertain future events on the financial statements. The use
of judgments, estimates and assumptions will affect the amount of
income, expense, assets and liabilities presented and disclosed. The
uncertainty of such estimates and assumptions might have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the future.

Judgment

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the management
make following judgments which has significant impact on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Business model

Financial assets are initially classified based on the Bank's business
model for managing the financial assets. The Bank judges the business
model, with the consideration of enterprise evaluation, the reporting
mode to key management, related risk and corresponding risk
management method of financial assets performance, and the reward
system of related business personnel. The Bank analyses and judges the
reason, timing, frequency and value of selling financial assets before
maturity date when judging whether the business model is to collect

contractual cash flows or not.
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Characteristics of the contractual cash flows

Financial assets are initially classified based on their contractual cash
flow characteristics. When judging whether the contractual cash flow
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, the considerations contain: (i)judging whether there exists
significant difference compared with the benchmark cash flow, when
evaluating the modification of the time value of the money, (ii) judging
whether fair value of the early repayment characteristics is immaterial
for financial assets with early repayment characteristics.

Uncertainty of estimates

The following items are the key hypothesis about the future and other key
source of uncertainty of estimates on financial reporting date. It may cause
significant modification on carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the
future accounting period.

Impairment of financial instruments

The Bank uses the expected credit loss model to evaluate the impairment
of financial instruments since 1 January, 2018. Applying the expected
credit loss model need to make significant judgment and estimates with
consideration of all reasonable information with proper basis, including
the forward-looking information. When making those judgment and
estimates, the Bank deduces the expected changes of obligor's credit
risk with consideration of the historical repayment data combined with
the economic policy, macroeconomic indicators, industry risk and etc.
Different estimates may affect the impairment provision. The provision for
impairment may not equal amount of impairment losses in the future.

Impairment of non-current assets besides financial assets

Non-current assets other than financial-assets are reviewed for impairment
on financial reporting date. When the carrying amount of an asset is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount. For intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, the
impairment test is made annually and when impairment indications exist. For
other non-current assets besides financial assets, the impairment test is made
when there is an indication that their carrying amount is not recoverable.
When the carrying amount of an asset or a group of assets is higher than
their recoverable amount, i.e. higher of its fair value less costs to sell and the
present value of estimated future discounted cash flows, it is indicated that
the impairment losses have occurred. Fair value less costs to sell refers to the
selling contract price from fair trading of similar asset or the observable market
price, less the incremental costing directly attributes to the asset disposal.
When estimating the present value of future discounted cash flows. The
management must estimate the future cash flow of the asset or the group of
assets, and choose a proper discount rate to determine the present value.
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Deferred income tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Fair value of financial instruments

The Bank establishes fair value of financial instruments with reference
to a quoted market price in an active market or, if there is no active
market, using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques include
the use of recent arm's length transactions, observable prices for
similar instruments, discounted cash flow analysis using risk-adjusted
interest rates, and commonly used market pricing models. Whenever
possible these models use observable market inputs and data
including, for example, interest rate yield curves, foreign currency rates
and option volatilities. The results of using valuation techniques are
calibrated against the industry practice and observable current market
transactions in the same or similar instruments.

Derecognition of financial instruments

The Bank assesses and judges on the extent to which it retains the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial instruments for the
transferred transactions entered into, and make relevant accounting
treatments accordingly.

Lessee’s incremental borrowing rate

The Bank measures the lease liability at the present value of the
lease payments discounted using the lessee's incremental borrowing
rate. According to the economic environment, the Bank takes the
observable interest rate as the reference basis for determining the
incremental borrowing rate, then adjusts the observable interest rate
based on its own circumstances, underlying assets, lease terms and
amounts of lease liabilities to determine the applicable incremental
borrowing rate.
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5. Changes in accounting policies and estimates
Disclosure of related parties

According to Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises Interpretation
No.13 from 1 January 2020, the following parties which were not
considered as related party previously are treated as related parties:
associates or joint ventures of other members (including a parent and
subsidiary) of a group of which the Company is a member, and their
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures of an entity that has joint control
over the Company, and their subsidiaries, joint ventures of an entity
that has significant influence over the Company, and their subsidiaries,
subsidiaries of joint ventures, subsidiaries of associates. The change in
accounting policies has affected the judgement on related parties and
the disclosure of related party transactions. According to transitional
provisions, comparative amounts were not adjusted retrospectively.

6. Taxation

The major categories of tax applicable to the Bank and the respective tax
rates for the current financial year are as follows:

BER REBLRNIZ 13% 3 6% B9BLRITEEIBL, FHZMBR S AA PRI H IR IR N ZFTH S ER.

Value-added tax
deduct the input tax.

Sk ik Al e

City construction tax

BEHMN

Educational surcharge

A TR

Corporate income tax

RN AT TSR 25% 148,

RINFDAFTEHR
Withholding individual Income tax

ELFRAEN B REL LAY 7% T4

The Bank is subjected to a city construction tax rate of seven per cent on turnover tax.

REFREEN AR EE LAY 3% T4

The Bank is subjected to an educational surcharge rate of three per cent on turnover tax.

The Bank is subjected to a Value-added output tax levied on 13 per cent or six per cent of taxable income

The Bank is subjected to a corporate tax rate of 25 per cent.

AT X MERERANFHE, HAASRFERMNBNAREH,
In accordance with the relevant tax laws in the PRC, the Bank is required to withhold individual income tax
on salaries paid to its employees.
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7. Notes to financial statements

(1) Cash and deposit with the Central Bank

31-12-2020 31-12-2019
EEFNE Cash on hand 4,163,644 6,161,298
TR RBTEERES - ART  Statutory deposit reserve with the Central Bank - RMB 3,304,047,179 3,639,084,655
FHRARBITEEESS -0 Statutory deposit reserve with the Central Bank - foreign currency 284,969,029 286,104,723
TR RBITINCRS FEE S Foreign exchange risk reserve with the Central Bank 586,468,851 975,437,764
FR R RBE T H AR Other deposits with the Central Bank 512,775,219 1,570,033,489
R UF B Interest receivable 1,655,508 1,391,298
B P RBITHRIUREES Less: allowance for impairment losses (486,116) (669,977)

&1t Total

4,693,593,314 6,477,543,250

RIEBEFEARBTNEENE, KAADLTIE—ELLREAEFRE
Z&THPEARRIT, F2020F 2 A3 H, KAFARTRING
FROERSHFLLAI R4 105% (2019 F12 B 31 H: M%) & 5% (2019
F#NAENA: 5%) .
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The Bank places statutory deposit reserves with the People's Bank of China
(PBOC) in accordance with relevant regulations issued by it. As at 31 December
2020, statutory deposit reserves placed with the PBOC were calculated at 10.5
per cent (31 December 2019: 11 per cent) and five per cent (31 December 2019:
five per cent) of qualified RMB deposits and foreign currency deposits from
customers respectively.

The Bank places foreign exchange risk reserve with the PBOC monthly
in accordance with relevant regulations since October 2015. The foreign
exchange risk reserve is calculated at a certain percentage of the contractual
amount of forward sales of exchanges in the preceding month. The foreign
exchange risk reserve ratio reduced from 20 per cent to zero per cent since
October 2020.

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the Bank included all deposit
with the Central Bank in Stage |, and measured the impairment losses based

on expected credit losses in the next 12 months (12-month ECL).

(2) Due from banks and other financial institutions

31-12-2020 31-12-2019
BrERNETEVREMESES Due from domestic banks and other financial institutions 901,033,543 937,724,434
FRURINRITREL Due from overseas banks 2,794,856,980 920,510,122
RCH 2 Interest receivable 491,469 459,570
Nt Sub-total 3,696,381,992 1,858,694,126
B BEREVREEE Less: allowance for impairment losses (15,668,827) (6,255,224)
FRE Y R Net amount of due from banks and other financial institutions 3,680,713,165 1,852,438,902

FREVREAEZAARASRIFREL 2000145 5 (FERESXT
% « BTy ME N EEES > (BN MIEMITRN
= B MR A E U R IR R 12 B IEE R A THRA R E AR,

T 2020 F 12 §3IAK200F12[3H, KATEEEFRE LK
TEANB R —, RERK 12/ ATEERRAITEREES,

.
A 16 xe@em (hE) ARAT 2020 EERES

Impairment provisions for due from banks and other financial institutions
represented the country risk reserve provided according to Yin Jian Fa [2010]
No. 45 Circular of the China Banking Regulatory Commission on Printing and
Distributing the Guidelines for Country Risk Management of the Banking
Financial Institutions issued by CBIRC, and the provision for impairment
measured according to 12-month expected credit loss.

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the Bank included all due from
banks and other financial institutions in Stage I, and measured the impairment
losses based on expected credit losses in the next 12 months (12-month ECL).

LR #EE

(3) Placements with banks and other financial institutions

31-12-2020 31-12-2019

TR A HEARTEL R
HAb &R

R & R IMRITE Placements with overseas banks
RUF B Interest receivable

Nt Sub-total

w R E LR E A

Less: allowance for impairment losses

HHA S

Placements with domestic banks and other financial institutions

Net amount of placements with banks and other financial institutions

4,821,387,360 6,122,336,905

1,846,037,000 1,367,659,000

10,092,464 20,860,893

6,677,516,824 7,510,856,798

(9,624,176) (11,010,576)

6,667,892,648 7,499,846,222

IR RS EAE S DA A SRIERE R 201015 5 (FERESXT
BN (RTIVERIMER N EEIES) B NREmITRN
B 71 Kb R B IR IR IR 12 D B IR E BRI R E S,

FT2020F12B3NER200FE2[BINEH, ARTEFEEMWIFHASH
ABER—, ZEARR 2D BAMBAGERRETTEREESE.

4. XS HERME

Impairment provisions for placements represented the country risk reserve
provided according to Yin Jian Fa [2010] No. 45 Circular of the China Banking
Regulatory Commission on Printing and Distributing the Guidelines for
Country Risk Management of the Banking Financial Institutions issued by
CBIRC, and the provision for impairment measured according to 12-month
expected credit loss.

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the Bank included all
placements with banks and other financial institutions in Stage I, and
measured the impairment losses based on expected credit losses in the next
12 months (12-month ECL).

(4) Financial assets held-for-trading

31-12-2020 31-12-2019
UARMMETTE BREFITA
LA SRE~: Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
R RBITERERE R Central Bank bills and government bonds 149,776,650 -
s E Placement with banks and other financial institutions 821,291,982 684,165,157
[ENZE3:: Negotiable certificates of deposit 547,659,650 740,087,700
RS Interest receivable 6,513,562 1,405,520
&1t Total 1,525,241,844 1,425,658,377

i
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SATEERTA

PAESRMIRE—ME™ 5, ENEBURTHMAKIE S &
TSR RIERH AT ENNE. BRXLBRMN T RERE
BE. AFE@. BETN. EHEHNICRRFERE, KATE
ANt TRASRERTHEY. =5, HIKE,

PrEsm I AN XETREEMKIN B A-NaRNE,
FRAF NRFREREFOBD . ZERMERR T SIHREHRE
ATPLTESRM T AN A mIEARNE,
FATEAEHREENMEIEEAERIRNTTASHIA,

KA TEFNFEREFFENITAESMIARMNT:

(5) Derivative financial instruments

A derivative is a financial instrument, the value of which is derived from the
value of another "underlying" financial instrument, an index or some other
variables. Typically, an "underlying" financial instrument is a share, commodity
or bond price, an index value or an exchange or interest rate. The Bank uses
derivative instruments such as forwards, swaps, options and futures.

The notional amount of a derivative represents the amount of underlying
asset upon which the value of the derivative is based. It indicates the
unsettled volume of business transaction at the balance sheet date. The
amount of underlying asset reflects the risk exposure of derivative at the end
of accounting period other than fair value.

The Bank has no derivative designated as hedging instruments.

The notional amount and fair value of the Bank's derivative instruments are as
follows:

(6) Reverse repurchase financial assets

31-12-2020 31-12-2019
BESWFo%: Classified by counter-party:
[k Financial institutions 2,271,360,000 3,246,540,000
NUF B Interest receivable 2,481,680 7,561,612
B OBEER Less: allowance for impairment losses (204,966) (353,251)
&it 2,273,636,714 3,253,748,361
IR R, Classified by type of pledged assets:
a5 Bonds 2,271,360,000 3,246,540,000
NUF B Interest receivable 2,481,680 7,561,612
B OBEER Less: allowance for impairment losses (204,966) (353,251)
&if Total 2,273,636,714 3,253,748,361

31-12-2020 31-12-2019
A RME Fair Value ASHME Fair Value
BX & # = Afr BEX S &= Afr
Notional Amount Assets Liabilities Notional Amount Assets Liabilities
SMCHTET R Foreign exchange contracts:

ZHRES Forwards 8,797,620,818 44,514,861 99,178,077 8,960,089,203 160,513,880 74,027,568

HEED Swaps 351,342,390,296 8,773,152,071 9,055,376,169 276,786,396,744  2,512,196,287 2,659,081,330

HEZ Options 32,502,777,345 637,786,380 435,045,791 46,643,484,190 196,570,680 240,972,343
/Nt Sub-total 392,642,788,459 9,455,453,312 9,589,600,037 332,389,970,137  2,869,280,847 2,974,081,241
FIRATETH: Interest rate contracts:

HHEH Swaps 243,447,312,204 1,106,967,653 1,047,472,263 254,744,182,319 715,988,782 743,648,913
INTF Sub-total 243,447,312,204 1,106,967,653 1,047,472,263 254,744,182,319 715,988,782 743,648,913
BRNEESHTE. Commodity contracts:

HEEY Swaps 5,155,710,682 177,610,492 177,092,741 3,464,077,941 131,712,810 131,226,230
Nt Sub-total 5,155,710,682 177,610,492 177,092,741 3,464,077,941 131,712,810 131,226,230

ENEIE# TR, Equity contracts:

HED Options 639,119,726 1,679,173 1,702,732 1,698,436,013 4,099,733 4,126,346
it Sub-total 639,119,726 1,679,173 1,702,732 1,698,436,013 4,099,733 4,126,346
=&BITETE:  Precious metal derivatives

mHEH Forwards 20,331,014,212 780,277,619 703,007,730 18,735,007,298 325,787,753 226,100,612

HHEH Swaps 6,167,899,797 37,819,463 72,602,408 3,029,411,240 71,990,336 57,797,623

HAAR & 2 Options ; ; ; 17,140,767 234,681 234,625

&4 Futures 1,582,042,122 7,328,629 19,885,714 485,371,120 14,682,947 -
/Nt Sub-total 28,080,956,131 825,425,711 795,495,852 22,266,930,425 412,695,717 284,132,860
&it Total 669,965,887,202  11,567,136,341  11,611,363,625 614,563,596,835 4,133,777,889  4,137,215,590

A 18 xumss (hE) ARAE 2000 FERE

T2020F2AB3NER200FE2[INH, ARTEFEWINRES
RAFPANER—, ZERR2DAATHERRRTEREREE.

7. KT AN

[AE: AW = B i

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the Bank included all reverse
repurchase financial assets in Stage I, and measured the impairment losses
based on expected credit losses in the next 12 months (12-month ECL).

(7) Loans and advances to customers

(71) Distribution of loans and advances by individual and corporate

31-12-2020 31-12-2019

WUBER A EITERN AT Loans and advances to customers at amortised cost

MASRINER. Retail loans and advances:
R Mortgages 5,732,690,002 6,829,629,559
Hith Others 1,351,987 1,842,190
Nt Sub-total 5,734,041,989 6,831,471,749
DAl BEFRFIER TR Corporate loans and advances:
" Loans 17,426,062,438 18,931,983,972
NHEL Discounted bills 1,051,912,199 258,427,175
BHeR Trade finance 11,802,993,582 8,745,626,924
it Sub-total 30,280,968,219 27,936,038,071

ManEit & BE RS
TN R A R TR A K

B SRREEE
R GTR ALK E HE

Loans and advances to customers at fair value through profit and
loss

&It Total
SERCR WS Interest receivable
RIRERARR EBE Total amount of loans and advances

Less: allowance for impairment losses

Net value of loans and advances to customers

866,797,767

981,432,228

36,881,807,975

35,748,942,048

174,613,351

176,211,396

37,056,421,326

35,925,153,444

(870,385,199)

(780,738,832)

36,186,036,127

35,144,414,612

>
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72 #7557 (7.2) Distribution of loans and advances to customers by industry 74 BRAR D (7.4) Loans and advances to customers by type of collateral or guarantee
31-12-2020 31-12-2019 31-12-2020 31-12-2019
KT 3 Ee ST =t ERR Unsecured loans 6,153,734,827 4,911,545,834
Amount  Percentage Amount Percentage R
1RIERER Guaranteed loans 6,089,453,290 6,601,416,899
i =l Real estates 9,256,345,957 25% 9,571,546,438 27%
ME R TR Loans with collaterals 24,813,233,209 24,412,190,711
il Manufacturing 7,292,548,826 20% 7,602,150,185 21%
Hr: Of which:
HEMTE L Wholesale and retail 6,921,873,222 19% 6,252,272,902 18%
_ ) IR ER Secured by mortgages 19,068,821,820 19,886,982,250
o= Finance 1,933,416,786 5% 1,538,642,473 5%
wa S d by pled 5,744,411,389 4,525,208,461
EEEH . BENEERARS Y Telecommunication, software and ARG ecured by piedges
information management services 1,266,862,528 3% 887,562,530 2% R ER TR AT Total amount of loans and advances 37,056,421,326 35,925,153,444
EREMERL Accommodation and catering 1,213,622,495 3% 1,206,711,997 3% e ERBEAE Less: allowance for impairment losses (870,385,199) (780,738,832)
Tk, CEMBRELL Transportation, storage and post 1,052,765,235 3% 384,427,303 1% R RRIKE N E Net value of loans and advances to customers 36,186,036,127 35,144,414,612
HAENE SRS Leasing and commercial services 543,903,034 1% 119,722,949 -
RMBCE A Agriculture, forestry, farming and fishing 533,781,913 1% 200,000,000 1% 75 R (75) Overdue Loan
B, Bh. RERKEFEMEERE Electricity, heat, gas and water supply 454,948,415 1% 303,478,969 1%
B4 HESREMMSERN W Health, social security and social welfare 368,994,019 1% 361,613,033 1% 31-12-2020
B Construction 263,378,486 1% 363,348,566 1% W1 XE  METRETE BME T EEIF B3 F
R RMBARSE W Scientific research and technical services 43,639,807 - 93,299,689 - 90 X (& 1) (& 3%F) Ak Hif
Overdue 1 day days to 1 year Overdue 1yearto3  Overdue 3 years
HE W Education 1,685,263 - 26,693,265 - to 90 days (inclusive) years (inclusive) above Total
% & % Resident: ices, ir and oth i - - 6,000,000 - .
BRERS. BENAMERSL esIdents services, repair and other services BT Guaranteed loans 7,370,000 14,757,283 27,806,538 - 49,933,821
INE Retail loan 5,734,041,989 17% 6,831,471,749 19%
448 L H
&t Total 36,881,807,975 100%  35,748,942,048 100% B8R4 T¥ =k Loans with collaterals 2,691,065 59,064,534 19,178,741 7,800,809 88,735,149
IR I B Interest receivable 174,613,351 176,211,396 Heh Of which:
> B ERF H B SR 90,421, 1769,193, ¢
RHGHMERL B Total amount of loans and advances _ 37.056,421,326 35925153444 IR Secured by mortgages 236,485 52,283,602 19,178,741 7,800,809 79,499,637
B RERREESE Less: allowance for impairment losses (870,385,199) (780,738,832)
I - o - -
R BREHR W ENE Net value of loans and advances to customers 36,186,036,127 35,144,414,612 JRAREE Secured by pledges 2,454,580 6,780,932 9,235,512
&1t Total 10,061,065 73,821,817 46,985,279 7,800,809 138,668,970
73 iR X 5% (7.3) Distribution of loans and advances to customers by geographical region
31-12-2020 31-12-2019 31-12-2019
%4t Northeast 1,220,488,047 904,599,526 N IET BEO1 RE 14 BEEE3E B3
A East 15,756,734,672 18,625,920,703 90 X (&14) (& 3%F) Mk A1t
Overdue 1 day days to 1 year Overdue 1yearto3  Overdue 3 years
1£4t North 7,130,310,369 6,689,249,129 to 90 days (inclusive) years (inclusive) above Total
1®
b Central 1,017,390,912 965,661,546 (RIF 2K Guaranteed loans 31,615,001 - - B 31,615,001
€5 South 5,803,857,052 4,436,905,184
REEREL e Loans with collaterals 474,932 68,490,080 100,453,288 7,800,808 177,219,108
)7 Southwest 3,996,084,325 2,722,592,826
BB Northwest 296,910,364 312,000,000 HeF Of which:
BIMBX Overseas 1,660,032,234 1,092,013,134 RS ER Secured by mortgages 474,932 68,490,080 100,453,288 7,800,808 177,219,108
&it Total 36,881,807,975 35,748,942,048
IR Secured by pledges - - - R .
GERR R IR 2 Interest receivable 174,613,351 176,211,396
&It Total 32,089,933 68,490,080 100,453,288 7,800,808 208,834,109

9§ e RilEE Y

Total amount of loans and advances

Less: allowance for impairment losses

37,056,421,326

35,925,153,444

(870,385,199)

(780,738,832)

BRI AN BEE 1 RN LTI,

Overdue loans are loans of which the principals or related interests are

b
B BEORE S
RILRFAAIR K ENE Net value of loans and advances to customers 36,186,036,127 35,144,414,612 overdue for one day or above.

.
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7.6 SIRIRREE

PR AAREIT BN AR TR R B EEEZRAAS 2B
ERRRRENFEBTRERREAD IR, BEAEENZHMNT

(7.6) Loan impairment provision

The allowances for loans and advances measured at amortised cost are
measured according to the 12-month expected credit loss and lifetime

expected credit loss respectively. The movement of impairment provisions is

as follows:
2020
- E_MEK E=ME
Stage | Stage Il Stage IlI
KK 124A8 BN BNFEHERE &1t
TS Rk T IR K ERBESRE>
12-month expected Lifetime expected Credit-impaired Total
credit loss credit loss financial assets
(Lifetime expected
credit loss)
20201 B 1 B&H At 1 January 2020 647,273,129 68,696,762 64,768,941 780,738,832
2020 £ 1 B 1 HEFAEATE Opening balance on 1 January 2020
- ENE MR Transfer to Stage |l (40,118,101) 40,118,101 - -
- EBNE=ME Transfer to Stage |lI (2,700,344) (1,923,607) 4,623,951 -
-- A E—ER Transfer to Stage | 14,853,470 (14,853,470) - -
AEHHR 5% M Charge/(reverse) during the year 14,566,425 73,724,959 156,464,179 244,755,563
REZE Writing off during the year - - (154,378,231) (154,378,231)
Recovery of loans and advances
W [E I B AR previously written off - - - -
IR Ak Unwinding of discount - N - -
SCRAF Exchange rate difference - - (730,965) (730,965)
FERET Closing balance 633,874,579 165,762,745 70,747,875 870,385,199
2019
B EMER EZHER
Stage | Stage Il Stage |lI
KK 124A8 BN BAGEHERE &1t
TS Rk TREME IR K ERBESRE>
12-month expected Lifetime expected Credit-impaired Total
credit loss credit loss financial assets
(Lifetime expected
credit loss)
20191 B 1 B&E At 1 January 2019 605,230,793 28,985,392 80,222,475 714,438,660
2019 F 1 B 1 HEFAEATE Opening balance on 1 January 2019
- ENE MR Transfer to Stage |l (12,549,336) 12,549,336
- EBNE=MER Transfer to Stage Ill (359,616) - 359,616 -
-- EE[E| S —fER Transfer to Stage | 880,951 (880,951) - -
AREHHR 5% M Charge/(reverse) during the year 54,070,337 28,042,985 51,536,626 133,649,948
REZE Writing off during the year - - (61,580,962) (61,580,962)
Recovery of loans and advances
e [B] I B £ AR 5 previously written off - - - ;
I E % Unwinding of discount - - (5,849,180) (5,849,180)
LR Exchange rate difference - - 80,366 80,366
FERET Closing balance 647,273,129 68,696,762 64,768,941 780,738,832

A 122 @ (hE) ARAT 2020 EERE

8. HA AR A

(8) Other debt instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income

REHFLS

Interest payable

2020

REAR FRRH B Ritan RitEEMLGSkE
MEZR MEZS  PEIANRIES

Gains from  Closing balance Cost Accumulated  Accumulated ECL
change in fair gains from recognised in other
value during the changes in fair comprehensive
year value income

FRB\ITERFERLERR  Central Bank bills and
government bonds 92,611,603 (21,117,772)  5,842,134,142  7,854,607,053 (1,900,801) 592,020
B MR IT%5 X7l Bonds issued by policy banks
RITHRE and commercial banks 51,027,680 (13,614,077)  2,646,973,092  3,020,038,902 2,138,294 509,268
Negotiable certificate of
EfFE deposits - 647,973 2,540,169,510 2,515,912,059 981,166 602,211
At Total 143,639,283 (34,083,876) 11,029,276,744 13,390,558,014 1,218,659 1,703,499
2019
MR R RENR FREH B Kitan RitEEMEEREE
nEZS MER  PEHIARIOES
Interest payable Gains from  Closing balance Cost Accumulated  Accumulated ECL
change in fair gains from recognised in other
value during the changes in fair comprehensive
year value income
FRRITEREESR  Central Bank bills and 98,746,551 20,470,708  5,405,545,971 5,314,361,339 36,261,054 542,913
government bonds
BR MR ITHR %K Bk Bonds issued by policy banks 51,781,475 11,070,338  2,517,083,825 2,478,239,415 18,148,881 449,536
RITHRS and commercial banks
Negotiable certificate of
BRI %= deposits - 837,801  2,223,258,140 2,207,317,049 1,178,525 604,224
&It Total 150,528,026 32,378,847 10,145,887,936  9,999,917,803 55,588,460 1,596,673

T 2020 F 2 B3N AKX 2019 F2 A3 H, AXSHEBMEMBEIR
RANHER—, BERK2ANAATRSHERRRTEREEE,

AFAEHEMEERETHANRESTAART 33977049 7T (2019

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the Bank included all
other debt instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income
in Stage |, and measured the impairment losses based on expected credit
losses in the next 12 months (12-month ECL).

F: NEEMAART 32834631 7T) , AFLILFIAMNEMEGS

B N SR AN S ETOART 20285926 5T (2019 F: AR

i 2691789 5T)

The amount of loss recognized in other comprehensive income in 2020
was RMB33,977,049 (2019: the amount of profit RMB32,834,631), and the
amount transferred from other comprehensive income to the current
profit was RMB20,285,926 (2019: RMB2,691,789).

N
i
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9. BlE&= (9) Fixed assets
2020
ERRE AR BRE A1t
Motor vehicles  Office equipment and Total
computers
FE: Cost:
2020181 H At 1 January 2020 2,538,181 102,802,290 105,340,471
AN Additions 416,095 8,819,633 9,235,728
AEEBTIEHEAN (MHE+L. 13.2) Transfer from construction in progress (Note 7.13.2) - 212,542 212,542
RENE Disposals (400,453) (6,858,894) (7,259,347)
202012 A 31 H At 31 December 2020 2,553,823 104,975,571 107,529,394
FitifIA: Accumulated depreciation:
2020 1B 1H At 1 January 2020 2,320,294 70,354,295 72,674,589
REIHR Additions 154,563 11,877,651 12,032,214
RENE Disposals (400,453) (6,706,502) (7,106,955)
202012 A 31 H At 31 December 2020 2,074,404 75,525,444 77,599,848
BE RS ER ST Net book value and net carrying amount
2020128 31 H At 31 December 2020 479,419 29,450,127 29,929,546
2019
BERERY ThRg  HARBRRE &t
Properties and Motor vehicles Office equipment Total
buildings and computers
B Cost:
2018 12 A 31 H At 31 December 2018 5,793,690 2,538,181 119,061,110 127,392,981
RESITBRT Changes in accounting policies (5,793,690) - - (5,793,690)
201918 1H At 1 January 2019 - 2,538,181 119,061,110 121,599,291
ARELLIN Additions - - 11,669,043 11,669,043
AEAZTIREEN (HE+L. 13.2) Transfer from construction in progress (Note 7.13.2) - - 618,251 618,251
KRELE Disposals - - (28,546,114) (28,546,114)
201912 31 H At 31 December 2019 - 2,538,181 102,802,290 105,340,471
FitifIA: Accumulated depreciation:
2018 £ 12 A 31 H At 31 December 2018 2,027,795 2,093,920 86,787,316 90,909,031
KESTHBEDT Changes in accounting policies (2,027,795) - - (2,027,795)
201918 1H At 1 January 2019 - 2,093,920 86,787,316 88,881,236
REITHR Additions - 226,374 11,976,198 12,202,572
KELE Disposals - - (28,409,219) (28,409,219)
201912831 H At 31 December 2019 - 2,320,294 70,354,295 72,674,589
BE R =S ERET Net book value and net carrying amount
2019128 31 H At 31 December 2019 - 217,887 32,447,995 32,665,882

-~
A 124 k@ (hE) BRAE 2020 FERE

10. fE LA =

(10) Right-of-use asset

2020
FEERERY ZHIR it
Properties and buildings Motor vehicles Total
B Cost:
202001 B 18 At 1 January 2020 101,474,258 6,615,644 108,089,902
RN Additions 132,198,878 2,600,166 134,799,044
RERD Disposals (48,550,582) (3,357,940) (51,908,522)
202012 B 31 H At 31 December 2020 185,122,554 5,857,870 190,980,424
Rt Accumulated depreciation:
202001 B 1H At 1 January 2020 32,814,338 3,061,809 35,876,147
AEITHR Additions 71,799,320 2,687,280 74,486,600
KERD Disposals (38,516,789) (2,940,237) (41,457,026)
202012831 H At 31 December 2020 66,096,869 2,808,852 68,905,721
TKE & Net book value and net carrying amount
202001 A 18 At 1 January 2020 68,659,920 3,553,835 72,213,755
202012 531 H At 31 December 2020 119,025,685 3,049,018 122,074,703
2019
FEERERY ZHIR &it
Properties and buildings Motor vehicles Total
2% Cost:
20191818 At 1 January 2019 57,611,455 5,106,611 62,718,066
RN Additions 43,862,803 1,509,033 45,371,836
201912831 H At 31 December 2019 101,474,258 6,615,644 108,089,902
iR Accumulated depreciation:
20191 B 1H At 1 January 2019 2,027,795 - 2,027,795
REHR Additions 30,786,543 3,061,809 33,848,352
2019 € 12831 H At 31 December 2019 32,814,338 3,061,809 35,876,147
TKE N E Net book value and net carrying amount
20191818 At 1 January 2019 55,583,660 5,106,611 60,690,271
201912831 H At 31 December 2019 68,659,920 3,553,835 72,213,755

i
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N. THR&EF~ (1) Intangible assets 12. BIEFRBRL A= (12) Deferred tax assets
HRigE Software 2020 2019 2020
FHRE ARETNRTE AFEITAREENR FRRE
. L Opening balance Credited/(Charged) Credited/ (Charged) Closing balance
R Cost or valuation: to profit or loss to equity
Allowance for impairment losses on loan
BREHFHEVIRE A and placement 134,825,257 60,730,936 - 195,556,193
ENERI Opening balance 233,213,362 217,984,199
Allowance for impairment losses on other
HthemA=REES financial assets 2,211,979 2,803,866 - 5,015,845
KEWE Additions 804,782 2157 358 it & Provisions 9,287,566 3,227,743 - 12,515,309
Unrealised gain/(loss) on other debt
instrument at fair value through other
HHEPUE RN ARSLIIRES comprehensive income (13,897,115) - 13,592,450 (304,665)
EETE#EAN (MHELE. 13.2) Transfer from construction in progress (Note 7.13.2) 1,600,274 25,199,910
LTS TAARAMETHR Changes in fair value of derivatives (25,641,204) 23,300,383 - (2,340,821)
Hit A ANEITEBEHETE) Changes in fair value of other financial
KELE Disposal _ (12,128,105) TTALEMEA LB TAMZA  instruments at fair value through profit or
RMMERE loss 3,005,372 (22,062,300) - (19,056,928)
MR T ITRERS Payroll payables 3,933,084 674,428 - 4,607,512
FRRHM Closing balance 235,618,418 233,213,362 iz # Accrued liabilities 4,453,793 3,673,798 - 8,127,591
Hfth Others (3,932,321) 2,750,856 - (1,181,465)
2. Accumulated amortisation: it Total 114,246,411 75,099,710 13,592,450 202,938,571
FVIKE ST Opening balance 130,573,694 114,661,915 2019
FHRE ARETANRE AFEITARBENR FERRE
Opening balance Credited/(Charged) Credited/ (Charged) Closing balance
KEITHE Additions 23,474,310 28,039,884 to profit or loss to equity
Allowance for impairment losses on loan
BRERBEVIREESE and placement 95,743,194 39,082,063 - 134,825,257
KENE Disposals - (12,128,105)
Allowance for impairment losses on other
HthSmATREES financial assets 3,749,682 (1,138,534) (399,169) 2,211,979
EREH Closing balance 154,048,004 130,573,694 P Provisions 6,341,061 2,946,505 - 9,287,566
Unrealised gain/(loss) on other debt
instrument at fair value through other
TR B =R ER ST Net book value and net carrying amount 81,570,414 102,639,668 HE BB R AR LIRS comprehensive income (6,760,573) - (7,136,542) (13,897,115)
TTEEM T EARMETEIZE  Changes in fair value of derivatives 10,501,776 (36,142,980) - (25,641,204)
HMUARMEITEREES Changes in fair value of other financial
WAL HRBHLEITEMNSA  instruments at fair value through profit or
AMEZF loss 7,885,549 (4,880,177) - 3,005,372
FMIRRITRERS Payroll payables 3,049,924 883,160 - 3,933,084
iR % A Accrued liabilities 8,591,374 (4,137,581) - 4,453,793
Hith Others 626,634 (4,558,955) - (3,932,321)
&1 Total 129,728,621 (7,946,499) (7,535,711) 114,246,411

-~
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B2EETTRE (13.2) Construction in progress

2020 2019
FEHRE Opening balance 4,590,472 17,651,040
ZRELEN Additions 8,310,964 18,612,694
#EANBERT (FFEt. 9) Transfer to fixed assets (Note 7. 9) (212,542) (618,251)
BANLEAE (FEE. 11) Transfer to intangible assets (Note 7. 11) (1,600,274) (25,199,910)
EANKEEMER (MEL. 13.1) Transfer to long-term deferred expenses (Note 7. 13.1) (218,090) (5,855,101)
EANEIEER Transfer to administrative expenses (6,799,832) -
FERAGE Net closing balance 4,070,698 4,590,472
13.3 Hith i WS (13.3) Other receivables

2020 2019
R R Other receivable and prepayments 662,353,313 329,380,814
BEEE Allowance for impairment losses (3,703,469) (1,569,849)
FEREE Net value 658,649,844 327,810,965

MW EREAHMTBEOEN R FEEREERI, MR RO

Other receivable and prepayments mainly include items in the process of

3. Hihimz = (13) Other assets
B SE

Notes 31-12-2020 31-12-2019
KHAE MR A Long-term deferred expenses 13.1 66,444,842 84,592,813
EREIRE Construction in process 13.2 4,070,698 4,590,472
HAth Ry Uk Other receivables 13.3 658,649,844 327,810,965
FRNEH BRI ERBIRBE  Input VAT to be verified and VAT retained 133,849,490 21,504,558
&3 Total 863,014,874 438,498,808

BIKEFMER (13.1) Long-term deferred expenses
2020
AANBERFBRIS Hit it
Leasehold improvement Others Total
FHERI Opening balance 76,979,996 7,612,817 84,592,813
AR Additions 227,673 1,429,631 1,657,304
AEAZTIREEAN (HE+£. 13.2)  Transfer from construction in progress (Note 7.13.2) 218,090 - 218,090
KENE Disposal (577,810) - (577,810)
REWEH Amortisation (16,749,770) (2,695,785) (19,445,555)
ERRE Closing balance 60,098,179 6,346,663 66,444,842
2019
BEABEERF BRI H Hith A1t
Leasehold improvement Others Total
FEVRE Opening balance 79,743,517 10,828,736 90,572,253
RN Additions 5,462,768 1,366,071 6,828,839
AREEZBTIREEAN (ME+£. 13.2) Transfer from construction in progress (Note 7.13.2) 5,855,101 - 5,855,101
REREH Amortisation (14,081,390) (4,581,990) (18,663,380)
e Closing balance 76,979,996 7,612,817 84,592,813

MKER AT FI N T - clearing and settlement. The aging analysis is as follows:

et Aging 31-12-2020 31-12-2019
1EMRE Within 1 year 625,475,112 303,563,341
1-2 1-2 years 14,724,448 7,926,400
2-3F 2-3 years 6,065,850 2,646,753
SEPE More than 3 years 16,087,903 15,244,320
Nt Sub-total 662,353,313 329,380,814
B BEEE Less: allowance for impairment losses (3,703,469) (1,569,849)
&it Total 658,649,844 327,810,965

-~
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HARS BRi%

B2 1

REASE, BREESNEHET:

2 BTG IR R BN R ST E AR KR

The impairment provisions are measured according to the 12-month expected

credit loss and lifetime expected credit loss. The movement of allowance for

impairment losses is as follows:

2020
& B E=E At
Stage | Stage Il Stage Il
A3k 12 B TEE AT K BN FEHTHGERRK BENFEHERERGR
RESBA™
12-month expected credit loss Lifetime expected credit loss  Credit-impaired financial assets Total
(Lifetime expected credit loss)
FENEI Opening Balance 1,569,849 - - 1,569,849
AREITR Accrual during the year 2,133,620 - - 2,133,620
REZE Writing off during the year - - - -
FEREM Ending Balance 3,703,469 - - 3,703,469
2019
& EMER E=MER ait
Stage | Stage Il Stage Il
KK 12 ABTREERBR K BN FEETAERRK BENFEHERERER
HIESRE
12-month expected credit loss Lifetime expected credit loss  Credit-impaired financial assets Total
(Lifetime expected credit loss)
FHERI Opening Balance 1,068,674 - 1,320,000 2,388,674
AETHIR Accrual during the year 501,175 - 827,954 1,329,129
REZE Writing off during the year - - (2,147,954) (2,147,954)
FEREE Ending Balance 1,569,849 - - 1,569,849
14. Bk B Bt & Bt M A TE AR IN (14) Due to banks and other financial institutions
31-12-2020 31-12-2019
BRRTE R E S EFER Due to domestic banks and other financial institutions 1,363,681,736 294,889,203
BEIMRITELTFR Due to overseas banks 258,906,568 193,982,248
NAHFIE Interest payable 2,008,321 3,198,427
&it Total 1,624,596,625 492,069,878
B.IFENES (15) Placements from banks and other financial institutions
31-12-2020 31-12-2019
BRETEVIFAREA Placements from domestic banks 1,663,122,500 300,000,000

BSMRITRIWIFAR BN
ISAR DS,

&it

Placements from overseas banks
Interest payable

Total

14,852,172,958

76,834,474

13,035,326,974

123,625,461

16,592,129,932

13,458,952,435

o~
A 10 xuems (hE) BRAE 200 EEHES

6. XS EER G5

(16) Financial liabilities held-for-trading

31-12-2020

31-12-2019

AR METEBEETHIT N LSRR Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

ERHR:
ENZiIN Placement from banks and other financial institutions 3,504,079,654 3,182,245,145
SEH [B] M FR I Repurchase agreements 135,040,725 -
NAFIE Interest payable 5,111,739 931,479
Ait Total 3,644,232,118 3,183,176,624
17 SEHE &R (17) Repurchase agreements

31-12-2020 31-12-2019
RIERY S Classified by collateral:
b Financial Bond 466,000,000 720,000,000
RATH A Interest payable 69,704 292,241
ait Total 466,069,704 720,292,241
18. IRULTFFR (18) Customer deposits

31-12-2020 31-12-2019

EHRTERR
ATEF
NI

it
NEEP
NI

Nt

REASF B

ait

Current deposits:
Corporate customers
Individual customers

Sub-total

Time deposits:
Corporate customers
Individual customers

Sub-total

Interest payable

Total

12,542,347,375

1,283,471,504

11,288,182,352

902,535,028

13,825,818,879

12,190,717,380

20,681,490,574

1,753,377,457

24,571,183,163

2,494,319,459

22,434,868,031

27,065,502,622

202,461,785

249,868,326

36,463,148,695

39,506,088,328
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19. Bz R T3

(19) Payroll payables

31-12-2020 31-12-2019
E3RER Amount unpaid
TR, &, 2IFHG Salary, bonus, subsidy and allowance 84,663,483 105,737,970
HLRE 2R Social insurance 2,688,118 2,306,331
FEARE Housing fund - _
ISR BMRIBERRE Labour union expenditure and staff education fee - 41,282
WERFITR Defined contribution plan 16,692,797 13,575,125
Hep: ERAFERKHE Of which: Pension fund 851,749 4,372,129
A FEL LR Annuity 15,841,048 9,202,996
&t Total 104,044,398 121,660,708
2020 2019
ISAR £ Amount payable
TIH. B&. EMEMAL Salary, bonus, subsidy and allowance 575,975,628 567,895,413
LR 2 Social insurance 21,581,474 28,010,121
FERARE Housing fund 28,889,242 26,444,852
TEE{HEMRIHELR Labour union expenditure and staff education fee 3,695,463 5,144,278
BERFITR Defined contribution plan 27,947,749 53,708,874
He: BEXAFZREH Of which: Pension fund 4,010,129 40,741,899
S5 Annuity 23,937,620 12,966,975
HME5RTHANER Other staff related expenses 17,999,393 19,654,508
&It Total 676,088,949 700,858,046
20. [ 2 2% (20) Tax payables
31-12-2020 31-12-2019
EES Value added tax 24,694,499 25,259,946
PR AR Tax surcharges 2,981,437 3,045,477
RS R Corporate income tax 79,510,300 3,404,468
KRINARLF I Withholding tax 29,168,540 30,808,148
Hih Others 522,165 334,043
Ait Total 136,876,941 62,852,082

132 xaesme7 (chE) HRAS 2020 RS

PANAREC S

(21) Debt securities issued

31-12-2020 31-12-2019
SRR Financial bond 1,034,426,909 1,033,269,263
ZRARARR Tier-two capital bond 1,003,283,794 1,002,668,373
[ENZE3:: Negotiable certificates of deposit - 709,614,871
&it Total 2,037,710,703 2,745,552,507

F 20202 B3 H, HARERMGITHT:

As at 31 December 2020, the amount of debt securities issued listed below:

RiTHE RHEHIR RITEH RERFT AEHRFIE RERE / ZHAFR FRRE
Issue date Period Issue amount Actual issue amount Accrued interest Repayment Closing balance
BRITHIERERS

Issued financial bond:

2018/4/13 3 £ (3 years) 1,000,000,000 - 49,395,581 (49,300,000) 1,034,426,909
BRITH ZRBEARE:

Issued Tier-two capital bond

2019/11/15 10 £ (10 years) 1,000,000,000 - 48,015,450 (48,000,000) 1,003,283,794

0184 ABERTHEMES IS EMETHERESE, BEEIA
R 100 7T, EEFEN 493%, SEME—K, RAEH 202044
B8,

00ENA S HEATHE—H-RAKRGET 0 EHEEF R RS,
EEAARTI0 T, Z@EAKNY 48%, FEMFE—R, KTEH
EBHEAEGTENERES S ERBEERTT A MBI L H
ElAEAGR .

AATTF 2020 FEELERTENTHET 4 PARTRALEE, B
EHHART 00 5T, WBKT, F 2020 FHHHEM,

AN EMREFZALIERAE, FE, HBEERIAENER,

The fixed rate financial bond issued on 13 April 2018 has a maturity of three
years, with RMBI0O par value and interest is paid annually at a fixed rate of 493
per cent per annum. The redemption date is 17 April 2021.

The tier-two capital bond issued on 15 November 2019 is a 10-year bond with
RMBIOO par value and interest is paid annually at a fixed rate of 4.8 per cent
per annum. The bond is redeemable at par at the option of the Bank, in part
or in whole, at the end of the 5t year subject to the relevant conditions.

Four negotiable certificates of deposit issued in 2020. The par value was
RMBI00, the interest rate was zero and had been redemption in 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Bank did not default on any
principal, interest or redemption amounts with respect to its debt securities
issued.

N
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22. Fiit sl (22) Provisions 3. FHERE (23) Lease liabilities
31-12-2020 31-12-2019 31-12-2020 31-12-2019
BERERY Properties and buildings 115,247,157 67,256,297
BRRERMSHERBIELS: Allowance for impairment losses on loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts: ZHTE Motor vehicles 3,185,820 3,681,409
EHET Opening balance 37,150,266 25,364,243 &it Total 118,432,977 70,937,706
AN Increase 12,910,968 11,786,023
RS Closing balance 50,061,234 37,150,266 24. b faf& (24) Other liabilities
31-12-2020 31-12-2019
ERAKEEVMEEREZEB R ANBMBERMEAEENFEEETHEIE  The allowance for impairment losses on loan commitments and financial
ARKITIRAEES, REEASNETHOT: guarantee contracts are measured according to the 12-month expected FHEERFERM Settlement and clearing 448,401,762 238,609,616
credit loss and lifetime expected credit loss. The movement of allowance for ST RGBSR IT system service fee 51713.238 33,461,446
impairment losses are as follows:
iR %A Accrued expense 21,502,725 16,819,138
EiERH Renovation payable 632,865 3,049,081
2020
Hfh Others 60,952,909 43,536,969
E—MER BMER E=MER &it
KE 124 A BN BANGFHHERE it Total 583,203,499 335,476,250
TRHA(E IRk A ARk ERRESRAS
Stage | Stage Il Stage Il Total
12-month expected Lifetime expected Credit-impaired financial assets
credit loss credit loss (Lifetime expected credit loss) .
25. SCIT A (25) Paid-up capital
2020 1A 1H&H;  Opening balance 33,207,230 462,865 3,480,171 37,150,266
AEIHE Accrued 6,541,160 6,369,808 - 12,910,968 AMRKWAEE  Paid-up capital 31-12-2020 31-12-2019
EREH Closing balance 39,748,390 6,832,673 3,480,171 50,061,234 FEARD FEARD
RMB equivalent % RMB equivalent %
KIERFTER/AS]  United Overseas Bank Limited 5,500,000,000 100 5,500,000,000 100
2019
F—ME BME B=MEL aif TRLWEBRACH LB EESITITESRWIE, 3FF 20546 B 25  The above paid-up capital has been verified by Shanghai Nortex Certified
Kk 124AH BANFEHA BENFEHERE N e o QA 4 A ) ) .
FHIE B Rk FEE B iRk ERRESTA HH A7 PEEIF (2015) 5 073 SR ERE . Public Accounts Co.Ltd., and the Capital Verification Report No. 073 of
Stage | Stage Il Stage Ill Total Shanghai Nortex (2015) was issued on 25 June 2015.
12-month expected Lifetime expected Credit-impaired financial assets 2. ZANTA
credit loss credit loss (Lifetime expected credit loss) CR/AELR
(26) Capital reserve
2019 1R THKS  Opening balance 24,459,649 904,594 : 25,364,243 RANRREALXTHRRATIRS, SHEORHIATLIT, MU
7x S 3 SR e J\NFOBA . | .
KEEIHE /8 Accrued/ (Reversed) 8,747,581 (441,729) 3,480,171 11,786,023 EEPRD AT AR R AT RE, In exchange for employee service, the Bank runs a share-based compensation
program which is equity settled with a corresponding charge to the capital
FEREH Closing balance 33,207,230 462,865 3,480,171 37,150,266 reserve.

o~
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27. Hithm S Ui

A R H RS s RIRRE:

(27) Other comprehensive income

Accumulated balance of other comprehensive income in the balance sheet:

R
1-1-2020 Increase/(decrease) 31-12-2020
Credit impairment losses of other debt investments
HMFEIUE R ERBEREL at fair value through other comprehensive income 1,197,505 80,119 1,277,624
Fair value changes of other debt instrument at fair
HMEPIEERAANMET S value through other comprehensive income 41,691,345 (40,777,351) 913,994
&it Total 42,888,850 (40,697,232) 2,191,618
ERZE)
1-1-2019 Increase/(decrease) 31-12-2019
Credit impairment losses of other debt investments
HthFEPEERERBERE at fair value through other comprehensive income 1,140,890 56,615 1,197,505
Fair value changes of other debt instrument at fair
HAtb AR A AMEESN value through other comprehensive income 19,140,829 22,550,516 41,691,345
&it Total 20,281,719 22,607,131 42,888,850
FARTEMESWES YL E5: Other comprehensive income in the income statement:
Waremm B BTERTAHME e PrEE BELM
CUSGEEEINGE
Before tax  Less: Transfer to the Less: Income Tax After tax
2020 profit or loss
Credit impairment losses of other debt
instrument at fair value through other
Hb AL REHRMER %  comprehensive income 106,826 - 26,707 80,119
Fair value changes of other debt instrument
at fair value through other comprehensive
HMEIERAAMEES)  income (34,083,876) 20,285,925 (13,592,450) (40,777,351)
&it Total (33,977,050) 20,285,925 (13,565,743) (40,697,232)
BMArefM o/ T AHML " PR BELM
CUSGEEEINGE
Before tax  Less: Transfer to the Less: Income Tax After tax
2019 profit or loss
Credit impairment losses of other debt
instrument at fair value through other
HEPUERE A%  comprehensive income 455,784 - 399,169 56,615
Fair value changes of other debt instrument
at fair value through other comprehensive
Hth U R AAMERS  income 32,378,847 2,691,789 7,136,542 22,550,516
Ait Total 32,834,631 2,691,789 7,535,711 22,607,131

-~
A PO k@ (hE) ARAE 2020 FRHEE

28. BRNR

(28) Surplus reserves

2020 2019
EVRE Opening balance 127,512,353 115,075,958
ANEEHN Increase 10,873,135 12,436,395
FREE Closing balance 138,385,488 127,512,353

RIBASLENAATZRANE, FE 20201453 526 HEES R,
RATIEAEFIN 10% RBUCAERAANE, AEREATRRIH
HARNELEMAAR 50% U EH, TARBFIREL,

AADERREZERRAREE, TREIRERARE, EHE,

ERBRRARETR TR FEESRIEMR AR, RERATF)
EESRWHRIY, REEFRERERBRARE,

29. — AR A %

According to the Company Law of the PRC and the Bank's Articles
of Association, accompanied with resolution passed by the Board of
Directors on 26 March 2021, the Bank has appropriated 10 per cent of its
net profit to the statutory surplus reserves. The Bank should appropriate
until the reserve balance reaches 50 per cent of its registered capital or
above.

After the statutory surplus reserves are appropriated, the Bank may
appropriate discretionary surplus reserves. Discretionary surplus reserves
can be used to compensate for the accumulated losses of previous years
or convert to capital upon approval. It has been determined by the Board
of Directors of the Bank that no discretionary surplus reserves are to be
appropriated this year.

(29) General reserves

2020 2019
FEHRT Opening balance 816,675,492 826,398,940
AREEIN /(R D) Increase/(decrease) 32,592,428 (9,723,448)
ERRE Closing balance 849,267,920 816,675,492

RPERRBY & 20220 SX (SR VAERSITREENE) B9
ME, MBLUEHE R RN R ET KB 7 7 AR R 5 1.5% A9 EL )
THE—RRB AR, EAREDEAIE, AASRYE 2021463 A 26
HMEERRIY, RR—RNEAEEART 32592428 T, —RNREKE
ERRPE LT N H = IR K 1.5%,

According to the regulation CaiJin [2012] No. 20 financial institution
provision measurement Guideline, the Bank is required to set aside general
reserves of at least 1.5 per cent of its total risk assets at year end from net
profit. The Bank reversed general reserve amounting to RMB32,592,428
according to the resolution passed by the Board of Directors on 26 March
2021 and the amount has been up to 1.5 per cent of its total risk assets.

i
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30. kA BEFE (30) Retained earnings N FEHBERBAEEIN (32) Net fees and commission income

2020 2019 2020 2019
FEERFSERFE Retained earnings brought forward 483,224,277 361,573,277 FHERERAEBN: Fees and commission income:

b Net profit for the year 108,731,350 124,363,947 GHSEEF5% Settlement and clearing fees 23,795,527 23,519,994
B BBEERSAR Less: Appropriation to statutory surplus reserves (10,873,135) (12,436,395) RIPA 55 F523% Agency brokerage fees 18,193,574 19,137,796
(1B ) % B —fR R %  Less: (Appropriation) /reverse to general reserves (32,592,428) 9,723,448 RRRET SR Credit commitment fees 49.242,214 50,043,342
FERKRECFE Closing balance of retained earnings 548,490,064 483,224,277 SREFXROBA Credit related income 51,297,661 89,746,712
) #0510 % Consulting fees - 19,379,287
RIB (PEARLELMEAIT X)) RAQAINASERE, KAIFE According to the Company Law of the PRC and the Articles of Association REREMZELSHE Commissions of trusteeship and others 46,240,205 34,015,104

() BREAEBSEE, 2) RIUGFEESIR,; () 12EGE  of the Bank, the profit of the Bank can only be distributed to shareholders
FRSARS: (1) ER—BRBES ) BERIBREARESE, after (1) fulfilling all tax responsibilities; (2) compensating any accumulated
TUFEARERSRARE., —BRRAESRETESHIZRL 0sses (3) making appropriation to statutory surplus reserves; (4) making it Sub-total 193,384,515 239,478,508
BIEB AT LEMGEIET, AAATEES R, SRAEMHR appropriation to the general reserves; (5) making appropriation to

Hith Others 4,615,334 3,636,273

N N s . N discretionary surplus reserves. The appropriation ratios of the general FEHERASIH: Fees and commission expense:
EHARARESRE, HEXREER. MERARAE XM reserves andysur IFL)JS reserves are decidzz bpthe Bank's Board of Digrectors
REEmMEE, . ) P ) ea by i S FE T Fee expenses 50,505,904 67,569,057
in compliance with relevant regulations. The profit appropriation is
decided by the Board of Directors of the Bank, with reference to the INF Sub-total 50,505,904 67,569,057
operating performance, financial positions, and other relevant factors.
FEHERAEEBN Net fees and commission income 142,878,611 171,909,451
31 F RN (31) Net interest income
33. % F U A (33) Investment income
2020 2019 2020 2019
FIEWN . Interest income: TTHESHTEESMAEZE  Netrealised gain on derivatives 119,246,330 18,485,058
FR AR E Due from banks and placement with banks and other financial institutions 133,343,731 384,352,555 HERFLEFHEZREKE  Netrealised gain on bond and negotiable certificate of deposits 42,540,591 35,390,592
TP RET Deposit with the Central Bank 54,036,017 60,959,267 Hith Others 18,794.993 (2,889,363)
S g ek T ek
KILR AR Loans and advances to customers 1,605,760,451 1,584,624,820 a Total 180,581,914 50,986,287
INIRERE Reverse repurchase financial assets — bonds 58,013,598 86,581,585
e = R ) " .
EERE TS Bond and negotiable certificate of deposits 304,188,978 255,487,627 4. N RINMETIERS (34) Gain/(Loss) from changes in fair values
it Sub-total 2,155,342,775 2,372,005,854
2020 2019
FIEIH: Interest expense:
TTEEGVSWAN - ARMEZFHZE  Changes of fair value of derivatives (100,709,297) 148,957,308
[& b % H fth & RAH A TF T Due to banks and other financial institutions 24,246,968 23,411,257
THUERmNGE - BAFES Financial liabilities- held-for-trading-gold borrowing 25,187,016 60,897,160
== Customer deposits 735,978,487 942,691,931
X5 MRk 7R - 324 B Financial liabilities-Repurchase agreements (40,726) -
HAR SR HAM Placements from banks and other financial institutions and others 278,893,545 448,134,220
EMFERRER - BHES Loans and advances to customers-gold lendin (25,680,361) (24,975,903)
RERELFE Bond and negotiable certificate of deposits 119,544,196 120,774,249 T R 9 9
TH ML Fi ial ts held-for-tradi 93,892,092 16,705,598
FHE f i Lease liabilities 5059618 2925162 X o EERA inancial assets held-for-trading ( )
it Sub-total 1,163,722,814 1,537,936,819 At Others - 53,653
EIP=VET N Net interest income 991,619,961 834,069,035 it Total (7,351,276) 168,226,620

A~ -
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35. LR am

(35) Foreign exchange gain/(loss)

C RIS AIEINT X S EC R T ;T iR U RINCETHE SR T Foreign exchange gain/(loss) includes gain/(loss) of foreign business
related to the changes of exchange rate and gain/(loss) arising from

B iR,

36. HAthir 2

derivative financial instruments.

(36) Other income

2020 2019
Sig 2548 % BTN Income-related on government subsidies 3,434,635 1,961,460
#it Total 3,434,635 1,961,460
W REIRE (37) General and administrative expenses

2020 2019
RIT#HA Staff costs 676,088,949 700,858,046
8% Depreciation 86,518,814 46,050,924
TR RS Amortization of intangible assets 23,474,310 28,039,884
KHATSME 2R M e 7R Amortisation of long-term deferred expenses 19,445,555 18,663,380
W& A Other operating expenses 232,253,446 275,349,554
&t Total 1,037,781,074 1,068,961,788

38. R RERK

(38) Credit impairment losses

2020 2019
R SRR E R Impairment losses for deposit with the Central Bank (183,861) (1,136,108)
W E R E R K Impairment losses for due from banks and other financial institutions 9,413,603 (54,147)
B ENRE=ERES Impairment losses for placements with banks (1,386,400) (2,686,466)
WHOREIR % Impairment losses for loans 244,755,563 133,649,948
15 ARIEREIR K Impairment losses for credit commitment 12,910,968 11,786,023

Impairment losses for other debt instrument at fair value through

HMERIER B ER X other comprehensive income 106,826 455,784
INRESR AR ERE Impairment losses for reverse repurchase financial assets (148,285) (2,030,336)
Hb R~ RER K Impairment losses for other assets 2,133,620 1,329,129
A1t Total 267,602,034 141,313,827

o~
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39. Fr{SHisE A

(39) Income tax expenses

2020 2019
L HARTE RS Current income tax 73,609,248 4,418,246
B IEFER Deferred income tax expenses (75,126,417) 7,946,499
&3t Total (1,517,169) 12,364,745

FriSiise S A E 2 MA R RN T :

The reconciliation of income tax expenses to profit before tax is as follows:

2020 2019
FLRTFE Profit before tax 107,214,181 136,728,692
HEERME 25% it ENFIN Tax charge on a tax rate at 25 per cent 26,803,546 34,182,173
I BTHA [E B IR AY A B Adjustment in respect of prior periods 27,908 6,351,106
ot 1 E 1R F) BN Tax-free interest income of government bonds (37,255,680) (34,422,270)
ReJHEF0 A9 F 0 25 A2 Non-deductible items 8,907,057 6,253,736
PriefiEE Income tax expenses (1,517,169) 12,364,745

A
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40. EMEBRAIPEHIH

(40) Supplementary information for the statement of cash flows

2020 2019
1. BEFFETAZEFDINAERE: 1. Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from operating activities:
] Net profit 108,731,350 124,363,947
EHRBERK Credit impairment loss 267,602,034 141,313,827
Bl ER=HIH Fixed assets depreciation 12,032,214 12,202,572
AR =HTIA Right-of-use assets depreciation 74,486,600 33,848,352
TR Amortisation expenses for intangible assets 23,474,310 28,039,884
KHATS P 2R S Amortisation for long-term deferred expenses 19,445,555 18,663,380
WBEERT / HMKER~H% Losses on disposal of fixed assets and other long-term assets (3,991) 110,890
Interest expenses of bond, negotiable certificates of deposit

5. BRI FARBRAGHNSXH and lease liabilities 124,603,814 123,699,411
NRAMET SIS (Gain)/losses from changes in fair value 7,351,276 (168,226,620)

BHEWE

LR

B IEPTSRER (80 )/ R

LEMYYIE H9 (1 )/ m>

ZEMNATBHEM/(RD)

ZEENTENIASRERN

Investment income

Foreign exchange losses/(gain)

(Increase) /decrease in deferred tax assets/liabilities

(Increase)/decrease in operating receivables

Increase/(decrease) in operating payables

Net cash flows from operating activities

(368,039,062)

(122,388,518)

(75,126,417)

(692,141,067)

1,715,464,074

(431,484,935)

235,031,807

7,946,499

3,686,623,434

(456,098,313)

1,095,492,172

3,356,034,135

2. RERAEEMMHTHER. 2.

RAEMERRT

B RENFRT

i REENDHERRE

B REENMNFNRE

RERREENYE (D )/ BN

Net change in cash and cash equivalents:

Cash on hand at end of year

Less: Cash on hand at beginning of year

Add: Cash equivalents at end of year

Less: Cash equivalents at beginning of year

Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents

4,163,644

6,161,298

10,575,973,329

10,961,925,974

6,161,298

9,105,977

10,961,925,974

10,543,710,893

(387,950,299)

415,270,402

-~
A 42 k@ (hE) BRAE 2020 FERE

A MERINEEMNY

(47) Cash and cash equivalent

31-12-2020 31-12-2019

N& Cash
MESMH:

Cash equivalents:

BREIRAE="AMAK

4,163,644 6,161,298

With original maturity less than three months

TFE sk Due from banks and other financial institutions 3,487,356,308 1,609,585,664
FHES Placements with banks and other financial institutions 3,628,910,218 3,787,085,371
FENBRESREF - Reverse repurchase financial assets 2,271,360,000 3,246,540,000
HFErS® Gold lending 27,499,014 -
REREBVFERE (MNEXBE=4FREH) Bond and negotiable certificate of deposit investments

(tenor within three months from purchase date) 648,072,570 748,681,450
R R RBITH AR Other deposits with the Central Bank 512,775,219 1,570,033,489
N Sub-total 10,575,973,329 10,961,925,974
&1t Total 10,580,136,973 10,968,087,272

42. R 1T

A BRI BRAR S AT T R B 4 PR ) M AR R T R 0 iR SR AR (B AR
i, RIS RABRBHYRRERTHRS ., T2020F12 7 31
H &7 INOPR B PR BB T R B AR Boh 297125 3, MR B E
HARRSEE AV E 34 T 2020 612 A 31 B AT IR RIBER A 0 4

(42) Share-based compensation plans

Share-based compensation plans of the Bank comprise the Restricted
Share Plan and the Share Appreciation Rights Plan. All shares involved are
the shares of UOB. As at 31 December 2020, the number of outstanding
grants of Restricted Shares was 297125, the remaining contractual period
of 1-3 years. As at 31 December 2020, the number of outstanding grants of
Share Appreciation Rights was zero.

i
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N, FEBIRE

RAERBATAREY, EEERRATBREFERE 7 2SR
T s, FERTLSIM. FREFUSHMREML SR
RALIME 4 NMREDH. SMREDBHEMAOL S, £
HARNRBMNFE S, AR EERBERARARE DAY S
ERMAERHEERE. ML,

KATREDBHERLSFWT:
R RITAL S5 5370

mE&XPWREBERTR. RHHE.
IEREFELRIRS.

RS, BEEE, SNC

FERITUS 2
EPMAFFREEEIARK. FRES. ROFRS.
REFMLHREFRS.

A AR

Bk E Rl 55580
BRETRTOTZHTEESWSHERNELIFERS. BB 5.
RETLARE, URINLCRREES M. NETEFRNRS.

HAthlh 55 R AR5 BB 588
EAREERABRLRENDBHAREESENEMNAS. Ak, WA
X,

ATHNEN DN LGEREERERR, AR EEEREHE
FIABTEAMAS. NR. KA. HARZERR, XEFEN
R R T -

DHWEFETRCVFRARTESBNEIMNEMAS. ARAS. TF
REMEMKIAE =, M AGRERART &2 MO SN SR A6,
BREEMER. FARE, BTRAHRE,

DEEERRRIEET AW ENBAN (BRENIZ S BARDE
BHZZBN), BRSO BRENEERA (BFABTESB
MR REMITIETMMESE) | RIEZ 8RN0 /R #9835 2% A I
ERFHERK, DI EBRANNEBENRRE H X518
MR FRITE,

A A4 @ (RE) BRAT 2020 FEES

8. Segment Information

The Bank is organised into four different operating segments, namely
wholesale banking, retail banking, global markets, and others and
unallocated based on internal organisational structure, management
requirement and internal reporting system. Every reporting segment,
which is individual business segment, provides different products and
services. Management periodically reviews the financial information of the
segments to determine resource allocation and performance assessment.

The main businesses of the segments are as follows:
Wholesale Banking

The wholesale banking segment provides products and services such
as corporate loans, trade financing, deposit-taking activities, fund
management, foreign exchange services, etc.

Retail Banking

The retail banking segment provides products and services such as retail
loans, deposit-taking activities, bank cards, wealth management and
remittance services, etc.

Global Markets (GM)

The GM segment is responsible for conducting inter-bank placements,
repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions and bond investments in
the inter-bank market, and dealing foreign exchanges, precious metals and
interest rate related derivatives, etc.

Others and unallocated

This segment represents the assets, liabilities, income and expenses that
are not directly attributable or cannot be allocated on a reasonable basis
to any of the above segments.

In order to assess the performance of the segments and allocate
resources, management will periodically review the assets, liabilities,
income, expenses and financial performance of the segments, and such
information is prepared on the following basis:

Segment assets mainly include financial assets, tangible assets, intangible
assets and other long-term assets which are attributable to the segments,
while segment liabilities mainly include deposits, borrowings and other
payables which are attributable to the segments.

Segment financial performance refers to income generated by each
segment (including external and inter-segment income), deducted by
direct cost (including depreciation and amortisation pertaining to the
assets allocated to the segments), indirect cost allocated based on
occupation of resources and asset impairment losses. Transactions
between segments are priced at similar terms as external transactions.

1aEpdk s, TR SER

(1) Segment profit and loss, assets and liabilities

2020
HERITI S TERTLSE TERERVE  HbSERERD &it

(A=
Wholesale Retail Banking GM Others and Total

Banking unallocated
—. BUEA 1. Operating income 913,379,785 172,819,853 189,649,200 157,703,525 1,433,552,363
Fil 2 F N Net interest income 681,429,534 107,654,631 9,590,355 192,945,441 991,619,961
Hep: XPIFYEFPRN Of which: External interest income 674,283,529 228,592,031 358,793,546 (270,049,145) 991,619,961
BB FILE 2B TN Internal interest income 7,146,005 (120,937,400) (349,203,191) 462,994,586 -
FEHERASEEAN Net fee and commission income 126,705,228 57,561,052 (44,031,191) 2,643,522 142,878,611
HAth A Other net income 105,245,023 7,604,170 224,090,036 (37,885,438) 299,053,791
—. Bl 2. Operating expenses (644,232,881) (230,462,497) (119,968,927) (325,421,601)  (1,320,085,906)
Hrh: FHEERE Of which: Credit impairment losses (210,272,500) 10,983,609 - (68,313,143) (267,602,034)

=, BN 3. Net non-operating income/

(expenses) (399,921) (5,240,481) 1 (611,875) (6,252,276)
M. AT FE 4.  Profit before tax 268,746,983 (62,883,125) 69,680,274 (168,329,951) 107,214,181
I, ITHSHEEA 5. Depreciation and amortisation 19,995,810 33,969,088 1,767,419 73,706,362 129,438,679
N, BAXH 6. Capital expenditure 463,375 262,213 1,718,968 12,336,291 14,780,847
. AERE 7. Total assets 34,976,961,017 5,704,907,253 39,461,051,278 344,623,042 80,487,542,590
J\. IfREE 8. Total liabilities 34,802,359,884 3,108,556,236  22,428,694,275 13,092,260,056 73,431,870,451
2019
HERTIS TERTLVSE HEHERLSE  HtSRERS &it
Wholesale Retail Banking GM Otheg;'ilzjnad Total

Banking unallocated
—. BWIEA 1. Operating income 917,514,497 144,724,904 168,451,843 129,872,983 1,360,564,227
Fil 2B Net interest income 650,439,299 87,817,800 (12,380,269) 108,192,205 834,069,035
Hv: xfopFLEB N Of which: External interest income 660,956,301 217,937,402 382,203,449 (427,028,117) 834,069,035
7 BBIEJFI S LN Internal interest income (10,517,002) (130,119,602) (394,583,718) 535,220,322 -
FEHRAEFERAN Net fee and commission income 173,185,716 45,477,227 (59,462,084) 12,708,592 171,909,451
HtEA Other net income 93,889,482 11,429,877 240,294,196 8,972,186 354,585,741
Z. Bl 2. Operating expenses (477,490,856) (266,346,668) (108,598,488) (371,913,969)  (1,224,349,981)
Hv: FHRHERE Of which: Crediit impairment losses (27,360,896) 1,597,871 (1,209,072) (114,341,730) (141,313,827)

=, BEWSMNEX 3. Net non-operating income/

(expenses) (10,319) (4,877) 320,033 209,609 514,446
. FETAE 4.  Profit before tax 440,013,322 (121,626,641) 60,173,388 (241,831,377) 136,728,692
i, HFIBSHEHA 5. Depreciation and amortisation 14,996,641 29,167,231 1,720,608 46,869,708 92,754,188
N, BREXH 6. Capital expenditure 1,254,612 9,313,052 2,667,527 26,032,743 39,267,934
+. BEBE 7. Total assets 31,562,710,242 6,822,552,630 33,189,731,010 281,294,535 71,856,288,417
I\, fREH 8. Total liabilities 36,322,324,029 3,457,602,726  13,791,163,024  11,300,334,836 64,871,424,615

- A
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2. Hftfg 2
(1) HIEER
HHNE W IR\ RIZBE P AT A B R EHN M E RS X

RN BERERX TR RBUSHMIMELIIN / (ZH) 81E
BT

XSNEWBIA /()

External operation income/(expense)

(2) Other information

(1) External operation income by geography
External operation income is distributed to respective countries and
regions by their geography locations. The external operation income/

(expense) which divided by different geography locations is shown as
follows:

2020 2019

BR Domestic
F5h Overseas
&1t Total

2,177,115,078 2,323,841,125

(743,562,715) (963,276,898)

1,433,552,363 1,360,564,227

THREMGRR, AASRERERIMIERNE,
Q) FEEFER
ERREATEBARKE, ARBRETERTREWERE

FHFBBRAAANRTART 200127 (2019 F£E: AR 168
7). HERREFHRFSUNE 2% (2019 F£F: M%)

-~
A 146 k@ (hE) BRAE 2020 FERE

The Bank does not have any non-current asset held outside Mainland
China as at the balance sheet date.

(2) Major customers' information

Among loans and advances to customers measured at amortised cost,
interest income of the Bank amounting to RMB200 million comes
from top 10 largest corporate loan customers (2019: RMB168 million),
which contributed 12 per cent of the total interest income for the
year (2019:11 per cent).

R, RERIFHME

1. M S5 RiE

9. Commitments and contingent liabilities

(1) Commitments

RARMI A Capital commitments 31-12-2020 31-12-2019
EHtEBREY Approved but not contracted - 33,788
BEENEREMN Contracted but not provided for 8,019,282 4,112,848
ait Total 8,019,282 4,146,636
2 (EEEEE (2) Credit commitments

31-12-2020 31-12-2019

MEBRAR.
FARRLE
REKT

& P& FIE

T D HE T

FF ST EME FIE

it
TRATHSE I SRR I
BEHALE 1 ERME
it

Ait

Financial guarantee contracts:
Banker's acceptance

Letter of guarantee

Standby letter of credit

Letter of credit, at sight

Letter of credit, usance

Sub-total

1,536,186,471 955,060,198

1,077,626,332 1,055,760,782
5,530,545,339 5,673,456,735
346,850,487 470,790,885

693,611,228 913,714,888

9,184,819,857 9,068,783,488

Irrevocable loan commitments with original maturity of:

More than one year
Sub-total

Total

2,285,556,679 2,465,109,612

2,285,556,679 2,465,109,612

11,470,376,536 11,533,893,100

ERABENERREINEH

Weighted credit risk of credit commitments

4,764,764,603 4,239,864,309

MEEREFAFHERMER, —BEEFARESIEAFITNER

BERSABEBTANEXSE, RITBBTERRIE.

RRKERIERASDEENERKRNT FRBEAEBITRAKE,
RAFKE RS EERIAR AL £, TRAENHILHFRT, i

BRAZNRHRE R ETH A —ERFAROTPA SR E

Financial guarantee contracts, with the nature of guarantee, require the
Bank to be obliged to fulfil the customers' responsibility as guarantor in
case that the customers fail to repay the contracted amount or fail to
fulfil their obligations.

Loan commitments represent the commitment made by the Bank
to its customer to grant a certain amount of loan in the future. Loan
commitments are normally attached with an effective date or termination
clause, and it is possible that the Bank may not need to fulfil such
commitment on the maturity date. Hence, the amount of the loan
commitments does not necessarily represent the future expected cash
outflow.

>
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3. F (3) Entrusted Business
31-12-2020 31-12-2019
B Entrusted deposits 2,448,862,087 2,212,509,270
TR Entrusted loans 2,448,862,087 2,212,509,270
31-12-2020 31-12-2019
EREMES Entrusted fund 1,679,654,345 1,760,126,753
ZREW R Entrusted asset 1,679,654,345 1,760,126,753

ZRASREGREFTARSNEM, RATEERERENE=
TEBERZH., RHEEXNERRERASZEAKE,

ZREV L FRIEA N TVZEREFTAERARMRATIFTR, K
FRXMANASHTRAMA S EE, RAREHAL SR IBEL,
RIEARZFMARFR AR ST PR EAL S,

4. B HR

BEEEERRBN, T2020FK, AREBRIEL. 2EFHKERMS
BERIEENHF AR, HFLEMFFRME.

-~
A 148 xemT (hE) BRAE 2020 FEHRE

Entrusted deposits represent funds from depositors, which depositors
have instructed the Bank to grant loans to third parties designated by
them. The credit risk remains with the depositors.

Entrusted wealth management business is the investment product
according to the agreed investing plan with the clients. The investment
principal is paid by the customers, which would be managed by the Bank.
The Bank would receive the investment profit on behalf of the customers
and pay the profit to the customers based on the agreed conditions.

(4) Contingent liabilities
As at 31 December 2020, according to the management, there was no

other contingent liabilities except for items that have been disclosed in
Note 7.22.

+. BFEE

ARERARBRERBEHEAATEELSHEENEMNEAEEN
%, FANTARANEETAEELSRNER, KASAREERN
BRBRTHEEELRNERZN, EXARFEBRELENE
AR BEMERFENGEHRANL, AFEFHRRTHE IR RE
FHE, ANSRERIRIFERAARGEM,

APEER (FLRTANEEME (277) ) mIE, #TAK
AERGEERBEIFIREZEGEEHRENRT, RRESERFL
RITRO—RARTRERBRET 5%, —RAATEERFRT 6%,
REARRERABRT 8% EERARNIAE] 2.5%,

ARE)MEMARN AR B HTER, O—RAXBBEIKE
K. BAARIAITARBY . EMBGEERE TS BRAR,
—RREEAEZFMRDEFE; KASDETHM—REALR, ZHBAET
EEAEARTIARLEN T ASTABM AT ELS,

AREERR (FLRTAANEENE (R17) ) WIE, HEMNE
AFERERBERWAT:

10. Capital Management

The Bank has adopted a strong capital management method to mitigate the
inherent risk in the business operation and complied with the requirements
of regulatory authorities on capital management. The Bank also targets to
maintain sufficient capital adequacy ratio for operations and optimising
shareholders' value. The Bank may adjust its capital structure actively to adapt
with the change of economic environment and related risk characteristics.

The Bank calculates and discloses capital adequacy ratio according to Regulations
Governing Capital of Commercial Banks (Provisional). CBIRC requires that a
commercial banks core tier-one capital adequacy ratio, tier-one capital adequacy
ratio and capital adequacy ratio should not be lower than five per cent, six per
cent, and eight per cent respectively, and reserve capital ratio should reach 2.5 per
cent.

The Finance Department is responsible for managing the capital of the Bank.
Core tier-one capital includes paid-up capital, qualified capital reserve,
qualified other comprehensive income, surplus reserves, general reserves and
retained earnings. The Bank has no other tier-one capital. Tier-two capital
mainly includes surplus provision for loan impairment, qualified Tier-two
capital instruments and their premium.

The capital adequacy ratios calculated by the Bank in accordance with

Regulations Governing Capital of Commercial Banks (Provisional) are as
follows:

31-12-2020 31-12-2019

RO —RRAR Core tier-one capital

7,055,672,139 6,984,863,802

SL AR Paid-up capital 5,500,000,000 5,500,000,000
FXLFROT AN Qualified capital reserve 17,337,049 14,562,830
Atz 507 o iF A B Qualified other comprehensive income 2,191,618 42,888,850
BARAKR Surplus reserves 138,385,488 127,512,353
— RN General reserves 849,267,920 816,675,492
KA ECF Retained earnings 548,490,064 483,224,277
O —RAKRINRINE Core tier-one capital deductions 81,570,414 102,639,668
Bt EEH~ Other intangible assets 81,570,414 102,639,668
ZD—REBREE Net core tier-one capital 6,974,101,725 6,882,224,134
— RS Net tier-one capital 6,974,101,725 6,882,224,134
ZHHEK Tier-two capital 1,557,825,490 1,538,173,594

ZREXTRRE BN TITALH
BEEREE

BRAEH Net capital
KBS InA R = Risk-weighted assets

Qualified tier-two capital instruments and their premium

Surplus provision for loan impairment

997,629,000
560,196,490
8,531,927,215
52,065,065,804

997,076,364
541,097,230
8,420,397,728
51,044,400,217

A (5HNEIRE~ Of which: Credit risk-weighted assets 45,375,915,670 43,828,875,640
5 X5 1R 25 7~ Market risk-weighted assets 4,203,269,571 4,881,780,577
FRIEN B I 3E, Operational risk-weighted assets 2,485,880,563 2,333,744,000

L —RBEARTRE Core tier-one capital adequacy ratio 13.4% 13.5%

—RRETRE Tier-one capital adequacy ratio 13.4% 13.5%

RAEFTRE Capital adequacy ratio 16.4% 16.5%

>
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EATNART RERAAREIEE DUR T BSTHER R 58 %2
SWMEHNEMBTUHEN., AFE, ARSEFTEEBIAEH
REER,

Besh, AATREDERRESTAL (BLRTHTFREEINEL)
(RUES 200 F538) HEFEBATTRES, 120050
B3, AATWAFRY 0%, FARIE40% EAER, 18X
EEMT:

The capital adequacy ratios and related components of the Bank are
calculated based on the statutory financial statements prepared under the
Chinese Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises. During the period, the
Bank has complied with the capital requirements imposed by the regulator.

In addition, the Bank calculates and discloses leverage ratio according to
Regulations Governing Leverage Ratio of Commercial Banks (CBIRC Ordinance
[2071] No. 3). As at 31 December 2020, the BanK's leverage ratio was 7.0 per cent
which was higher than the minimum regulatory requirement of 4.0 per cent.
The relevant information is as follows:

31-12-2020

31-12-2019

D —REAR Core tier-one capital

B B —RARINBRIE Less: Core tier-one capital deductions

[P B e NE L Net core tier-one capital
BEERNEFTRM Adjusted on balance sheet items
BEERINEEH Adjusted off balance sheet items
LT MR R Balance of derivatives

EFRAZH R RA

At Total

7,055,672,139

(81,570,414)

6,984,863,802

(102,639,668)

6,974,101,725

6,882,224,134

Balance of assets in securities financing transactions

66,567,475,835
12,592,163,046
18,014,024,000

2,346,723,700

64,373,330,860
11,896,614,965
9,558,746,200

3,327,016,400

99,520,386,581

89,155,708,425

AR Leverage ratio

7.0%

7.7%

-~
A 150 ks (hE) HRAE 2020 FEHRE

+—. &RREEE
SMIARR

AASEHEENTAREMERIENRE, TESRREANE.
RN XTI NE (BIRCRNRE ., FENRE, RNk ), &2
SNETESRMTIABERTAS. FRPRRITRW. FRELKRI
FHEE, TTESHMAST. IANRESRAT. RRERMER, £
AR TS, SXESmTREXMNNR, MNRARS ARERIXL
PABS P SR ER A9 KBS E TR0 T PR

AATNERTIASENIENEZEANR. RIMERERTHR
b, ARREXULHINIE EIRBORHBEA T,

115 FRUR
ERREEE

FERARERRS AR ZNFEANMNE, FRERTHERA
HXHX FAERLREREMNDUEBTEXSHBEETEME, &
NENERRE EERE TARERMER, RIENEAR
feFERATITHEMIL, STHERKIMA T KE,

FRARENETREE: S—EHENTAERTHRNEE R
B, SATHEEOBEVE FFETUYRFAMNEFEEER
BOARANENSRIB-2FRU®m. FEAKNKENERE
ERBTRTVSNE— TV SR rENRRER,

EAB MR ENHEES R, RINEMEENEENRERM
ERNEBRZRERIGETERARKE, KAl EHNEAH
ZERJH#ATRE, NRAREBHFTOMIFERTEHTRR
REEE,

S5 BR R FFHRKE T E XA R E SRR K 1E
W, B, ZEXZHRE. REEENRMAMEREREE
BES5FFMBR L EHEE,

11. Financial Risk Management

Risk of Financial Instruments

The Bank is exposed to different types of risks. The most significant types of
risk related to financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and market
risk (including foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and commodity risk).
The Bank's financial instruments mainly include cash, deposit with the Central
Bank, due from banks and other financial institutions, placements with banks
and other financial institutions, derivative financial assets, reverse repurchase
financial assets, Loans and advances to customers, other debt instrument at
fair value through other comprehensive income, and etc. These risks and the
Banks strategy to minimize the negative impacts of the underlying financial
risks are described below.

The most significant types of risks to the Bank are credit risk, liquidity risk and
market risk. The Bank's risk management strategy is outlined below.

(1) Credit risk
(1.1) Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from a borrower's or counterparty's
inability to meet its obligations as and when they fall due. The
Bank's credit risk exposure mainly arises from loans and advances to
customers. Credit risk of off balance sheet items mainly arises from
the letters of credit/guarantees issued as well as loan commitments.

Credit risk concentration refers to the situation whereby there
is a concentration of customers in the same business activities,
geographical location, or industry sector with similar economic
characteristics such that their repayment ability would be affected by
the same economic fluctuations. Credit risk concentration reflects the
sensitivity of the Bank's performance to such customer concentration.

The Bank establishes a comprehensive set of policies and procedures
which effectively mitigate and control credit risk. The procedures
cover credit evaluation, credit approval, credit monitoring as well
as reporting. The Bank reviews the borrowers' business operations
periodically, analyses the quality of credit portfolio and ensures
adequacy of loan loss provisions.

The risk from financial guarantee and loan commitments is similar with
that from loans and advances to customers. Hence, the Bank adopts
the same policies and procedures for managing credit contingencies
which cover application, follow-up monitoring and collateral
requirements, etc.
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REEANEEERESEENMUREEEREGHARE, &2
SN ARERE =252 DB BN FEOTSAERRELTE
BEEE, MPERARKITENXBSHBREEAME. 497
REMBARBHA A B EEH LG IR (N5 X F IR,
BRAXRBEIENES  ERXTREF)NEENMTRATENREES,
BUBAME, SHRAXTREHNEEHARE,

Depending on whether the credit risk has significantly increased
and whether the asset is credit-impaired, the Bank measures the
impairment provision for different assets with expected credit loss of
12 months or lifetime, respectively. The key parameters of expected
credit loss measurement include probability of default(PD), loss
given default(LGD) and exposure at default(EAD). The Bank takes into

THEREMGERE, TEBEFERYEEMERABRBRNZEKE
FARBS O F BT

As at the balance sheet date, the maximum credit risk exposure of
the Bank without taking into consideration of collateral and other risk
mitigation are set out below:

31-12-2020 31-12-2019

account the quantitative analysis of historical statistics (such as ratings FF IR RARTTHRIN Deposits with the Central Bank 4,689,429,670 6,471,381,952
MEEXIT: of counterparties, manners of guarantees and types of collaterals, e Precious metals 1564,487 585 1162,708,344
repayments, etc.) and forward-looking information in order to establish
o FAMREIEEZALELRFE 2 NREE %ﬁﬁu@ﬁgﬂj,ﬁﬂ’ Tk the models for estimating PD, LGD and EAD. T E b FRIm Due from banks and other financial institutions 3,680,713,165 1,852,438,902
E?TET%{#X%E{JE—%\E t, K4S By LR DUE 52 B A 4R SR HFERE Placements with banks and other financial institutions 6,667,892,648 7.,499,846,222
Z{EAEMFTEE, MATEEEE, MRBYFIERZF Relative definitions are listed as below:
RETRES ABAME; ZH M ERAR Financial assets held-for-trading 1,525,241,844 1,425,658,377
e The probability of default refers to the possibility that the debtor o o
o BAMIERBIEANINFTANKEZELEMEATEEEL M will not be able to fulfil its obligation of repayment in the next 12 PESRE” Derivative financial assets 11,567,136,341 413,777,889
B, RIEXSFNFHOEE . EZWNARMLEER, UERIERS months or the whole remaining lifetime. The Bank's PD is adjusted TR ESFA Reverse repurchase financial assets 2,273,636,714 3,253,748,361
AR, BAMREOERAR, FHMKENEARERNNR based on the credit cycle index Z and forward-looking information e
[ odo B E NS A o to reflect the default probability of the debtor under the current LR S Loans and advances to customers 36,186,036,127 35,144,414,612
macroeconomic environment; Other debt instrument at fair value through other
. BHARNBMOEE, GARERDANBREENHETFES S, & HEPIE R comprehensive income 11,029,276,744 10,145,887,936
FBAKER, KASINHEMHNEE, « The loss given default refers to the Bank's expectation of the extent HA SRR Other financial assets 651,812,768 323,164,553
of the loss resulting from the default exposure. Depending on the
15 AR B ZIGINATE R IEAE A MK NITEY S R ATE S type of counterparty, the method and priority of the recourse, and ait Total 79,835,663,606 71,413,027,148

Bo ARENBEHTHEHES, RAHPEETL. SLE
REE A NS R IHEE MR AR R BEFIER.

the type of collaterals, the LGD varies. The loss given default is the
percentage of risk exposure loss when default occurs;

ERAEEHAXNERD (KT, 2) Credit commitments (Note 9.2)

11,470,376,536 11,533,893,100

EARERARREIERA Maximum credit risk exposure 91,306,040,142 82,946,920,248
XL ST IR B AR M B AR KRN EM, IARETL. « The exposure at default is the amount that the Bank should be
VEXBERARE, RIERIEINAT ERBER TR reimbursed in the next 12 months or throughout the remaining
WA R T, TR M E D IeR, GEEHRIGETNH lifetime when the default occurs.
ANEHE, HERBICEEETREW, BEXERERTEAM 12 NGk (1.2) Risk concentration

RMBARMARHIHTEL RS,

.
A 152 k@ (hE) ARAT 2020 EERE

The assessment of significant increases in credit risk and the
calculation of expected credit losses both involve forward-looking
information. Through the analysis of historical data, the Bank identifies
the key macroeconomic indicators that affect the credit risk and
expected credit loss of various industries and business types.

The impact of these economic indicators on probability of default and
loss given default varies according to different types of industries and
business types. The Bank applies experts' judgement in this analysis,
according to the result of experts' judgement, the Bank predicts these
economic indicators on a quarterly basis and determines the impact of
these economic indicators on the probability of default and the loss
given default by conducting regression analysis.

WXRGHFETTE-TUHHBE, FHERERLEZFHML,

HERARREERHENES, I, FRTULTBRKHNEFLR

HEHRENER, RIELARRATL X AERNEIRAER,

AABEBHENE FRUTRRMSERERE. &ASEHRE

RMBZOTLEF RS, FSEMIE. 72,

The concentration of borrowers/counterparties in the same
industry sector, geographical location or having similar economic
characteristics would tend to pose higher credit risk to the Bank.
On the other hand, the level of credit risk may be varied from each
industry or geographical location in view of their unique economic
development characteristics.

The Bank mainly provides loans and commitments/guarantees to
domestic customers. Analysis on industry sector concentration for the
Bank's loans and advances can be found at Note 7. 7.2.
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13 $84R4

AATREFEZXZHFHERRRIERERBHERY ST L
B, AASNERBRVELTHXNER, SETERYITHE

R IET ATAIE K,
IR EEB AT LTS

s WFRURMK, BRYTEINSRER. RITIERIFM>;
s WTAARK, BRYMARREE.

2

2

ERRF R SRR ENIERY AT HNEIHFARER XN
BREMMIFY), FAEHTREEENREMFTEN RN EEE

ROATNEL,

14 ERRE

AR EMEMA (RIMBRARELEE) NERAREITAOT:

(1.3) Collateral

The amount and type of the collateral required would depend on the
credit risk of the borrowers/counterparties as assessed by the Bank.
The Bank has established a guideline on taking collateral including the
frequency of collateral valuation.

The main types of collateral include:

« For corporate and commercial loans, main collaterals taken include
cash deposits, bank guarantee and properties; and
« For personal loans, collateral taken are mainly residential properties.

The management requires relevant Business Units to monitor the
market value of the collaterals and follow up with the borrowers/
counterparties to top up collaterals in accordance with the relevant
provisions of the loan agreement. The change in market value of the
collateral would also be taken into consideration when reviewing the
adequacy of loan loss provisions.

(1.4) Credit quality

The credit quality of financial assets of the Bank (excluding provisions)
is analysed as follows:

31-12-2020
BARB A th R B E EEHAERRBE ERE At

Neither overdue nor Overdue but not
impaired impaired Impaired Total
MEREFRHRETHT  Cash and deposit with the Central Bank 4,694,079,430 - - 4,694,079,430
=EE Precious metals 1,564,487,585 - - 1,564,487,585
TFHE LRI Due from banks and other financial institutions 3,696,381,992 - - 3,696,381,992
HFEHRE Placements with banks and other financial institutions 6,677,516,824 - - 6,677,516,824
THUERA~ Financial assets held-for-trading 1,525,241,844 - - 1,525,241,844
TTHELSmA~ Derivative financial assets 11,567,136,341 - - 11,567,136,341
IANIBRESRAT Reverse repurchase financial assets 2,273,841,680 - - 2,273,841,680
RIL R AR Loans and advances to customers 36,917,752,356 7,606,485 131,062,485 37,056,421,326

Other debt instrument at fair value through other

HthHmAIEHE comprehensive income 11,029,276,744 - - 11,029,276,744
Hh &A™~ Other financial assets 651,812,768 - - 651,812,768
&it Total 80,597,527,564 7,606,485 131,062,485 80,736,196,534

-~
A D4 k@ (hE) BRAE 2020 FERE

31-12-2019
B AR Eth R R E EEHERRIE ERE At
Neither overdue nor Overdue but not

impaired impaired Impaired Total

NERFMPREITHIM  Cash and deposit with the Central Bank 6,478,213,227 - - 6,478,213,227

=eRE Precious metals 1,162,708,344 - - 1,162,708,344

T E TR Due from banks and other financial institutions 1,858,694,126 - - 1,858,694,126
Placements with banks and other financial

HERE institutions 7,510,856,798 - - 7,510,856,798

T HMEREA= Financial assets held-for-trading 1,425,658,377 - - 1,425,658,377

TTHELRA~ Derivative financial assets 4,133,777,889 - - 4,133,777,889

INBREERBA Reverse repurchase financial assets 3,254,101,612 - - 3,254,101,612

RILEFR TR Loans and advances to customers 35,700,541,353 600,783 224,011,308 35,925,153,444
Other debt instrument at fair value through other

HaEPUE R comprehensive income 10,145,887,936 - - 10,145,887,936

Hth &A= Other financial assets 323,164,553 - - 323,164,553

it Total 71,993,604,215 600,783 224,011,308 72,218,216,306

BEAR R th K B (B A9 R I BTk R 25k

THRIEEFBRTAITT RS AR EHABRRENTR:

Loans and advances that are neither overdue nor impaired

arrangement as at the balance sheet date is as follows:

31-12-2020

The composition of loans that are neither overdue nor impaired by collateral

31-12-2019

Unsecured loans
Loans secured by guarantees
Loans secured by mortgage

Loans secured by pledges

6,153,734,827
6,039,519,469
18,989,322,183

5,735,175,877

4,911,545,834
6,554,023,916
19,709,763,142

4,525,208,461

Total

36,917,752,356

35,700,541,353
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EREIEAR BB R Tk R 25

TRFNFERE, SERERBENRIEREERKR DT :

Loans and advances that are overdue but not impaired

Aging analysis of loans that are overdue but not impaired as at the balance
sheet date is as follows:

31-12-2020

TMAMR 1TAMAEI2AA 2ABEI3NA 3IMAME it s E1ERY)

ARME

Within 1 month 1 to 2 months 2 to 3months  More than 3months Total Fair value of collaterals

Wik #2R  Loans and advances to customers 164,652 7,397,059 44,774 - 7,606,485 173,484,200
31-12-2019

TMBMR 1AMBEI2AA 24BEI34NA 3MBRE Ait FrIsEHERY

ARNE

Within 1 month 1 to 2 months 2to 3 months  More than 3months Total  Fair value of collaterals

Wk #3R  Loans and advances to customers 403,445 197,338 - - 600,783 121,947,000

EREA RN R 2

MREFVIEERPRARARERENRBINGE NS UAE
EhxE, BZBANERITARASRERT WA T W%
i, WZEARRREERPANAZRE RERR, ZEFRSEITE
AR AEETH KT,

FHREARRE, AASFHENERERRNKENE R ERER
REBRY IR RMNMETI T T :

Impaired loans and advances

Where there are objective evidences that a single or multiple negative events
have occurred after the initial recognition of the loans and the impact from
the events on the expected future cash flows can be estimated reliably,
the relevant loans should be recognised as impaired loans. These loans are
classified as "Substandard", "Doubtful" or "Loss" .

As at the balance sheet date, the carry amount of impaired loans and the fair
value of collateral of impaired loans held by the Bank are as follows:

31-12-2020 31-12-2019
RIETTR Impaired loans
- KRR -Substandard 38,498,663 224,011,308
- 5 -Doubtful 92,563,822 -
EEES -Loss - R
it Total 131,062,485 224,011,308
BIERKNIERY The collateral value of impaired loans 192,551,730 357,376,740

LRI A RME AR D SRR B AT AL BER T 7IR 0
X RO F RSB A ER TR B AR EFE,

BEHNRIEA R

AATHTRATHRBEAKERREEFTARR, RITRREAR
K, DESRFEFHERREK.

FTHREAFERA, AREFREEMENVSE,

-~
A 156 k@ (hE) HRAE 2020 FEHRE

The fair value of collateral that the Bank holds is determined from
the latest external valuation with necessary adjustment made after
considering the Bank's own experience in collateral disposal as well as the
current market conditions.

Restructured loans and advances
The Bank has formulated a set of loan restructuring policies to renegotiate
the contractual terms with customers in order to maximise the recovery

of impaired loans as well as to manage customer relationships.

No transactions were conducted by the Bank as at the balance sheet date.

2. FEh RS

AATRBRAZHRNMEURERTAFTZENTR, BEFRH
RERMERORE, RARME UEZMEHAOER. B, Rah
HEENTFEETREARTHENRTTHENRSHER,

ARSRHMMRAEEERETENNRERERTHTH, 8828
A NRZERSAERNZTER RHRE. MR, XEBK,
RHREENERAHREAADEFDNTIRE TERENAS
MR MRR, XEERBEBLZHUESHRREAHAR
BRESETERER), UERFESRDMEHES.

AABERH RS EETTERIRT LS, FHEHNRBAOFR,
PR TRAMENRTE, REXEORNESFHEERYETME
B E SRR,

AATBIENDEEFREARR, URFEARERNEE, BEH
FETRBUERASRFENZHL, BIRFUENERRTHZ
IDERUABREREFAED,

AP BEFNRTUSRKREEMERRAMNIE, TAERAM
MBET CELSBER"M ENER KT, KAASREASR
BECPR AR A= HIRAT IR s 1 KBS o O AR A, 32 R ARt 2 HA TR
EIEMMER L MNR T TR BIMABIRR., KATERIARE
MR PEA—RINMEETB T TRERENRD TR,
HEZERTHH, AATBE RGN LRAERBTERE. A8
FRAAERIEIOR DR PR A A,

(2) Liquidity risk

The Bank maintains sufficient liquidity to fund day-to-day operations,
to meet deposit withdrawals and loan disbursements, to participate in
new investments, and to repay borrowings. Hence, liquidity is managed
in a manner to address both anticipated and unanticipated cash funding
needs.

Liquidity risk is managed in accordance with a complete framework of
risk management, including-policies, controls and limits approved by the
Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO). These policies, controls and limits
are established to ensure that the Bank has sufficient funding to manage
liquidity risk over a range of market conditions. These include minimising
excessive funding concentrations by diversifying the sources and terms
of funding as well as maintaining a portfolio of debt securities with high
quality and good liquidity.

The Bank takes a conservative stance in liquidity management by
continuing to gather core deposits, strictly complying with liquidity
limits and retaining adequate liquid assets to prevent any possible cash
shortfall.

The Bank actively dispersed the sources of deposits to maintain a balance
of cost efficiency, continued availability of funds and diversification of
funding sources. Important factors in ensuring liquidity are competitive
pricing, proactive management of the Bank's core deposits and the
maintenance of customer confidence.

Liquidity risk is measured and managed on projected cash flow basis. Cash
flow projection is monitored under both business-as-usual and stress
scenarios. Cash flow mismatch limits are established to limit the Bank's
liquidity exposure. The Bank has also employed liquidity early warning
indicators and trigger points to signal possible contingency situations.
Contingency funding plans have been set up to identify potential
liquidity crises by using a series of warning indicators. Crisis management
processes and various strategies including funding and communication
have been developed to minimise the negative impact of any liquidity
crunch.
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F2020F 12 A3 H, KASHNERMEREMARKETIAE

The Bank's undiscounted maturity profile of financial assets and liabilities

BRSO as at 31 December 2020 is as follows:
31-12-2020
I / BIRHEE T AR 1Z34A 3MBETE 1E5% 5FE TCHARR a3t
Overdue / On demand Within 1 month 1 to 3 months 3 months to 1 year 1to 5 years 5 years above undated Total
ERLBFE Financial assets:
M4 R IFM P REBITRIN Cash and deposits with the Central Bank 518,540,819 R _ B B B 4.175,052,495 4.693,593,314
RER Precious metals - - - - - - 1,564,487 585 1,564,487 585
FE W ERIR Due from banks and other financial institutions 3,431,281,578 249,801,368 - - - - - 3,681,082,946
wERS Placements with banks and other financial institutions - 2,771,892,860 3,202,094,178 713,468,405 - - - 6,687,455,443
XA SRR Financial assets held-for-trading - 27,499,013 1,341,452,618 3,955,850 153,736,650 . - 1,526,644,131
PSRBT Derivative financial assets - 2,512,668,657 2,655,523,963 5,339,319,582 1,019,455,347 40,168,792 - 11,567,136,341
ENBRE SR~ Reverse repurchase financial assets - 2,274,796,605 - _ _ R B 2.274.796,605
B BRI Loans and advances to customers 69,563,845 2,279,563,404 6,455,861,095 11,872,364,401 13,697,928,845 5,904,135,930 691,168,184 40,970,585,704
H AR R Other debt instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income - 877,134,658 2,017,982,503 2,599,037,489 5,950,201,613 - - 11,444,356,263
Hith&RAH = Other financial assets 490,659 626,837,427 - 24,484,682 - - . 651,812,768
SMAS AT Total financial assets 4,019,876,901 11,620,193,992 15,672,914,357 20,552,630,409 20,821,322,455 5,944,304,722 6,430,708,264 85,061,951,100
RS Financial liabilities:

B Mk B2 F At S RATLAA 17 UK

HARE
PSR
AR

X o MR AR
EEY A
ISANEEEE
Hith & ah i
ERARETT

AT

Due to banks and other financial institutions
Placements from banks and other financial institutions
Derivative financial liabilities

Customer deposits

Financial liabilities held-for-trading

Repurchase agreements

Debt securities issued

Other financial liabilities

Total financial liabilities

Net liquidity

1,483,935,560

14,260,807,275

2,806,851,700

2,368,653,947

9,691,577,530

135,099,950

466,204,494

6,015,398

3,780,610,923

2,742,812,922

4,631,171,510

3,113,998,496

141,289,588

7,968,531,298

5,455,785,147

7,313,839,857

397,512,283

1,097,204,788

577,188,101

2,214,546,887

1,044,111,609

708,773,907

1,141,204,676

1,625,225,148

16,770,540,808

11,611,363,625

36,606,170,079

3,646,610,729

466,204,494

2,238,409,464

583,203,499

15,744,742,835

15,474,403,019

14,268,593,851

22,951,351,062

5,108,637,079

73,547,727,846

(11,724,865,934)

(3,854,209,027)

1,404,320,506

(2,398,720,653)

15,712,685,376

5,944,304,722

6,430,708,264

11,514,223,254

RINKIEEI

Commitments

201,514,622

654,259,656

1,978,162,870

5,566,541,937

3,069,897,451

11,470,376,536

-~
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F209FENZHA3IAE, AATINERHATREMAGRALITIANE  The Bank's undiscounted maturity profile of financial assets and liabilities

BRSO as at 31 December 2019 is as follows:
31-12-2019
B/ BRI 1B 12348 SMAENE 125F 5&ME THIRR it
Overdue / On demand Within 1 month 1 to 3 months 3 months to 1 year 1to 5 years 5 years above undated Total
BRI Financial assets:
WM& RIFH P REBITERIN Cash and deposits with the Central Bank 1,577,423,039 - _ R _ ~ 4.900,120,211 6,477,543,250
HEE Precious metals - - - - - - 1,162,708,344 1,162,708,344
TERE b =R Due from banks and other financial institutions 1,552,989,196 199,792,034 100,472,267 - - - - 1,853,253,497
HERE Placements with banks and other financial institutions - 3,924,750,142 476,462,833 3,139,323,125 - - - 7,540,536,100
T HMERE Financial assets held-for-trading - - 1,034,932,688 391,475,300 - - - 1,426,407,988
E= b Derivative financial assets - 988,461,433 995,209,063 1,288,977,060 835,352,333 25,778,000 - 4133777889
INBESRA~ Reverse repurchase financial assets - 3,055,946,729 201,034,457 - _ - B 3.256,981,186
R AILL Loans and advances to customers 140,092,160 1,954,864,519 5,223,671,793 10,989,640,189 14,757,226, 917 7,921,519,306 - 40,987,014,884
H R R Other debt instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income - 1,008,846,904 862,541,603 2,584,565,623 6,153,414,816 - . 10,609,368,946
HibemA™ Other financial assets _ 297,478,598 : 25,685,955 ) i ] 323164553
SEAF S Total financial assets 3,270,504,395 11,430,140,359 8,894,324,704 18,419,667,252 21,745,994,066 7,947,297,306 6,062,828,555 77,770,756,637
RS Financial liabilities:
[& Mk 2 E fth & BAHL A 17 GR IR Due to banks and other financial institutions 71,124,511 - 138,345,373 289,276,944 - - - 498,746,828
HANAE Placements from banks and other financial institutions - 1,422,567,840 2,065,350,083 8,001,377,569 2,214,546,887 - - 13,703,842,379
RE=4 00 Derivative financial liabilities - 881,324,655 1,146,502,435 1,270,001,774 820,256,547 19,130,179 - 4,137,215,590
LA Customer deposits 12,432,302,229 11,321,280,268 7,342,800,880 7,370,004,320 1,144,042,478 ; ] 39.610,430,175
ka4 Wik Financial liabilities held-for-trading - - 3,183,795,542 : . ) i 3.183.795,542
SE ! Bl SR 5K Repurchase agreements - 720,464,646 - - _ , ) 720,464,646
R RS Debt securities issued - - - 807,141,590 2,236,747,428 - - 3,043,889,018
Htb e R Other financial liabilities - 4,234,143 - 331,242,107 - - - 335,476,250
SRMAHAT Total financial liabilities 12,503,426,740 14,349,871,552 13,876,794,313 18,069,044,304 6,415,593,340 19,130,179 . 65,233,860,428
REM S Net liquidity (9,232,922,345) (2,919,731,193) (4,982,469,609) 350,622,948 15,330,400,726 7,928,167,127 6,062,828,555 12,536,896,209
RINKEEI Commitments 102,429,967 348,285,411 1,703,089,586 5,843,084,823 3,537,003,313 - - 11,533,893,100

-~
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AREEBHNTHNEERRBMNER, CR=RMREE” A
AT, ARBNXGHVERERZHL S ~ETHRRE, &2
SR E TR B RSB e N FIES BT 37 RS = 4 Ayl 3R
%K, BNERAASZEETARNERINENE TN,

AREHAEEER 2 EETHTHNEBRO, FRFTUFEXTS
REEEBFRERT NRZERRMA, FEPBRITTZNEHO
CIREBFNREASHNERLNREEZRS.

AASEREEENSEERNEETHNE, ETENEET
EBEERMAT. WHRE. REME. EONRE, T~ m
ks EZRT, % @ALEST MR EREAE T MHHR.

AATRERRK NS B SERAINE = DRI AZZWIH
RITWA . RHEMFERVERZ S BHIEZANEZ Z KA H
mEREmFENTERXZNERTAMFTRLT, XS
MHNEBUR TR A TR, SFEFHR TR, RENE. RS,
FERMNES, ROKFBERIZWAMIEMERTR, RITKA
FEE RN M RAMETEHZNEE,

.
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(3) Market risk

The Bank is exposed to market risk mainly from open positions in interest
rate, foreign exchange rate products and precious metal products. Market
risk arises from both trading and non-trading business. The objective
of market risk management is to avoid excessive losses in earnings and
shareholder's fund due to market risk, and to minimise the negative impact
from inherent volatility risks of financial instruments.

The Risk Management Division monitors the Bank's market risk exposure
and is responsible for setting up market risk policies with approval by the
Asset & Liability Committee. Market Risk exposures are reported to the
Asset & Liability Committee and Board Risk Management Committee on a
regular basis.

The Bank monitors and manages market risk in accordance with
established framework and policies. The monitoring and measurement
methods mainly include sensitivity analysis, Expected Shortfall (ES), Value-
at-Risk (VaR) and stress testing. Prior to launch of new product or new
business, market risk will be properly identified and addressed.

The Bank divides the balance sheet assets and liabilities into the trading
book or banking book according to the characteristics of different
accounts. Trading book mainly includes freely tradable financial
instruments and commodity positions held for trading purpose or to
avoid risks in other items of the trading account. The market risk in trading
book depends on the tools of the transactions, including interest rates,
foreign exchange rates, stock prices, commodity prices and credit spreads.
Banking book includes financial instruments other than trading book. The
main risks in banking book are interest rate and credit spread risks.

31 ICERE

(3.1) Currency risk

FTEEHAT AR HE MO TR NRINCZ 5 T A R
MENE O NETRETHHRaEIMSEINE,

F2020 F 2 310, ARENEXR”RAGRRTMIIRET

The Bank's currency risk arises mainly from currency mismatches of
assets and liabilities as well as foreign exchange trading business
whereby the open positions are subject to exchange rate fluctuations.

As at 31 December 2020, the Bank's assets and liabilities by currency

are as follows:

7.
e RAFH R RBHHR
#E

R LT

S

RS
PIHESRE
INBESRA
RN
HARGRBURA

HAtb&RhA
EMASET

s

Bk & H s S A A 77 BRI
N

B Y it Uik
PTHESRAMR
LT

MRS

SEH P &R R
Hftb &R AR
ERARET

AP R

Assets:

Cash and deposit with the Central Bank

Precious metals

Due from banks and other financial institutions
Placements with banks and other financial institutions
Financial assets held-for-trading

Derivative financial assets

Reverse repurchase financial assets

Loans and advances to customers

Other debt instrument at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Other financial assets

Total financial assets

Liabilities:

Due to banks and other financial institutions
Placements from banks and other financial institutions
Financial liabilities held-for-trading
Derivative financial liabilities

Customer deposits

Debt securities issued

Repurchase agreements

Other financial liabilities

Total financial liabilities

Net position

31-12-2020

ES AR™® Hith &It

usb RMB Others Total (RMB

(RMB equivalent) (RMB equivalent) equivalent)

871,083,488

1,764,434,995

4,642,236,956

313,750,503

5,771,554,317

14,732,777

3,818,609,857
1,564,487,585
807,997,976
1,958,942,521
1,525,241,844
11,249,416,078
2,273,636,714

29,591,211,553

11,029,276,744

633,130,742

3,899,969

1,108,280,194

66,713,171

3,969,760

823,270,257

3,949,249

4,693,593,314
1,564,487,585
3,680,713,165
6,667,892,648
1,525,241,844
11,567,136,341
2,273,636,714

36,186,036,127

11,029,276,744

651,812,768

13,377,793,036

64,451,951,614

2,010,082,600

79,839,827,250

3225250  1,621,371,375 - 1,624,596,625
12,994,553,384  3,555,193,096 42,383,452 16,592,129,932
6,943,935  3,637,288,183 - 3,644,232,118
442,632,809  11,165,278,505 3,452,311 11,611,363,625
4,959,624,492  31,153,868,998 349,655,205  36,463,148,695
- 2,037,710,703 - 2,037,710,703

- 466,069,704 - 466,069,704

13,335,712 540,614,640 29,253,147 583,203,499
18,420,315,582  54,177,395,204 424,744,115  73,022,454,901

(5,042,522,546)

10,274,556,410

1,585,338,485

6,817,372,349

PTHEEMTEBRXEH

Notional amounts of derivative financial instruments

222,913,086,062

442,074,097,111

4,978,704,029

669,965,887,202

ERKIE

Commitments

2,787,131,257

5,621,955,279

3,061,290,000

11,470,376,536

>
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F209FE12 8318, ARIANBEREFRAGIRH I RAT:

As at 31 December 2019, the Bank's assets and liabilities by currency are

ﬁ}ﬁ::

Assets:

as follows:
31-12-2019
E AR™ Hith &it
usb RMB Others Total (RMB
(RMB equivalent) (RMB equivalent) equivalent)

MERFHHRETHI  Cash and deposit with the Central Bank 1,260,954,034 5,212,572,417 4,016,799 6,477,543,250
=48 Precious metals - 1,162,708,344 - 1,162,708,344
T E b 7RI Due from banks and other financial institutions 845,841,112 849,748,279 156,849,511 1,852,438,902
FHEES Placements with banks and other financial institutions 6,371,849,316 1,102,036,934 25,959,972 7,499,846,222
THMErA~ Financial assets held-for-trading - 1,425,658,377 - 1,425,658,377
LA~ Derivative financial assets 246,252,270 3,887,525,619 - 4,133,777,889
IANRESFAT Reverse repurchase financial assets - 3,253,748,361 - 3,253,748,361
RILRFR AR Loans and advances to customers 4,768,459,646 29,403,144,366 972,810,600 35,144,414,612
Other debt instrument at fair value through other

HARDILE comprehensive income - 10,145,887,936 - 10,145,887,936
Hth &A™~ Other financial assets 63,043,364 258,083,480 2,037,709 323,164,553
SRA~EIT Total financial assets 13,556,399,742 56,701,114,113 1,161,674,591 71,419,188,446
faf: Liabilities:

B X H Ath & B AL AD 7 I

I Due to banks and other financial institutions 14,027,319 478,042,559 - 492,069,878
AR Placements from banks and other financial institutions 10,858,156,430 2,354,453,493 246,342,512 13,458,952,435
T 5 ML 7R Financial liabilities held-for-trading 1,545,047 3,181,631,577 - 3,183,176,624
TSR AR Derivative financial liabilities 255,635,979 3,881,579,611 - 4,137,215,590
R U 755 Customer deposits 5,958,865,125 33,183,078,325 364,144,878 39,506,088,328
&S Debt securities issued - 2,745,552,507 - 2,745,552,507
SEH O SRR R Repurchase agreements - 720,292,241 - 720,292,241
Hth&rh i Other financial liabilities 77,250,939 224,726,614 33,498,697 335,476,250
R HRET Total financial liabilities 17,165,480,839 46,769,356,927 643,986,087 64,578,823,853
AFEREALT Net position (3,609,081,097) 9,931,757,186 517,688,504 6,840,364,593
TTHESHMTEZXEM Notional amounts of derivative financial instruments 205,397,564,415 405,088,300,624 4,077,731,796 614,563,596,835
ERKIE Commitments 3,008,815,476 5,160,895,789 3,364,181,835 11,533,893,100

A 164 k@ (hE) BRAE 2020 FEHRE

UTREHMEEARAETNBERT, IMTRAUTICETEREN
SETHRATA B0

Holding all other variables constant, the impact from a change in
foreign exchange rates on profit before tax of the Bank is as follows:

31-12-2020 31-12-2019
PR RINEE Al PSEsAEnR b AL
Impact on profit Impact on profit

S EBEE Change in Foreign Exchange Rate
WA THRZE 1% -1% change against RMB 34,571,841 30,913,926
WARMHFHE 1% +1% change against RMB (34,571,841) (30,913,926)

M EGREMDITET R~ MARRERSHCERREN, Hit
B HEMARAEN, MO ARTILENSETETNH
GIERELNEA

BRODTETUATRIR:

() CEGRERESETHANARTFREBLGREE (hEfh)
LI SE R Bl 1% (& BRI S i ;

(2) BEHMLCEREHNZIEEDIITARTICRENEEKRSD;
(3) ZLCENEHMANEER~AFERRIFE,

HTET LR RE, TEEUSBARAST LR SRS HIAKR
TUTRE S BRI ERTR .,

The sensitivity analysis above is performed on the basis that assets and
liabilities have static currency risk structure. It shows the impact of a
change in other currency rates against RMB on the Bank's profit before
tax, given other variables remain constant.

The analysis is based on below assumptions:
(1) Exchange rate sensitivity refers to the gains and losses caused by
one per cent change of the closing rate (mid rate) of the different

foreign currencies against RMB as at the balance sheet date;

(2) Exchange rate fluctuation refers to the fluctuation against RMB in
the same direction simultaneously;

(3) Off-balance sheet items are excluded.
Due to the above assumptions, the actual impact of exchange rate

fluctuation on the Bank's earnings may differ from above sensitivity
analysis.

i
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3.2 F R XU
RS

XZKATEEEAXZENHER IABZZ KA EMITER
PmFENTEHXSNERTIAMF ALY, XSKAHHNH
BREBRTRZH TR, BFEAER CRRENE. BRNHE.
ERAEE,

AN EREAREEZTEEEERTHTHRRALR, FAK
BREEITENERZ A TR N,

AATEAIMBTH N EIRFRA 975% BEX 8 TNE H M
#i5k (Expected Shortfall) §9 5 s2A&3% . 1ZTTRINAEWFIZE, T
RN RINEEF N E T AERRAOLTINRAL T ROB T Y H D52
HIEFE, MEBRE (5) REMMANBHNYE, IAABEIT
BHERRTR-EGRERITEMNEERK,

RN G, AQSRARHLRHE 99% BEXETHEXE

ME (VaR) , REE{E (VaR) SHEIHRAE (ES) BMEKDH—

B, BEEWNKEBRRZKANGRE S RENE (VaR) B9

FRBILEAH R ARURERT RN SBE P AT SN

LR, P RN R R K BRTT REECIRE R = AR
A

ERE,

BARAVRHFES REETMHNEHNEZTR, BHEXRENRERT
E—ERBIFZM, Hm:

HRHREZELT, JEINXZENNEHAETCEENN
HEMNRRGE, EETHKENEFERINFAENERLT,
MR 5 BHNREHRE TEATEXRER

« VAR FNES Y ARTEANE, FARRIXZERFCITER
it B9 B 5

« BERBERERERRERNITECENEE, T—EEAT
FrEEREIER, FRRHEISNEDR,

AR ES WEEMARE, ARSEMEAMAREZNRK, HHE
ROEENRELERGBEZNTRERNFE, XEWK HEHT
DR ERREHET FMMERR, MUEX TEMARIBHTRK.,

AAT2020FE 12 B3 HHES HART 1778 & (209412 B
3IHES: AR 680 HT) .

A 166 xme () HRAE 2020 FRHE

(3.2) Interest rate risk

Trading Book

Trading book mainly includes freely tradable financial instruments and
commodity positions held for trading purpose or to avoid risks of other
items in the trading account. The market risk in trading book depends on
the tools of the transaction, including interest rates, exchange rates, stock
prices, commodity prices, and credit spreads, etc.

The Bank currently adopts the Standardised Approach for the
calculation of regulatory market risk capital and uses the Internal
Models Approach to measure and to control trading market risks.

The Bank estimates a daily Expected Shortfall (ES) within a 97.5
per cent confidence interval over a one-day holding period, using
the historical simulation method, as a control for market risk. This
method assumes observed historical market movements can be used
to imply possible future changes in market rates. ES is the average of
the worst losses in the distribution, assuming that the losses exceed
the specified percentile.

For back testing purpose, the Bank uses daily VaR within a 99 per cent
confidence interval over a one-day holding period. VaR uses the same
loss distribution as ES. The backtesting process analyses whether
the exceptions are due to model deficiencies or market volatility.
All backtesting exceptions are tabled to ALCO with recommended
actions and resolutions.

Although VaR and ES are important tools to measure market risk, there
are certain limitations on the assumptions of the model, such as:

* In most cases, the assumption that a position can be hedged or
sold within the observation period of one trading day is reasonable,
but in the case of severe liquidity shortage in the market over a
long period of time, the assumption of the observation period of
one trading day may not be in line with the actual situation;

» VaR and ES are calculated based on the day's closing benchmark
and do not reflect the risks that may be faced by positions held on
the trade day;

 Historical data is used as a basis for determining the possible
range of future results, and may not be applicable to all possible
situations, especially exceptions.

To complement the ES measure, the Bank perform stress and scenario
tests to identify the Bank's vulnerability to event risk. These tests
serve to provide early warnings of plausible extreme losses.

The Bank's daily ES on 31 December 2020 was RMB17.78 million (The
Bank's daily ES on 31 December 2019 was RMB6.80 million).

SRITIK A

AFENHEEREOR SR RN EEERNENME, BT 0HK
W EREBBIE ~ MRER R RNITENRITRA TEF RS,

MENEEENTRAGRRESHUNETRES, BUERE
RITHVEF BN SRRIPFHRARITARMEFMENE K,

FAFEANMT IR, BREENHRMERMEITEENER
TP MR RO, B X F R GRER 7 U RAEX TR KR )
D, BTEMNEZHXNFBBRAREFNEREZE, TR
BREXBHENPR. THEESOHNOFE, B TERE
B, KHMFRERENFIZRLTNENZHEKR,

AN BIRRAIET SN TS R =2 FNEEED I EEDR
BHAFENEENDWR, MEEBERTHRASNNTEBFIRHK
R NRITAS NEROFWE, BN, ZEDNKBAT %R
mIER T URRESTRMENFHNE R RTEPE RN
TR TR EIEF R,

Banking book

The ALCO maintains oversight of the effectiveness of the interest
rate risk management structure. The Balance Sheet Risk Management
(BSRM) Division supports the ALCO in monitoring the interest rate
risk profile of the banking book.

The primary objective of interest rate risk management is to protect
and to enhance capital or economic net worth through adequate,
stable and reliable growth in net interest earnings under a broad range
of possible economic conditions.

Banking book interest rate risk exposure is quantified using analysis
tools include repricing schedules and sensitivity analysis. They
provide indications of the potential impact of interest rate changes
on interest income and economic value through the analysis of the
sensitivity of assets and liabilities to changes in interest rates. Interest
rate sensitivity varies with different repricing periods, currencies and
embedded options mismatches in the longer tenor will experience
greater impact in the price-value of interest rate positions than
similar positions in the shorter tenor.

The Bank also performs quantitative analysis method of net interest
income and economic value of net assets regularly to determine the
adequacy of capital in meeting the impact of extreme interest rate
movements on the balance sheet. Such tests are also performed to
provide early warnings of potential extreme losses, facilitating the
proactive management of interest rate risks in an environment of
rapid financial market changes.

- A
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MTAIR, CRABRAEELSRZ A FORRED TS
R B R AR T AR R S,

T209E12R3H, AXFARTKABENMBENET R AGK
REREENAREHABREREEMTUT:

The risks arising from the trading book, such as interest rates, foreign As at 31 December 2019, the Bank's assets/liabilities of banking book

exchange rates and equity prices are managed and controlled under re-pricing profiles (based on the earlier of maturity date and re-pricing

the market risk framework. date) is as follows:

T 2020 £ 12 B 31 B, AASRTKAEEHMAENESRNE
REBREENARIHAREREEMTET:

As at 31 December 2020, the Bank's assets/liabilities of banking book
re-pricing profiles (based on the earlier of maturity date and re-pricing

date) is as follows:

31-12-2020 31-12-2019
3MBR SMAETE 1ES54F SEME TitE &it ERO=In| SMRENE 1E5% SEME iR Ait
Within 3 months 3 months to1 year 1to 5 years 5 years above Non-interest bearing Total Within 3 months 3 months to1 year 1to 5 years 5 years above Noninterest bearing Total
B Assets: B, Assets:
e RFHHRIE Cash and deposit with the NE&ERFHHRE Cash and deposit with the
1TRIR Central Bank 3,816,427,130 - - - 877,166,184 4,693,593,314 TRIm Central Bank 5,208,579,418 - - - 1,268,963,832 6,477,543,250
Due from banks and other Due from banks and other
T E b 7RI financial institutions 3,136,221,418 - - - 489,206 3,136,710,624 T E b FRIn financial institutions 1,325,476,216 - - - 457,774 1,325,933,990
Placements with banks and Placements with banks and
wHAES other financial institutions 5,951,361,714 706,453,015 - - 10,077,919 6,667,892,648 FHEHRS other financial institutions 5,097,104,878 2,381,911,033 - - 20,830,311 7,499,846,222
Reverse repurchase financial Reverse repurchase financial
INRELFHR~ assets 2,271,155,258 - - - 2,481,456 2,273,636,714 EINBRESRE  assets 3,246,187,571 - - - 7,560,790 3,253,748,361
Loans and advances to Loans and advances to
KINRFR KR customers 15,631,528,026  19,122,766,263 100,352,774 200,002,099 261,449,877  35,316,099,039 RIET KR customers 26,721,599,050 7,052,510,655 61,345,569 4,063,521 320,353,110  34,159,871,905
Other debt instrument at Other debt instrument at
fair value through other fair value through other
HhEmPUE R comprehensive income 2,823,774,250 2,429,707,130 5,632,156,081 - 143,639,283  11,029,276,744 HthEPIE R comprehensive income 1,797,653,080 2,421,439,820 5,776,267,010 - 150,528,026  10,145,887,936
Hih i~ Other financial assets - - - - 37,656,383 37,656,383 Hith &R~ Other financial assets - - - - 38,800,689 38,800,689
SRR~ EIT Total financial assets 33,630,467,796  22,258,926,408 5,732,508,855 200,002,099 1,332,960,308  63,154,865,466 SRA~HIT Total financial assets 43,396,600,213  11,855,861,508 5,837,612,579 4,063,521 1,807,494,532  62,901,632,353
& Liabilities: fifE: Liabilities:
B R EAMSEY Due to banks and other Ek R H A4 FaH]  Due to banks and other
MTERER T financial institutions 1,483,415,305 139,172,999 - - 2,008,321 1,624,596,625 M TERGRIN financial institutions 208,871,450 280,000,000 - - 3,198,428 492,069,878
Placement from banks and Placement from banks and
wARSE other financial institutions 6,573,472,238 7,946,023,220 1,995,800,000 - 76,834,474  16,592,129,932 wARE other financial institutions 3,458,521,681 7,881,005,294 1,995,800,000 - 123,625,460  13,458,952,435
UligsE=y Customer deposits 28,251,006,190 7,140,019,598 627,778,016 - 444,344,891  36,463,148,695 U leeE Customer deposits 30,913,772,759 7,225,059,348 1,027,111,683 - 340,144,538  39,506,088,328
SEH [ $RAE =X Repurchase agreements 466,000,000 - - - 69,704 466,069,704 SEH B R E 77X Repurchase agreements 720,000,000 - - - 292,241 720,292,241
N RS Debt securities issued - 999,444,170 997,628,999 - 40,637,534 2,037,710,703 NAHES Debt securities issued - 709,614,871 1,995,411,133 - 40,526,503 2,745,552,507
Hiheam iR Other financial liabilities - - - - 138,171,601 138,171,601 HithSah (R Other financial liabilities - - - - 99,349,863 99,349,863
SEAEA Total financial liabilities 36,773,893,733  16,224,659,987  3,621,207,015 - 702,066,525  57,321,827,260 SRAEAT Total financial liabilities 35,301,165,890  16,095,679,513  5,018,322,816 . 607,137,033 57,022,305,252
Derivative financial Derivative financial
PSR (F) assets(Note) 978,650,829 84,823,700 - - - 1,063,474,529 FTHESRAR (F) assets(Note) 214,885,200 224,633,640 . - - 439,518,840
Derivative financial Derivative financial
LTrTELpifE (OF) liabilities(Note) 980,537,940 84,813,830 - - - 1,065,351,770 LTSRNt () liabilities(Note) 212,901,803 224,981,292 - - - 437,883,095
FIZ K& R A Net position (3,145,313,048) 6,034,276,291 2,111,301,840 200,002,099 630,893,783 5,831,160,965 FlZ K BEERA Net position 8,097,417,720  (4,240,165,657) 819,289,763 4,063,521 1,200,357,499 5,880,962,846

E ANFROKASENTESHAS / MRZEXASNEREENASEPAMEREFHITIN,

Note: The derivative financial assets/liabilities of banking book are analysed based on the earlier of re-pricing date and maturity date of the nominal principal.

-
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ARSI FHFRTAZRBEENR, MEEF X ITRZREH
HEEITESMAS T EERABNEENER,

UMTREHMTERTHNERT, FERTERXENSGETXN S
B, HbGRaRENTE SR AA &R 7T E S0,

The Bank profiles its interest bearing assets and liabilities based on
maturity date for fixed rate items or re-pricing date for floating rate
items.

Holding other variables constant, the impact of interest rate movement

on the Bank's net profit, other comprehensive income after tax and
equity is as follows:

31-12-2020 31-12-2019

Xt 28 B9 00

Impact on net profit

Xt 28 B9 00

Impact on net profit

FEER) Change in interest rate
F SR A0 100 ANEE & + 100 basis points (3,669,715) 41,213,838
FIZRR D 100 ME S - 100 basis points 3,669,715 (41,213,838)

U EBRUESTET RS MARREAHRSHNERNELENL, X
DM EE—FRFERRNL, RRA—FAXQSHE =R
NEFENWT AR SRELITENSRANNE M, BTUTRER

) FEE=ANRAR=A"RRE-—FAENENNEHNA
M FRIEAES X HE P EERENHEIL;

(2) e R B R B UM F1TE;
(3) AFEMRAEHF EREMEN;

(4) R ERH AR EBRITE SR TR DUIMIR = RfRE
SR

HTET LR, FIRERSBEANSHEABANHIE SR
TR S BUR MDAV E R,

A U0 ks (hE) HRAE 2020 FEHRE

The sensitivity analysis above is performed on the basis that assets and
liabilities have static interest rate risk structure. It reflects the impact of
interest rate movement on the Bank's net interest income over a one-

year period. The key assumptions are as follows:

(1) All assets and liabilities with re-pricing date less than three months
or between three months and one year are assumed to be re-
priced in the middle of the respective time bucket;

(2) Yield curve shifts in parallel with interest rate change;

(3) Assets and liabilities are not subject to other changes; and

(4) Off-balance sheet items except derivative financial instruments are
excluded.

Due to the above assumptions, the actual impact of net interest
income from interest rate movement may differ from above sensitivity
analysis.

4. 2 RhE

PAME, RETHSEEEUEARENAEFXSH, HE—M
AR B SE RS — AR B ANNIE, EXHERZT
% (BHMATIESZ ) FENEET, TOHERIEARMN
BEZRELER, Af, ARSFBERRGTZADERE~RARK
HFEmh, ALk, SFZHAETNITRZEBMIE, NN TAR
ZHEFHMETTEGEEARANE, BR, EBALETERITZ
mﬁ RHEARKRANSTRELNT, HEMRE, UEAXBZHR
AN

FrRAZ T ERRRINT

() MAAMETEEEEMTALBHRBNSRHES / SoHHE
(BRETESRMAS / SRMMK) NEETHSBZHMMITE
HEARNE, METHSBZHN, WERSTEMNEEL
AMERSBIX ST AHNRNFAEL2ANE, 2RNMESTIL
EMAZKEEF

(i) FRABNEHZAMESRE~ SR NGRETHRERE, €1
HIKEMMES 2 A NMERE:

(i) LESRRZEANERTEMURRZTHAEREY, EARND
BEUSRTHHNETEGEE, BRAGPERREZZUAER
ERRNAMENTTEER, EAERNE 00 EIREN LT
FMK, MIKEER2AARNMETNE;

(v) BERERDEZEABGMEREESFHNE, BHERRLTE
ERBPHZEERARREEQIZRBAN TSI AARMNE,
FEEHRZERNAANMEUNRSRERIVELE, TIRE
ASZERERNRRPRYEHNRTERIE,

ARATPHERAMERNTTET RUAE AT

() TWETN: HNRERRIFREBENTHIRN

(i) (HEI: TR BEERARHETEE.

(4) Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. Subject to the existence of an active market,
such as an authorised securities exchange, the market value is the best
reflection of the fair value of financial instruments. As there is no available
market value for some of the financial assets and liabilities held and issued
by the Bank, the discounted cash flow method or other valuation methods
described below are adopted to determine the fair value of these assets
and liabilities. However, the value determined by such methods would
depend on the amount of future cash flows, time period assumption and
discount rates used.

The following methods and assumptions are used in estimating fair values:

(i)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (including
derivative assets/liabilities) are stated at fair value by reference to
the quoted market prices when available. If quoted market prices are
not available, the fair value is estimated using discounted cash flows
or quoted price from the counter parties. The carrying amounts of
these items reflect the fair value as at the balance sheet date;

(i)  The fair values of other financial assets and liabilities maturing within
12 months are assumed to be equal to their carrying amounts in view
of their short maturity;

(iii) The fair value of fixed rate loans priced at market rate at the time the
loans are extended shall be determined using prevailing market rates
of similar loans. Changes in the credit quality of loans within the
portfolio are not taken into account in determining the fair values
as the impact of credit risk is recognised separately as impairment
provision which shall be deducted from the carrying amounts and
fair value;

(iv) Customer deposits are priced based on fixed rate or floating rate
depending on the product type. The fair value of demand deposits
and saving deposits without specific maturity date is determined
based on the amount payable on demand. The fair value of fixed
deposits are estimated using discounted cash flows method with the
prevailing deposit rate for the remaining tenor of the fixed deposit as
the discount rate.

The method of determining a fair value in the Bank can be categorised
into two main approaches:

(i) Mark to Market - where the valuation uses independent unadjusted
quoted market prices;

(i)  Mark to Model - where valuation techniques are used to determine
the valuation.

- A
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HEEEEARANANEN—DMBRAER, BERREFEFWEDR,
N ZZINEHITEENRRAANENER NS, A2 EBNEE
WEITEZEIFRMNER, FIMIRNEHEREMELGHER
B, UHRIINNEaEEN.

RRBIELT AMEFNFRBRAAMENSEN, WRRXAK
BAMGE BEPHREIRABEELAEZLR I TR NANE]
BAE, Moo, BRI, MASE. REMEERET 8=
ZERZIMEE, HNHERSEE8EERNOMEERS,

ARV BRHTARNERENSRT RIDPA=NER:
BE—RR: pFATHMNE

RMEERAZE AR E MR RHNERTZRN G HEEST
WEMAL RN SR RERATRERECEEARASEEL
B INENGRS.

BIRER: HEBASHTNBITHUREE MEEZA

EXMEETRERLERESEE, MAANEIRESHMEETS
LEENSE, SHRASERERITADT. BNENERM—L
THSE5ELBEATNEZIORAR, BHAXDNERO SR~ RHE
BASSCIEE, SNCER, REBZH / EREESXHHITTER (W0
EmmHRE. FRER, SNCER. ZETREWER) |, FEHL
ANMEBEX SN FRENSH M (NENEXAAERE~R) .

BZRER: HEIBRSPTHERNESINRAHMEERIA

EXMEERARZAGETHRENEM ERREZRTRNESH,
BRIAA SR B AR~ REAREINER,

U ERBRERTEDAEADNEF R ARz A AN ER{—S 2T
BAN, Rh, BTHAVNAISERTRZTERRER, &€/
MAMFRE 2 ARMERDTERETLLM,

A 72 ke (hE) BRAE 2020 FERE

Valuation adjustments are an integral part of the fair value process
that requires the exercise of judgment to ensure correct fair value
representation. In making appropriate valuation adjustments, the Bank
follows the methodologies that consider factors such as bid-offer spread
valuation adjustment and model valuation adjustment.

The Bank has established internal control procedures over the valuation
process to provide assurance over the appropriateness of the fair values
applied. If fair value is determined by valuation models, the assumptions and
techniques within the models are independently validated by a specialist
group. In addition, price and parameter inputs, assumptions and valuation
adjustments are subject to verification and review processes. Other valuation
control includes review and analysis of daily profit and loss.

The Bank classifies all the fair value instruments according to the following
hierarchy:

Level T: Quoted market price

This valuation technique uses recent unadjusted quoted prices for
identical assets or liabilities in active markets where the price represents
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis.
Financial instruments included in this class are bonds with the marked-
to-market prices actively made available and announced by China Central
Depository and Clearing Co., Ltd.

Level 2: Valuation technique using observable inputs

This valuation technique is used for financial instruments where the prices
are derived from standard valuation models, and significant inputs to
these models are directly observable. The valuation techniques include
the use of discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and other
valuation techniques widely used and accepted by market participants.
The financial instruments included in this category are mainly foreign
exchange forward and foreign exchange swaps, precious metals forward
and swaps, and OTC derivatives (namely money market deposit and
placement, interest rate swap, FX option, rediscounted bills) and financial
instruments with fair value derived from counterparty (for structured
products arranged on back-to-back basis).

Level 3: Valuation technique with significant non-observable inputs

This valuation technique is used where at least one significant input is
not observable and reliance is placed on reasonable assumptions made
on market conditions. There is currently no financial instrument being
classified under such category.

All the assumptions and methods mentioned above provide a consistent
basis for the calculation of fair value of the Bank's assets and liabilities.
However, other institutions may use different assumptions and methods.
Therefore, the fair values disclosed by different financial institutions may
not be entirely comparable.

TRIRT UAANMETENERTREAARMNEEX:

The following table shows the fair value hierarchy of financial instruments
measured in fair value:

AAMETEERNRAE

Inputs in fair value measurement

ERTNSEAAE
Significant observable inputs
(BZEXR)

(Level 2)

31-12-2020

31-12-2019

RERB
RN SR
PIHESRA

RIMGTHRILK - RS

Precious metals
Financial assets held-for-trading

Derivative financial assets

1,564,487,585
1,525,241,844
11,567,136,341

866,797,767

1,162,708,344
1,425,658,377
4,133,777,889

981,432,228

Loans and advances to customers-gold loan
HhHERIR A

Total financial assets

ERASET

Other debt instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income

11,029,276,744 10,145,887,936

26,552,940,281 17,849,464,774

X5 M ErR AR Financial liabilities held-for-trading

LTHE SRR Derivative financial liabilities
SR ARET Total financial liabilities

3,644,232,118 3,183,176,624

11,611,363,625 4,137,215,590

15,255,595,743 7,320,392,214

AEE, AATVRREUAANETENE-—RRANE_EXRER
MRz iE R,

EEREINA, TER, AASNEMERASNERARHNL RN
BESHEEMNKEMEHFTERER.

During the year, the Bank had no transfers between level 1 and level 2
of the fair value hierarchy for financial assets and liabilities which were
recorded at fair value.

In the opinion of the management, the difference between the fair value
and the carrying amount of other financial assets and financial liabilities is
not material as at the balance sheet date.

- A
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T=. XBEARRRXS
1. REXFTHIIAERRAE

TAREE, THETMHEARSIRREKTT:

EUIMREMRR

(10) AATHEBRAZNA . XBEEARIEEXRRBVIR

EMRRES. FEEHAHEAAD;

M) ArSFECVEANEMKREN (BERFASMFAT)

MEELWVHFHEDL;
(2) MAASREHERFHHLVHEELWHEKEDY;
(3) MAASEMEAZWHLWHEE DR
(14) AR RIMNEVFSES,

=R W55 R
Name Business Nature
RERITHRAE] BORERKRS

United Overseas Bank Limited Banking and Financial Service

-
A A xumss (hE) ARAS 2020 FERE

() RATHEAE);

2) RATWTRE;

(3) SRATREFE—EASEHAHE MM

(4) XAABEREHEERFERETT

(5) XAASFEINERNT WAILETT

(6) RATWEERY;

(7) RATHEER;

8) AATHNEBRAZNARESEXRRBVNRENR

0 AATHXRBEEARLBATXRBEEAR, MESHXR

12. Related party transactions

(1) Criteria of identifying related parties

Details of the Bank's major related parties in 2020 are as follows:

-—

Parent company of the Bank;

(

(2) Subsidiary of the Bank;

(3) Entities under control of the same parent company;

(4) Investors exercise joint control over the Bank;

(5) Investors exercise significant influence over the Bank;

(6) Joint ventures of the Bank;

(7)  Affiliated company of the Bank;

(8) Main individual investors of the Bank or the close family members;
(9) Key management personnel of the Bank or parent company, and

the close family members;

(10) Other companies controlled or jointly controlled by the Bank's
major investors, key management personnel or close family
members;

() Joint ventures or affiliated company of other member units
(including parent companies and subsidiaries) of the enterprise
group to which the bank belongs;

(12) Joint ventures or affiliated company of enterprises which exercise
joint control over the Bank;

(13) Joint ventures of enterprises which exercise significant influence
over the Bank;

(14)  Annuity established by the Bank.

(2) Parent company of the Bank

A A WE Nz L
Registered Address Share Capital Shareholding
hnig [AEEVE i
100%
Singapore SGD7,325 Million

. FAFENSFRFEREZ SR HMKEKT

FZ &2 THEFIRI A F

Company under the common control of parent company

(3) The related parties which the Bank had transactions with during the
year are as follows

=R

Name

RERTT (BEAET ) HRAE
United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) Bhd.

KRERTT (RE ) BERAE
United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public Company Limited

RERST (ENERAL) HRAF
PT Bank UOB Indonisia

LBEHBLHRAS
UOB Property China Co., Ltd.

MERBIRAER (LF) BRAS
UOB Venture Management (Shanghai) Co., Ltd

W55 MR

Business Nature

BITRERMRS

Banking and financial service

BITRERMRS

Banking and financial service

RORERRS

Banking and financial service

B AR 28, HEMER
Real estate development, operating,
leasing and management

REEE, BERSEE, RAKN

Consulting and investment management

A
Registered Address

kAT HER

Kuala Lumpur Malaysia

REHES
Bangkok Thailand

ENERHAET A

Jakarta Indonesia

TE tiE
Shanghai China

TE LtiE
Shanghai China

SEMAE AR
Registered Capital

ORAETHRERF 2012
RM2 Billion

R 2486 2T
Baht24.86 Billion

ENE AL Atk 27966.61 27T
IDR27,96.661 Billion

AR 2259 125T
RMB2.259 Billion

EIT 1555 AT
USD15.55 Million

EEREFA

Legal Representative

A
Wong Kim Choong

ez %
Tan Choon Hin

Hendra Gunawan

iR

Peter Foo Moo Tan

B
Seah Kian Wee

REF = EEBRAE R-EE R #6300 T Thio Boon Kiat
UOB Asset Management Ltd. Investment management Singapore SGD63,000,000

ZERREXIMAI A A

Company under the significant influence of the parent company
mEFAWEREE (1) BRAE A EREERS FE IR X150 AT ERE
InnoVen Enterprise Management Consulting (Beijing) ~ Business Management Consulting Beijing China UsD1.5 Million Cao Ying Xue
Co,, Ltd. Service
HEFRAREERAS RMARBVSEFESTELSEX $E X2 %70 1,000 HT ERE
InnoVen Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. SIENACSE R 23

Financial leasing; business factoring Tianjing China UsSD10 Million Cao Ying Xue

related to main business

>
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ERTMKBEEAR Key management personnel
XBEEAR, BHEAANINEE. KEXRSEEEAR, Key management personnel include directors, supervisor and senior
management.
BARARKRBEEEASREAZMALE
Company under the significant influence of the Bank's key management
=T 55t EMH EMEE EERERA
Name Business Nature Registered Address Registered capital Legal Representative
v (ET) BEBRAS SEERBIE FE EN 3303700 I 7T ZIRE
Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited Hotel management Xiamen China USD37 Million Neo Soon Hup
REBEVFLED = FEBERAE B R HE XRiE ARM 32T FREsF
Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co. Ltd. Real estate development Tianjin China RMB1.13 Billion Tan Kian Siew
K (L) BAEERRAS BEER. AVEERRAEEENE TE LE 25T 650 7T B8
Kheng Leong (Shanghai) Investment Business information consulting; Shanghai China UsDé.5 Million Wee Ee Chao
Management Co., Ltd Corporate management consulting,
Investment management consulting
ENRREHERAE HIEMEERA™ M TEEN %7820 T REE
Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co,, Ltd. Manufacture and sale of Chinese Xiamen China UsD8.2 Million Goh Bee Leong
pharmaceutical products
RV HRAE] BEER i T 266228 BHTT b
Haw Par Corporation Limited Investment holding Singapore SGD266.228 Million Wee Cho Yaw
WEmEL (R#) KRRARAS BFFR. 28, AEMEE HE B 37T 2400 Fi7T Chua Yu Lee
Singland (Chengdu) Development Co., Ltd. Real estate development, operating, Chengdu China UsbD24 Million
leasing and management
LBBRBEVHRAS B EFREREE FE L AR 3127 Lim Beng Teong
Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd Real estate development and operation  Shanghai China RMB2.3 Billion
FERER (RE) RKRBERAS MRBRME L EFE A8  HEXE AR 24060 27T RENR
UIC Jin Travel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. BIE. BLRENFEE. HE. BE
Manufacturing of new construction Tianjin China RMB240.6 Million Eu Zai Jie
materials, sale, lease and management
of office buildings, apartment hotel,
commercial facilities
LRHBEVHRAT B AR REE HE AR 7191 125 Lim Beng Teong

Shanghai Jin Jun Realty Co,, Ltd.

RARFEF (L) BEEEFRAS]

Pan Pacific (Shanghai) Hotel Management Co., Ltd.

EERITARAE
Hengfeng Bank Co., Ltd.

-~
A 16 xaemes (hE) BRAE 2020 FEHRE

Real estate development and operation

EEEE. REEHE, 2LEEREE
Hotel management, investment
consulting and corporate management
consulting

B ERTT - MUTFRR AR IUGERR, IR
#H, ZRELEE

Commercial Banks - Customer deposits,
Loans and advances to customers,
settlement and bill business, etc

Shanghai China

TE s
Shanghai China

TE LR
Shandong China

RMB7191Million

ERTSAT
USD50 Thousand

AR 1M2.096 27T
RMBI11.2096 Billion

Neo Soon Hup

R
Chen Ying

4L RANREXRBEAZEERS

(4) Main transactions between the Bank and related parties

VoA e Loans and advances to customers 31-12-2020 31-12-2019

FH  EEEXZRFLE FE SR G R

Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)

FiEBBREVHRAS Shanghai Jin Jun Realty Co., Ltd. 223,145,783 0.60 105,206,039 0.29

EER (KE) XEBBRAT UIC JinTravel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. 69,077,107 0.19 72,215,026 0.20

it Total 292,222,890 0.79 177,421,065 0.49

TF R AR BGERIR Due from and placement with banks 31-12-2020 31-12-2019

KM AREZHRALG REN S EEZ HRELLG

Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)

KIERFTERAT United Overseas Bank Limited 1,408,350,022 13.58 682,051,368 7.28

fBEEITHRAT Hengfeng Bank Co., Ltd. 195,607,821 1.89 - -

RERTT (DREL ) HRAS United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) Bhd. 1,951,478 0.02 1,301,269 0.01
United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public

KERTT (RE) GRRE Company Limited 232,938 - 258,916 -

RAERFT (ENERATL ) HR/AS  PT Bank UOB Indonisia 6,338 - - -

it Total 1,606,148,597 15.49 683,611,553 7.29

Due to and placements from banks and

BEARIFENZT other financial institutions 31-12-2020 31-12-2019

FH  EEEXHRELE FE SR GRAMLGI

Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)

KIERITERAT) United Overseas Bank Limited 15,185,945,678 83.36 13,352,032,925 95.71
United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public

KIERTT (RE) BRAS Company Limited 2,529,030 0.01 1,127,972 0.01

Ait Total 15,188,474,708 83.37 13,353,160,897 95.72

>
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R - HAth fafm Payables - other liabilities 31-12-2020 31-12-2019
KA AREEZGRAMLA REN EIEESE S l=41]

Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)

KIERTHRAS United Overseas Bank Limited 29,196,163 5.01 59,909,324 17.86
RIERFT (RE ) GRAT United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public 845,385 0.14 - -
MW A EIR (L8) HR/AS UOB Venture Management (Shanghai) Co., Ltd 188,760 0.03 - R
&1t 30,230,308 5.18 59,909,324 17.86
ZEMEEMAE Financial liabilities held-for-trading 31-12-2020 31-12-2019
A ARXZSRAMLA RE LR SR B

Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)

KIERITERAE United Overseas Bank Limited 3,273,239,918 89.82 3,183,176,624 100.00
IS ON Interest income 2020 2019
£ HEEIZRELE X1 i REZ ZRELLH

Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)

LEBREVARAS Shanghai Jin Jun Realty Co., Ltd. 8,101,381 0.38 3,169,165 0.13
EERITHRRE] Hengfeng Bank Co., Ltd. 4,044,179 0.19 - -
mEER (KE) XEBHRAS UIC JinTravel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. 3,545,446 0.16 3,452,124 0.15
KIEBFTHRAT United Overseas Bank Limited 2,650,765 0.12 11,406,707 0.48
ait Total 18,341,771 0.85 18,027,996 0.76

UlgEEN Customer deposits 31-12-2020 31-12-2019
R AREXRZRILLE RE A EEZ RG]
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
LSRR YHRAS Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd. 1,560,946,699 4.28 474,882,349 1.20
EEEHBELVERAT UOB Property China Co., Ltd. 460,016,400 1.26 399,860,078 1.01
TR REIE (L£8) ARAT UOB Venture Management (Shanghai) 191,283,831 0.52 195,792,396 0.50
Co., Ltd.
HEEM (5#E) XEERAT Eiggland (Chengdu) Development Co., 150,148,572 0.41 144,625,727 0.37
ta.
G ERMAHERRAT InnoVen Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. 54,735,493 0.15 50,971,936 0.13
EIEREHBRAT Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. 17,616,288 0.05 6,411,811 0.02
BAYEF (LiE) BEEEEARAS Pan Pacific (Shanghai) Hotel Management 14,895,858 0.04 15,689,446 0.04
Co., Ltd.
® (E) BEEFRAS Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 7,686,640 0.02 10,079,701 0.03
MEER (RE) RRERAS] UIC Jin Travel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. 7,351,010 0.02 11,007,125 0.03
HEFESWEEEE (ER) BR2A  InnoVen Enterprise Management 6,791,513 0.02 5,290,313 0.01
3 Consulting (Beijing) Co., Ltd.
KB (L) BRABTEFRAT Kheng Leong (Shanghai) Investment 4,724,871 0.01 7,077,644 0.02
Management Co., Ltd.
EHREVHRAT Haw Par Corporation Limited 4,723,188 0.01 4,928,856 0.01
KBEVFEEMTFELBRAS Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co., Ltd. 42,550 - 105,775 -
LiEmRBELVHRAS Shanghai Jin Jun Realty Co., Ltd. 2,328 - 1,750 -
XBREBEAR Key Management Personnel 16,557,796 0.05 24,868,312 0.06
&it Total 2,497,523,037 6.84 1,351,593,219 3.43
RICRRIE - oAt R Uk Receivables- other receivables 31-12-2020 31-12-2019
R AREZHREMELG REN EIEES & E3 =4t
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
LigtFHBELVHRAT UOB Property China Co., Ltd. 12,931,100 1.95 12,892,048 3.91
KESRFTHRAT) United Overseas Bank Limited 2,845,307 0.43 21,220,919 6.44
AERF=EEFRAT UOB Asset Management Ltd. 353,805 0.05 375,416 0.11
&it Total 16,130,212 2.43 34,488,383 10.46

-~
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FIRZH Interest expense 2020 2019
8 SEEXTHRELLG ] S EK I H R
Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)
KIERITHIRAT United Overseas Bank Limited 234,436,230 20.15 413,649,144 26.90
FEmsELBERAS Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd. 22,692,418 1.95 10,151,597 0.66
LBEHREVERAS UOB Property China Co., Ltd. 8,928,232 0.77 7,396,285 0.48
MEB AR EE (LE) ARATE UOB Venture Management (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd. 3,407,875 0.29 3,613,516 0.23
HeE (B XEERAT Singland (Chengdu) Development Co.,
Ltd. 1,706,433 0.15 1,591,986 0.10
G ERAHERRAT InnoVen Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. 407,416 0.04 113,364 0.01
RAYEE (LE) BEEEEARAS Pan Pacific (Shanghai) Hotel Management
Co., Ltd. 165,862 0.01 224,551 0.01
® (EB]) BEEBRAS Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 140,053 0.01 142,621 0.01
MiEER (K2) RRERAT UIC Jin Travel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. 108,844 0.01 110,234 0.01
HWEMWEREE (L) HRAF InnoVen Enterprise Management
Consulting (Beijing) Co., Ltd. 63,900 0.01 35,947 -
KiE (LE) BREEERRAS Kheng Leong (Shanghai) Investment
Management Co., Ltd. 61,858 0.01 99,379 0.01
EHSVERAT Haw Par Corporation Limited 29,159 - 1,667,794 0.1
Bl IERELBRAT Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. 21,494 - 16,576 -
KESRTT (RE) BRAF United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public
Company Limited 7,594 - 8,258 -
KBEVFEEMTHFELBRAT Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co., Ltd. 269 - 967 R
FEBREVERAS Shanghai Jin Jun Realty Co., Ltd. 16 - 578 :
XBEEAR Key Management Personnel 323,591 0.03 806,904 0.05
A1t Total 272,501,244 23.43 439,629,701 28.58

FEHERAEEN Fee and commission income 2020 2019
€M HREEZGRELG 1] SR G R
Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)
KER=ERFRAT UOB Asset Management Ltd. 7,148,014 3.70 4,599,295 1.92
KIERTHRAS United Overseas Bank Limited 5,940,501 3.07 15,038,752 6.28
TEHREVERAT Shanghai Jin Jun Realty Co., Ltd. 1,030,822 0.53 75,531 0.03
mEER (KE) REBRAT UIC JinTravel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. 111,714 0.06 798 -
RIEERAHEEERAT InnoVen Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. 38,108 0.02 180,648 0.08
KERT (RE) ARRE United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public
Company Limited 24,142 0.01 14,312 0.01
BlEREHBRAT Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. 14,113 0.01 452,597 0.19
[BERITRATBIRAE) Hengfeng Bank Co., Ltd. 5,483 - - -
KtV FEREM=FLER/AT  Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co., Ltd. 2,821 - 3,230 -
KEE (L8) BREABEEFRRS Kheng Leong (Shanghai) Investment
Management Co., Ltd 2,000 - - -
EEEHBVHERAS UOB Property China Co., Ltd. 1,473 - 1,818 -
£\ (E]) BEERAS Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 1,125 - 1,584 -
HIEFSWEEEE (L5 ) BBR/AE InnoVen Enterprise Management
Consulting (Beijing) Co., Ltd. 845 - 779 -
RAEE (L) EEEEAMRAS Pan Pacific (Shanghai) Hotel Management
Co., Ltd. 728 - 936 -
FmEM (BE) KRERRS Singland (Chengdu) Development Co.,
Ltd 38 - 80 -
EHMVERRAS Haw Par Corporation Limited - - 1,303 -
TRREREIR (L8) ARAS UOB Venture Management (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd. - - 368 -
KRIERFT (TR ) BIRAS United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) Bhd. (22,262) (0.01) 122,562 0.05
&it Total 14,299,665 7.39 20,494,593 8.56

-~
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Notes to Financial Statements

2020 £E & For the year ended 31 December 2020
(BR45HIERASN, MBI ARTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

FEERAETH Fee and commission expense 2020 2019
€M HEXZHRAMLLE &% EIEES S l=4i]
Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)
K&ERFT (ENERMIT) BFR/AS PT Bank UOB Indonisia 1,688,928 3.34 - -
KIERITHRAT United Overseas Bank Limited 71,549 0.14 1,022,834 1.51
RERFT (BREL) BRA S United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) Bhd. 25 - 51 _
KIERT (RE) BRAT United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public Company - - 2,112 -
Limited
A1 Total 1,760,502 3.48 1,024,997 1.51
ikl Investment income 2020 2019
€8 HREXHRALLE kil h R ZRELL B
Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)
RERITHRAE) United Overseas Bank Limited 9,133,642 5.06 16,282,481 31.94
VEREESE General and administrative expenses 2020 2019
€T HEXXHRAMLLE 21 G EEZ SR B
Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)
EERAL R IT support

- RERTERAT -United Overseas Bank Limited 60,819,151 5.86 47,375,200 4.43

FEHSERSH Rental and service fee
- FREFBELVERAT -UOB Property China Co., Ltd. 54,300,776 523 47,232,480 4.42
-1ey (JEDD) SEERRAS -Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 296,133 0.03 296,133 0.03
- RIERITHERAS) -United Overseas Bank Limited 78,491 0.01 936,841 0.09
&it Total 115,494,551 11.13 95,840,654 8.97
FEBR G Software development 2020 2019
€T HEXXZZRAMLLE 201 EIEES S 141!
Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)
KERTHRAT United Overseas Bank Limited 1,733,184 77.42 7,306,387 46.81

AATHE R A iE Irrevocable loan commitments 31-12-2020 31-12-2019
£ HREXZZHREMLLH RE EIEES & Pl dl]
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
EEHBREVERAT Shanghai Jin Jun Realty Co., Ltd. 52,207,209 2.28 169,931,207 6.89
TEEMTEEY Derivatives 31-12-2020 31-12-2019
K AREZHRALG E HEEZ G RAML B
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
KIEBRTHRAT United Overseas Bank Ltd. 42,488,123,777 6.34 28,971,782,838 4.71
1R Letter of guarantee 31-12-2020 31-12-2019
R HEEZGRELG REN SR G R
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
RERTHRAE] United Overseas Bank Ltd. 61,841,578 5.74 50,222,117 4.76
{FERARER Right-of-use assets 31-12-2020 31-12-2019
£ HREEZZHEEMLLH RE H R G RAL B
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)

EiBEHRBEVERAS -UOB Property China Co., Ltd
- FEMHE -Rent 76,029,374 62.28 - -
FAERE Lease liabilities 31-12-2020 31-12-2019
FH EEEXHRFLE FE HEEZZ G RAMLGI
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)

LREHRBLHFRAS -UOB Property China Co., Ltd
- FEMER -Rent 77,394,280 65.35 - -
INRE Reverse repurchase financial assets 31-12-2020 31-12-2019
R HREEZGRELG RE SR R GI
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
fBEEITHRAT Hengfeng Bank Co., Ltd. 150,035,304 6.60 - -

o~
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Notes to Financial Statements

2020 £E & For the year ended 31 December 2020

(BREHIERS, BB AARTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

RAT S ERXBITTHTNZZRELEF VR LIS K M4HT, N—
B HMIENENERM, HREFBLSEFHTT,

BRLERZZN, KRB MAXBEEANRFEBMNMOT:

The Bank's transactions with the above-mentioned related parties are
conducted in accordance with normal commercial transaction conditions,
based on general transaction prices, and in accordance with normal business
procedures.

Key management personnel’s salaries and benefits are as follows:

2020 2019

BR¥FERAMGEIET

Employee salaries and other short-term
incentives

97,088,423 90,497,505

S5RAFFEET N HERNT:

AR ERFRUMNEVFEESHREFTNHRLEI, RERR
FHMREKX 5.,

-~
A 184 k@ (hE) BRAE 2020 FERE

Transactions between the Bank and the annuity are as follows:

No transactions other than normal contribution to the annuity were
conducted between the Bank and the annuity established by the Bank.

+=. i
T AERARFEA
AATKENERA - BREEIRTEANSEREAYNEH

IR, FERERYMNEEHEEN2SF, sHTAMNERNE
FHh3E, PEHEESRBESEMERN, LIEEFEN,

13. Lease
(1) As lessee
The leased assets of the Bank include the buildings and vehicles used
during daily operation. The lease term for buildings is usually 2-5 years,

and the lease term for vehicles is usually 3-4 years. Few lease contracts
have an option to extend the lease or an option to terminate the lease.

2020 2019

Cash outflow related to lease

SHAEAXMNALRSY

81,911,894 35,813,445

RANEE ST B MRS
AAERBNER R ET BEORKEER SR TERRT T 2
FARA, BEE R PHRRE R SE R, BEBRAME,
ERIBE A THARE R SRR,
SIS 1L LI

2020 FF, A EELHEFEN L ERFENANITEE RS KFRT
FEERRETUMSEFATHEL,

EREE A TF I IFAEE

AR EAFERBEEHRTFIRNBERTAREZASRUMNER
W

Potential cash outflow that not accounts for lease liabilities

Potential cash outflow that not accounts for lease liabilities mainly arises
from risk exposures such as variable lease payable, option to extend
the lease, option to terminate the lease, guaranteed residual value, and
committed but not commenced leases.

Option to extend the lease, option to terminate the lease

There is no change on lease terms arose from the change on the
assessment of option to extend the lease, option to terminate the lease
or actual option exercise situation in 2020.

Committed but not commenced leases

The expected cash outflow in future years of committed but not
commenced leases as below:

2020 2019

1TEMA (&14F) Within 1 year (include 1 year) 2,854,511 41,413,845
1THEZE2F (5 2F) 1-2 years (include 2 years) 1,430,946 41,413,845
2FF3F (H3F) 2-3 years (include 3 years) - 41,413,845
4,285,457 124,241,535

i
UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020 185 ___A’\



4 5+ R B E
Notes to Financial Statements

2020 £E & For the year ended 31 December 2020
(BR45HIERASN, MBI ARTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)
HEZAIREER

AP EHARMEMER~HE#TEHLLE, REIAMEANR
REMBRRE, AR, BRNERS SETAZBNERLNT:

Additional information on lease expense

The bank uses the simplified approach to account for a short-term lease
and a lease of low-value assets which are not recognised as the right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities. Profit or loss recognises on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets as below:

2020 2019

SSHAFREE Expenses for short-term lease 5,118,900 48,992,602
Expenses for lease of low-value assets

ENMEFREEA (GEEFESERN (short-term lease not included) - _

5,118,900 48,992,602

HitpfAERER
ERAMAS, SAKEE. 5 MEPEL, 10, BEAHRHTISEMA,

ZAKEL. 3 NEHEEMENER~AENELLE, S
Em, 15 TN, SRMPEM, 5 MEbEL. 23,

+0., #EEfifiRAEER

BEAMSHREMERBBLE, ARTEFEMEMFERESAR
BENEAAS NHRRAEER,

+a. tLBREE
ETFURBEDNESEN G, UHAAERZIRER.

N MBRRZMAE
FMERFVEEATEEST 2021 3 A 26 BRWHE,

A 186 x@ms () HRAE 2020 FRHEE

Additional information on lease

Right-of-use assets refers to note 4.15 and note 710; Interest expense for
lease liabilities refers to note 7.31; simplified approach to account for a
short-term lease and a lease of low-value assets refers to note 4.15; lease
liabilities refers to note 4.15 and note 7.23.

14. Post balance sheet events

As at the date on which the financial statements are approved, there is no
material post balance sheet event that needs to be disclosed or adjusted
by the Bank.

15. Comparative amounts

Certain comparative amounts have been adjusted to conform with the

current year's presentation.

16. Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 26 March 2021.
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